
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS

PLANNING COMMITTEE

A G E N D A

Meeting: Tuesday, 23rd June, 2020 at 2.30 pm.

Site Visits

There are no site visits on this occasion.

VIRTUAL MEETING - Link to view Live Stream via YouTube 

This meeting will be a virtual meeting and therefore will not take place in physical location 
following guidelines set out in Section 78 of the Coronavirus Act 2020.

To view the meeting online click this link

PART ONE 

1.  Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.  

2.  Urgent Items

To note any items which the Chairman considers to be of an urgent 
nature. 

3.  Delegations

To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting.

4.  Admission of Public and Press

To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda.

5.  Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda. 

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting).

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCBYFa9sjxuGwCW5BQwu9mlw/live


Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.  

6.  Confirmation of Minutes

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 10th March, 2020.

3 - 30

7.  Delegated Approvals - For Information (Booklet attached)  31 - 70

FOR DECISION 

(D) 8.  Planning Applications (Booklet attached). 
 

71 - 156

NOTE (D) – Delegated
(R) – For Referral to Council

INVITATIONS TO SPEAK TO THE COMMITTEE (2.30 pm.)

Membership of Committee

Councillors Assouad
Burley
D. Edwards
Gawne
Hall
Husband
McEwan
Mooney
Nott
Seward
C. Thomson (Chair)
M. A. Thomson (Vice-Chair)

For queries regarding this agenda, please contact:

Paula Westwood
Democratic Services Officer 
(Member Support)
01229 876322
pwestwood@barrowbc.gov.uk

Published: Monday 15th June, 2020



PLANNING COMMITTEE

Meeting: Tuesday 10th March, 2020
at 2.30 pm. (Banqueting Hall)

PRESENT:- Councillors M. A. Thomson (Vice-Chairman), Assouad, Burley, D. 
Edwards, Gawne, Hall, Husband, McEwan, Mooney, Nott and Seward.

Officers Present:- Jason Hipkiss (Development Services Manager - Planning, 
Charles Wilton (Principal Planning Officer), (Paula Westwood (Democratic Services 
Officer - Member Support) and Sandra Kemsley (Democratic Services Officer).

Legal Representative:-  Debbie Storr (Temporary Senior Legal Officer). 

117 – Declarations of Interest

Councillor D. Edwards declared an interest in Planning Application 2019/0576 – 
Housing Development Site, Lots Road, Askam-in-Furness (Minute No. 125) as he 
was a Borough Councillor for the Ward and had attended meetings where this matter 
had been discussed, but he had not made his views known.

Councillors Gawne and McEwan declared an interest in any matter relating to 
Cumbria County Council as they were Members of that Council.

Councillor Husband declared an interest in Planning Application 2019/0840 – 36 
Duddon Drive, Barrow-in-Furness (Minute No. 124) as the applicant was known to 
her. 

118 – Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members

An apology for absence had been received from Councillor C. Thomson (Chairman).

119 – Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting held on 11th February, 2020 were taken as read and 
confirmed.

120 – Enforcement Action – Sherborne Avenue, Barrow

The Planning Manager submitted a report concerning enforcement action at 
Sherborne Avenue, Barrow-in-Furness.  He reported that the development had 
proceeded in conflict with the planning permission in that an open amenity area had 
been enclosed by a high wall and fence which was harmful to the appearance of the 
adjacent footpath (the Greenway).  The breach of planning control was also contrary 
to the objectives of the 106 obligation which forms part of the overall planning 
documents for the development.  It was also likely to prevent the developer from 
meeting the approved bio diversity enhancement measures negotiated during the 
consent process.

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



The matter related to planning permission 2016/0902. The permission had been 
subject to a condition which required a landscaping scheme to be submitted and 
then implemented in accordance with an agreed schedule (condition 12).  This had 
been agreed by virtue of application 2019/0650.  The scheme approved under that 
condition (Plan Ref. FL/N/PH3/100 Rev AN) showed, amongst other features, a 
landscaped area running along a section of the popular Greenway which links Roose 
with Furness Abbey. The arrangement reflected the section 106 obligation which 
formed part of the permissions (2016/0902 & 2016/0903). The s106 identified the 
landscaping area as the ‘brown land’ which together with other open spaces across 
the development, would be transferred to Barrow Council as public amenity space. 
The agreement had also included a payment to cover future maintenance, such as 
grass cutting and general repairs.

The area identified as the brown land, had been shown on the approved plans as 
measuring 310m in length yet is rather narrow, typically 2 to 3m. Some 100 trees 
were shown to be planted as part of the approved landscaping scheme along with a 
native species hedgerow for its full length.  The purpose of the brown land was to 
soften the edge of the housing development where it adjoins the Greenway.

To date, the approved plans had not been complied with.  A significant part of the 
brown land, approximately half its length, has been enclosed by a wall and fence 
combination approx. 2.8m high.  Rather than an attractive landscaped open area this 
part of the Greenway now has an enclosed character.  It presents a much poorer 
visual appearance than if the development had been implemented as per the 
approved plan.

Were the wall and fence to remain, it would make it difficult to justify enforcing the 
tree and hedge planting scheme as it would effectively be hidden from public view. 
Its value, in terms of visual amenity to create a soft edge to the housing site, would 
be lost.  The planting also forms part of the developer’s bio diversity enhancement 
measures, which are an important consideration.  Any reduction in the level of 
planting would result in a bio diversity loss as well.

In general terms, a simple visual inspection suggests that the development appears 
to have crept in a westerly direction resulting in the brown land potentially being 
narrower than shown on the approved plan.  It is considered necessary to seek 
removal of the wall and fencing in order to ensure that the open landscaped features 
alongside the green-way are introduced.

The development as carried out conflicts with the development plan including Local 
plan policies DS5, GI5,GI9, H7 and N3 and the Council’s Bio Diversity and 
Development supplementary planning document.

It is considered expedient to take enforcement action given the visual harm arising 
from the breach of planning control. Also there are potential knock-on implications re 
bio diversity enhancement. Previous approaches to the developer both verbally and 
in writing have not been able to resolve the situation.

Authorisation is sought to take enforcement action to secure compliance with the 
landscaping scheme approved pursuant to condition 12 of planning permission 

Page 4

Agenda Item 6



2016/0902. The wall and fence also represents operational development without 
planning permission due to issues including its height. Authorisation is therefore 
sought to take enforcement action on the basis of unauthorised operational 
development

RESOLVED:- To agree that the Planning Manager be authorised to take such 
enforcement action and, in consultation with the Director of Resources, any other 
associated legal action deemed necessary;

1. To secure compliance with the landscaping scheme  pursuant to Condition 12 of 
planning permission 2016/0902, in accordance with the approved plans agreed by 
virtue of Discharge of Condition ref 2019/0650; and

2. To secure removal of the wall and fences which are considered to be operational 
development that is detrimental to the delivery of bio-diversity, and which also has 
an adverse impact upon the setting of the Greenway and its relationship with the 
adjacent housing site.

Town and Country Planning Acts

121 – Delegated Decisions

The Assistant Director - Regeneration and Built Environment submitted for 
information details of planning applications in this report which he had determined 
under delegated authority (Minute No. 254, Planning Committee, 3rd September, 
2002, confirmed by Council 24th September, 2002).  The decisions are reported for 
your information.  The plans recommended for approval under the Town and Country 
Planning Acts will be subject to the standard conditions referred to in Minute No. 208 
(April 1971) of the Plans Sub-Committee, Barrow-in-Furness, County Borough 
Council, in addition to any conditions indicated hereunder.  Applications with a (P) 
beside the applicant’s name denotes those applications that were reported to the 
Planning Panel.

RESOLVED:- (i) To note the decisions made under the Town and Country Planning 
Act 1990 (as amended) as follows:-

2019/0564 Re-cladding of Devonshire Dock Hall, amenity towers, workshops and 
associated works at Devonshire Dock Hall, North Road, Barrow-in-
Furness.

2019/0834 Application for approval of details reserved by Condition No. 5 
(fencing details) of appeal decision APP/W0910/W/19/3231527.

2019/0871 Proposed change of use of vacant shop (use class A1) to self 
contained one-bedroom flat (use class C3) including associated 
external alterations at 113 Ramsden Street, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0874 Proposed rear ground floor extension at 26 Lakeland Avenue, Barrow-
in-Furness.

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



2019/0861 Single storey side extension forming living area and internal 
alterations at 9 Teal Close, Askam-in-Furness.

2019/0845 Proposed rear single storey extension and garage conversion at 23 
Riverside Gardens, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0849 Change of use from retail (Class A1 of the Use Classes Order) to a 
holiday let (Class C3) with external changes comprising rough case 
render and timber door at 118 Market Street, Dalton-in-Furness.

2019/0886 Ground floor side extension to increase size of reception room at 36 
Whinlatter Drive, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0867 Application for works to trees subject of Tree Preservation Order 1984 
No. 1 A1 Infield Gardens – Sycamore, Ash, Beech, Oak and Horse 
Chestnut – T1 Ash to reduce the crown by 30% at 32 Infield Gardens, 
Barrow-in-Furness.

2020/0016 Side living area extension to 2 Underwood Terrace, Dalton-Furness.

2019/0864 Single rear extension forming living area, a 2nd storey side extension 
above garage forming en-suite bedroom and internal alterations at 13 
Caspian Road, Askam-in-Furness.

2019/0878 Rear single storey kitchen and store to side elevation at 51 Yarlside 
Road, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0882 Change of use from self-contained flat to letting office at 4B Steamer 
Street, Barrow-in-Furness.

2019/0884 Erection of a rear ground floor living dining area with opening to 
existing kitchen at 40 Athens Drive, Barrow-in-Furness.

(ii) To note the decisions made under the Building Act 1984/The Building 
Regulations 2010 as submitted by the Principal Building Control Surveyor.

Town and Country Planning Acts

The Planning Manager reported on the following planning applications:-

122 – Crooklands Brow, Ulverston Road, Dalton-in-Furness

From SLIC in respect of an application for Outline planning permission for a 
Community Centre and Prayer Hall with appearance and landscaping reserved for 
subsequent approval at Crooklands Brow, Ulverston Road, Dalton-in-Furness as 
shown on plan number 2019/0763.

Representations received and the results of consultations were reported.

The Committee had undertaken a site visit prior to the meeting.

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



The Planning Manager informed the Committee that a request to ‘call in’ the 
application had been made to the Secretary of State.  Following contact with 
Planning Casework Unit if Committee were minded to approve the application it was 
considered that the decision notice be deferred until the morning of the 13th March to 
enable them to have opportunity to consider the request. 

Two people in support of the application, together with one objector had attended the 
meeting and made representations to the Committee.

It was moved by Councillor McEwan and seconded by Councillor Husband and on a 
vote of nine in favour and two abstentions it was,

RESOLVED:-  That the Committee be minded to agree the recommendation to grant 
outline planning permission, subject to the conditions outlined below and that the 
Planning Manager be given delegated authority to issue the decision notice on 13th 
March, 2020:-

1. Application for approval of Reserved Matters must be made not later that 
the expiration of three years beginning with this permission and the 
development must be begun not later than whichever is the later of the 
following dates:

a)  The expiration of three years from the date of this permission; or 

b)  expiration of two years from the final approval of the Reserved 
Matters or in the case of approval on different dates, the final 
approval of the last such matter to be approved. 

Reason

Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 92 of the Town and 
Country Planning Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning 
& Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Compliance with Approved Plans 

2. The development shall be carried out and completed in all respects in 
accordance with the application dated 25/10/19 and the hereby 
approved documents defined by this permission as listed below, except 
where varied by conditions attached to this consent. 

Schedule of approved drawings & documents: 

1707/OP/ 00, 01, 02 rev C, 03, 04, 05, 06, 07, 08, 09. Ecological 
Appraisal by Envirotech ref 6125 v2. Highway Planning Statement ref: 
DY/190749. 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



Reason

To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the 
drawings approved by the Planning Authority. 

3. No development whatsoever shall take place until full details of the 
appearance and landscaping of the development have been submitted 
to and approved by the Planning Authority and the development shall 
conform to such approved details.

Reason

Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 92 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning & 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

4. Applications for the approval of the Reserved Matters shall be in 
accordance with the principles and parameters described and illustrated 
in the drawings submitted with the Outline application as listed below, 
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Planning Authority through the 
approval of a non-material amendment to the consent. 

Reason

To ensure that the development shall be carried out in an orderly and 
satisfactory manner. 

5. No floodlighting or other form of external lighting shall be installed unless 
it is in accordance with details that have previously been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. Such details shall 
include location, height, type and direction of light sources and intensity 
of illumination. Any such lighting shall at all times be directed and 
shielded so as to minimise light spillage outside of the application site, 
and shall not thereafter be altered, other than for routine maintenance 
which does not change its details, without the prior consent in writing of 
the Planning Authority. 

Reason 

To minimise light pollution in accordance with Local Plan Policy DS2 of 
the Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031, and in order to protect the 
rural amenities and ecological interests of the area.

Pre-commencement Conditions 

6. Development (but excluding site clearance and sub ground excavations) 
shall not take place until a pedestrian footpath is provided within the 
grass verge to the site frontage, extending to join the existing footpath to 
the front of Crooklands Gardens on Ulverston Road, and a pedestrian 

Page 8

Agenda Item 6



refuge has been provided within Ulverston Road itself, both in 
accordance with details first submitted to and approved by the Planning 
Authority. The development must be carried out in accordance with the 
approved details. 

Reason

In the interests of highway safety, specifically to ensure the development 
can be accessed safely by pedestrians. 

7. No development shall take place until a Preliminary Investigation (desk 
study, site reconnaissance and preliminary risk assessment), to 
investigate and assess the risk of potential contamination, is submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This 
investigation must be undertaken by a suitably qualified contaminated 
land practitioner, in accordance with established procedures (BS10175 
(2011+A2:2017) Code of Practice for the Investigation of Potentially 
Contaminated Sites and Model Procedures for the Management of Land 
Contamination (CLR11)).

Reason 

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 
land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems. It is required pre-
commencement to ensure that the development can be carried out 
safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other 
offsite receptors in accordance with Local Plan Policy C4 of the Barrow 
Borough Local Plan 2016-2031.

8. If the Preliminary Investigation identifies potential unacceptable risks, a 
Field Investigation and Risk Assessment, conducted in accordance with 
established procedures (BS10175 (2011+A2:2017) Code of Practice for 
the Investigation of Potentially Contaminated Sites and Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination (CLR11)), shall 
be undertaken to determine the presence and degree of contamination 
and must be undertaken by a suitably qualified contaminated land 
practitioner. The results of the Field Investigation and Risk Assessment 
shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority 
before any development begins. 

Reason

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 
land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems. It is required pre-
commencement to ensure that the development can be carried out 
safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other 
offsite receptors in accordance with Local Plan Policy C4 of the Barrow 
Borough Local Plan 2016-2031.

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



9. Where contamination is found which poses unacceptable risks, no 
development shall take place until a detailed Remediation Scheme has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The scheme must include an appraisal of remedial options 
and proposal of the preferred option(s), all works to be undertaken, 
proposed remediation objectives, remediation criteria and a verification 
plan. The scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as 
contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 
1990 in relation to the intended use.

Reason

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 
land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems. It is required pre-
commencement to ensure that the development can be carried out 
safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other 
offsite receptors in accordance with Local Plan Policy C4 of the Barrow 
Borough Local Plan 2016-2031.

10. No development shall take place until a Construction Method Statement 
has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Planning 
Authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to throughout the 
construction period. The Statement shall provide for all of the following: i) 
the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors, ii) loading and 
unloading of plant and materials, iii) storage of plant and materials used 
in constructing the development, iv) the proposed construction vehicle 
and delivery routing plans, v) wheel washing facilities where vehicles will 
enter/exit the site, vi) measures to minimise noise pollution and control 
the emission of dust and dirt during construction, vii) days/hours of 
working, viii) a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from 
construction works, iv) details of any excavations proposed and the 
construction methods to be utilised, including the use of any vibro-
compaction machinery / piling machinery or piling and ground treatment 
works. 

Reason

In the interests of minimising the impact upon local environmental 
amenity. 

11. The site should be drained on a separate system with foul water draining 
to the public sewer and surface water draining in the most sustainable 
way. The National Planning Practice Guidance clearly outlines the 
hierarchy to be investigated when considering a surface water drainage 
strategy, in the following order of priority: 1) into the ground (infiltration); 
2) to a surface water body; 3) to a surface water sewer, highway drain, 
or another drainage system; 4) to a combined sewer. Justification for 
and details of the proposed system shall be submitted to, and approved 

Page 10

Agenda Item 6



in writing by the Planning Authority prior to installation, and thereafter 
installed in accordance with the approved details.

Reason

To ensure the site is drained by the most sustainable method in 
accordance with the principles of the NPPF and Local Plan Policy C3a.

During Building Works 

12. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out 
the approved development, that was not previously identified, it must be 
reported immediately to the Local Planning Authority. Development on 
the part of the site affected must be halted and Field Investigations shall 
be carried out. Where required by the Local Planning Authority, 
remediation and verification schemes shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These shall be 
implemented prior to occupation of the development. 

Reason

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 
land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems in accordance with 
Local Plan Policy C4 of the Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031. 

13. No soil material is to be imported to the site until it has been tested for 
contamination and assessed for its suitability for the proposed 
development. A suitable methodology for testing this material should be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
soils being imported onto site. The methodology should include the 
sampling frequency, testing schedules, criteria against which the 
analytical results will be assessed (as determined by the risk 
assessment) and source material information. The analysis shall then be 
carried out as per the agreed methodology with verification of its 
completion submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.

Reason

To ensure that the development can be carried out safely without 
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors 
and to ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of 
the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems in accordance with 
Local Plan Policy C4 of the Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031.

14. The development shall be carried out in strict accordance with the 
ecological report (ref: 6125 v2) submitted with the application, including 
the implementation and management of the details of habitat protection, 

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



which precludes clearance works during active nesting season (March-
September).

Reason

In the interests of nature conservation by safeguarding the wildlife 
interests of the site and surrounding area.

Before Occupation 

15. The use shall not be commenced until the access and parking 
requirements have been constructed in accordance with the approved 
plan. Any such access and or parking provision shall be retained and be 
capable of use when the development is completed and shall not be 
removed or altered without the prior consent of the Local Planning 
Authority.

Reason

To ensure a minimum standard of access provision when the 
development is brought into use.

16. The development shall not commence until visibility splays providing 
clear visibility of 160 metres measured 2.4 metres down the centre of the 
access road and the nearside channel line of the carriageway edge have 
been provided at the junction of the access road with the county 
highway. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or 
any Order revoking and re-enacting that Order) relating to permitted 
development, no structure, vehicle or object of any kind shall be erected, 
parked or placed and no trees, bushes or other plants shall be planted or 
be permitted to grown within the visibility splay which obstruct the 
visibility splays. The visibility splays shall be constructed before general 
development of the site commences so that construction traffic is 
safeguarded.

Reason

In the interests of highway safety.

17. The approved Remediation Scheme shall be implemented and a 
Verification Report submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority, prior to occupation of the development.

Reason

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 
land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems in accordance with 
Local Plan Policy C4 of the Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031.

Page 12

Agenda Item 6



18. Details of no fewer than 2 bird and 2 bat nesting boxes (external or 
incorporated into brickwork), including the exact location, specification 
and design, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. The development shall not be occupied unless the 
boxes have been installed. The nesting boxes shall be installed strictly in 
accordance with the details so approved and shall be maintained as 
such thereafter.

Reason

In the interests of nature conservation by safeguarding and enhancing 
the wildlife interests of the site.

19. Prior to the beneficial occupation of the building, the location, type and 
situation of any proposed screen walls or fences shall be submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. The screen walls or 
fences shall be erected in accordance with the approved details and 
thereafter retained unless the Planning Authority gives prior written 
consent to any variation.

Reason

In the interests of the visual amenities of the area and in order to allow 
through migration of the site by wildlife.

20. Prior to the beneficial use of the building hereby approved details of a 
secure fence/crash barrier located at the section of the car park/turning 
area which adjoins to the site’s boundary with the operational railway 
shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning 
authority including a programme for its installation.

Reason

To protect the adjacent railway from as advised by Network Rail.

21. No part of the development shall be beneficially occupied until both the 3 
no. electric vehicle charging points (EVCP) and 2 no. cycle parking 
facilities have been provided in the position detailed on drawing ref 1707 
02 rev C and thereafter permanently retained.

Reason

To ensure the promotion of sustainable means of transport in keeping 
with national guidance and Policy I4 of the Barrow Borough Local Plan 
2016-2031. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



Operational Conditions 

22. The site and building hereby permitted shall not be provided with a 
tannoy/loudspeaker system at any time unless otherwise agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason

In order to minimise the potential for noise pollution, thereby conform to 
Saved policy DS2 of the Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031.

123 – 30 Southport Drive, Barrow-in-Furness

From Mr J. Heighton in respect of a two storey side and rear extension and loft 
conversion forming additional bedroom and extended kitchen / dining room, utility 
and wc at 30 Southport Drive, Barrow-in-Furness as shown on plan number 
2019/0777.

Representations received and the results of consultations were reported.

It was moved by Councillor McEwan and seconded by Councillor Husband, and

RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed that planning permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:-

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three 
years beginning with the date of this permission.

Reason

Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning & 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Compliance with Approved Plans

2. The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces, 
including walls, roofs, doors and windows of the extensions hereby 
permitted shall be of the same type, colour and texture as those used in 
the existing building.

Reason

To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development, and to 
minimise its impact upon the surrounding area.

3. The development shall be carried out and completed in all respects in 
accordance with the application dated 06/11/19 and the hereby 
approved documents defined by this permission as listed below, except 
where varied by conditions attached to this consent.

Page 14

Agenda Item 6



MVC387-01 rev B and 02 rev H

Reason

To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the 
drawings approved by the Planning Authority.

Operational Conditions

4. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking or 
re-enacting that Order with or without modifications) no opening of any 
kind shall be made in the side facing elevations of the permitted single 
storey rear and two storey side extension without the prior written 
consent of the Planning Authority.

Reason

In order to protect the residential amenities of neighbouring properties 
from overlooking or perceived overlooking.

124 – 36 Duddon Drive, Barrow-in-Furness

From Mrs D. Bell in respect of a flat roof single storey extension to rear of property to 
provide wet room at 36 Duddon Drive, Barrow-in-Furness as shown on plan number 
2019/0840.

Representations received and the results of consultations were reported.

It was moved by Councillor McEwan and seconded by Councillor Husband, and

RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed that planning permission be granted 
subject to the following conditions:-

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three 
years beginning with the date of this permission.

Reason

Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 91 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990, as amended by Section 51 of the Planning & 
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Compliance with Approved Plans

2. The development shall be carried out and completed in all respects in 
accordance with the application dated 27/11/19 and the hereby 
approved documents defined by this permission as listed below, except 
where varied by conditions attached to this consent.

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



DAL2019/03-E101, A101, A102, A103, A104.

Reason

To ensure that the development is carried out only as indicated on the 
drawings approved by the Planning Authority.

3. The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces, 
including walls and windows of the extension hereby permitted shall be 
of the same type, colour and texture as those used in the existing 
building.

Reason

To ensure a satisfactory appearance to the development, and to 
minimise its impact upon the surrounding area.

Operational Conditions

4. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking or 
re-enacting that Order with or without modifications) no opening of any 
kind shall be made in the west facing side elevation of the permitted 
extension without the prior written consent of the Planning Authority.

Reason

In order to protect the residential amenities of neighbouring properties 
from overlooking or perceived overlooking.

125 – Housing Development Site, Lots Road, Askam-in-Furness

From MT Wood and Sons in respect of a residential development of 29 dwellings, 
comprising of a mix of 3 and 4 bedroom dwellings (bungalow and 2 storey) with 
associated roadways, parking and amenity space at Housing Development Site, Lots 
Road, Askam-in-Furness as shown on plan number 2019/0576.

Representations received and the results of consultations were reported.

It was moved by Councillor Seward and seconded by Council McEwan, and

RESOLVED:- It was agreed that:

(A) Upon the applicant completing either an obligation or statutory undertaking 
under Section 106 of the Act to secure the following (heads of terms):-

 A financial contribution of £21,750 towards cycling improvements scheme 
from Askam in Furness to Dalton in Furness [Route no 11 The Barrow 
Transport Improvement Study] and traffic management in Lots Road; 

Page 16

Agenda Item 6



and the following heads of terms subject to delegated authority being granted 
to the Planning manager to make amendments:- 

 The submission of an open space works specification and management 
plan for securing the maintenance of all areas of public open space; 

 A programme for delivering the open space; 
 That maintenance of the open space/ attenuation basin will be via a 

management company/united utilities details to be submitted and 
agreed; 

 The details of funding the management company; 
 Arrangements for establishing the condition of the open 

space/attenuation pond prior to transfer to a management company and 
procedure for addressing any defects; 

 Agreement to maintain the open space and attenuation basin in 
accordance with the management plan unless a variation to the 
management plan is agreed with the Council; 

 Agreement not to wind up the management company or alter its 
constitution without the agreement of the Council; 

 Not to sell any dwellings until a management company is in place; 
 Agreement to keep the open spaces open and not built on;
 Bonding arrangements to ensure that funding is available in perpetuity if 

the open spaces are not being maintained in accordance with the 
management plan; 

 The Council's twice yearly inspection costs being paid as a commuted 
sum for the first 20 years for the monitoring of the management 
company's maintenance; 

 Standards and a clause that if the management company go into 
administration or otherwise ceases to exist, confirmation that the title 
deeds to all of the public open space are transferred at a consideration 
of £1 to the Council as the provider of last resort and details of the 
mechanism by which the transfer shall take place; 

and the following issues with respect to affordable housing unless addressed 
via equivalent planning conditions(s) [the matter to be delegated to the 
Planning Manager].

The submission of an Affordable Housing Scheme to include:- 

 the delivery of 3 affordable houses (affordable rent); 
 the timing of the construction of the affordable units and the phasing in 

relation to the occupancy of the full market units; 
 the arrangements for the transfer of the affordable units to either a 

registered provider or details of the management of the affordable units if 
no registered provider is to be involved; 

 arrangements to ensure the affordable units are affordable for both first 
and subsequent occupiers; 

 the occupancy criteria;

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



 Agreement that any transfer of the affordable units to a registered 
provider shall be free from incumbrances unless otherwise agreed with 
the planning manager, then

(B) That planning permission be granted subject to the Standard Duration Limit 
and the following conditions:-

2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in all respects in 
accordance with the application dated 30th July 2019 as amended by 
the hereby approved plans and documents defined by this permission as 
listed below, except where varied by Condition 3 below:

Site Location Plan ref 19056_PL01_101
Existing Site Layout Site Layout ref 19056_PL01_102
Proposed Site Plan and Indicative Landscaping Plan ref 
19056_PL01_103 Rev A
Proposed Sections & 3D views ref 19056_PL01_104 rev A
Proposed Dwelling Type A (4 bed detached) ref 19056_PL01_105 rev A
Proposed Dwelling Type A (variant plot 18) ref 19056_PL01_105.1rev A
Proposed Dwelling Type B (4 bed detached) ref 19056_PL01_106 rev B
Proposed Dwelling Type B (variant plot 4) ref 19056_PL01_106.1rev A
Proposed Dwelling Type C (3 bed semi-detached) ref 19056_PL01_107 
rev A
Proposed Dwelling Types D&E( 3&4 bed semi-detached) ref 
19056_PL01_108 rev A
Proposed Dwelling Type F (4 bed semi-detached) ref 19056_PL01_109 
rev A
Proposed Dwelling Type G (4 bed detached) ref 19056_PL01_110 rev A
Proposed Dwelling Type H (3 bed bungalow) ref 19056_PL01_111 rev B
Boundary Treatment Plan ) ref 19056_PL01_112.1 rev B
Section A-A ref 19056_PL01_112.2
Fence Details 1 ref 19056_PL01_113.1
Fence Details 2 ref 19056_PL01_113.2
Road Layout ref 19056_PL01_201 rev B
Road Levels ref 19056_PL01_202 rev A
Carriageway longitudinals 19056_PL01_203
Typical Construction Details (1) Highways ref 19056_PL01_204
Typical Construction Details (2) Highways ref 19056_PL01_205
Typical Construction Details (3) Drives ref 19056_PL01_206
External Works Layout ref 19056_PL01_207 rev B
Proposed Sections ref 19056_PL01_208
Drainage Layout(1) ref 19056_PL01_301 rev B
Drainage Layout(2) ref 19056_PL01_302 rev A
Drainage Longitudinals (1) ref 19056_PL01_303 rev A

Page 18

Agenda Item 6



Drainage Longitudinals (2) ref 19056_PL01_304
Drainage Details (1) ref 19056_PL01_305
Pond Layout ref 19056_PL01_306 rev A
Pond Sections ref 19056_PL01_307
Pond Details ref 19056_PL01_308
Exeedance Route ref 19056_PL01_309 rev A
Impermeable Areas Plan ref 19056_PL01_310 rev A
Proposed Remediation ref 19524-5
Detailed Landscaping Proposals ref c-1765-01

Reason

In order to link the permission to the submitted application.

3. Development shall not commence until a Construction Phase Plan has 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning 
authority. The CPP shall include details of:

 pre-construction road condition for Lots Road (from the A595 to the 
site) established by a detailed survey for accommodation works 
within the highways boundary conducted with a Highway Authority 
representative; with all post repairs carried out to the satisfaction of 
the Local Highway Authority at the applicants expense;

 details of proposed crossings of the highway verge;
 retained areas for vehicle parking, manoeuvring, loading and 

unloading for their specific purpose during the development;
 cleaning of site entrances and the adjacent public highway;
 details of proposed wheel washing facilities;
 the sheeting of all HGVs taking spoil to/from the site to prevent 

spillage or deposit of any materials on the highway;
 construction vehicle routing;
 the management of junctions to and crossings of the public 

highway and other public rights of way/footway;
 Details of any proposed temporary access points (vehicular / 

pedestrian);
 surface water management details during the construction phase;
 specific measures to manage and limit the impact on the school, 

including working hours, any special measures to accommodate 
pedestrians;

[Note: deliveries and movement of equipment on the road network 
surrounding the site must not take place during school muster times in 
the interests of road safety]

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



Reason

To ensure the undertaking of the development does not adversely 
impact upon the fabric or operation of the local highway network and in 
the interests of highway and pedestrian safety.

To support Local Transport Plan Policies: WS3, LD4.

4. Foul and surface water drainage shall be provided prior to the 
occupation of any dwelling in accordance with the following documents:

External Works Layout ref 19056_PL01_207
Proposed Sections ref 19056_PL01_208
Drainage Layout(1) ref 19056_PL01_301
Drainage Layout(2) ref 19056_PL01_302
Drainage Longitudinals (1) ref 19056_PL01_303
Drainage Longitudinals (2) ref 19056_PL01_304
Drainage Details (1) ref 19056_PL01_305
Pond Layout ref 19056_PL01_306
Pond Sections ref 19056_PL01_307
Pond Details ref 19056_PL01_308

Reason

To ensure that there is an acceptable and sustainable means of foul and 
surface water disposal in place at an appropriate time.

5. Prior to the occupation of any dwelling hereby permitted a street lighting 
layout plan and details of the lighting columns, fittings and luminance 
levels shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Planning Authority. The street lighting layout plan shall address the 
lighting of the section of footway required under Condition 6 below. The 
approved scheme shall have been implemented in full prior to the 
occupation of any dwelling or in accordance with a phasing scheme 
which has been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning 
authority prior to the occupation of any dwelling.

Reason

To ensure adequate street lighting is provided.

6. Prior to the occupation of any dwelling a scheme for the provision of a 
footway along New Road linking the footway to be formed along the New 
Road frontage of the application site with the footway at on the east side 
of Alexander Place where it terminates at the junction of Alexander 
Place and New road shall have been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Planning Authority. The scheme shall include full 
construction details sufficient to meet the adoption standards of Cumbria 
County Council as Local Highway authority.

Page 20

Agenda Item 6



Reason

To ensure the development is integrated with the existing network of 
footways and to accord with Local Plan Policy I4.

7. The landscaping and bio diversity enhancement scheme as detailed in:

Detailed Landscape Proposals ref c-1765-01 [PDP Associates]
Boundary Treatment Plan ref 19056 _PL01_112.1 rev B
Bat and box details
Biodiversity Enhancement Strategy BEK-19524-4

shall have been implemented in accordance with a detailed programme 
to be submitted to and approved in writing with the Planning authority 
prior to the commencement of any development. Any trees, hedgerows 
or plants which within a period of five years from the completion of the 
development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or 
diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of a 
similar size and species, unless the Planning Authority gives prior written 
consent to any variation.

Reason

To ensure that the stated bio diversity enhancements are achieved to 
accord with the Council's Bio Diversity Supplementary Planning 
Document and to ensure that the agreed landscaping is delivered having 
regard to the visual amenities of the area.

8. The approved Remediation Scheme comprising Remediation Method 
Statement ref BEK-19524-3 (Dec 2019), Section 6 of Site Investigation & 
Ground Assessment ref BEK-19524-2 (July 2019), Ground Gas Risk 
Assessment ref BEK-18413-191007/JW (Oct 2019) and Proposed 
Remediation 600mm Clean Capping ref 19524-5 has been implemented 
and a verification report submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority for that particular plot.

Reason

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 
land, and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that 
the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other off-site receptors in accordance with 
Local Plan Policy C4.

9. No dwellings shall be occupied (unless in accordance with a scheme of 
phasing previously submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning 
Authority) until the estate road, including its footways, the footpaths 
through the open space linking the development with both New Road 
and Lots Road, and the footways along the site’s frontage with both Lots 

Page 21

Agenda Item 6



Road and New Road for the full extent of the site’s frontages and 
including the section required by Condition 6 above, has been 
constructed in all respects to base course level, and street lighting has 
been provided and brought into full operational use in accordance with 
details approved under Condition no 5 above, including any scheme of 
phasing.

Reason

To ensure a suitable level of access provision to the development and to 
accord with Policy of the Local Plan.

10. Details of all measures to be taken by the developer to prevent surface 
water discharging onto the highway shall be submitted to the Planning 
Authority for approval prior to the beneficial occupation of any part of the 
development. Any approved works shall be implemented prior to the 
occupation of the respective dwelling and shall be permanently 
maintained operational thereafter.

Reason

To minimise dangers to highway users from potential flooding and to 
give effect to the requirements of the County Council as Highway and 
Lead Local Flood Authority.

11. The surface water drainage system including the attenuation pond shall 
be maintained in accordance with the Sustainable Drainage & 
Management Plan attached as appendix G to the ‘Flood Risk 
Assessment & Detailed Drainage Strategy’ ref CN19056 dated 26th 
November 2020.

Reason

To ensure that management arrangements are in place for the 
sustainable drainage system in order to manage the risk of flooding and 
pollution during the lifetime of the development, to secure compliance 
with the consultation responses of the County Council as Lead Local 
Flood Authority.

12. No more than 15 dwellings shall be erected until a programme for the 
completion of the estate roads, footpaths and footways referred to under 
Conditions 6 and 9 above has been submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Planning Authority and which shall then be completed in 
accordance with the approved programme and the details approved 
under Conditions 2 and 6 above. If the estate roads, footways or 
footpaths are not to be adopted by the County Council as a public 
highway, then full details of the proposed arrangements for future 
management and maintenance of the proposed streets within the 
development shall, in addition to the aforementioned programme, be 
submitted to and approved by the Planning Authority prior to the 

Page 22

Agenda Item 6



occupation of the 20th dwelling. The streets shall thereafter be 
maintained in accordance with the approved management and 
maintenance details.

Reason

To ensure that the roads, footpaths and footways are completed and that 
measures are put in place for their retention and maintenance as public 
highways.

13. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out 
the approved development, that was not previously identified, it must be 
reported immediately to the Local Planning Authority. Development on 
the part of the site affected must be halted and Field Investigations shall 
be carried out. Where required by the Local Planning Authority, 
remediation and verification schemes shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These shall be 
implemented prior to occupation of the development.

Reason

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the 
land, and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to 
controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that 
the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to 
workers, neighbours and other off-site receptors Local Plan Policy C4.

14. No soil material is to be imported to or reused on the site until it has 
been tested for contamination and assessed for its suitability for the 
proposed development. A suitable methodology for testing this material 
should be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority 
prior to the soils being imported onto site. The methodology should 
include the sampling frequency, testing schedules, criteria against which 
the analytical results will be assessed (as determined by the risk 
assessment) and source material information. The analysis shall then be 
carried out as per the agreed methodology with verification of its 
completion submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.

Reason

To ensure that only suitable material is imported onto site.

15. No dwelling hereby permitted shall be occupied until the vehicular 
access and turning requirements to serve that particular dwelling have 
been constructed in accordance with the details approved under 
Condition 2 and has been brought into use. The vehicular access turning 
provisions shall be retained and capable of use at all times thereafter 
and shall not be removed or altered.

Page 23

Agenda Item 6



Reason

To ensure a minimum standard of access provision when the 
development is brought into use.

16. All vehicle parking spaces and the accesses thereto must be reserved 
for the parking of private motor vehicles and no permanent development, 
whether permitted by the Town & Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended) (or any Order 
revoking or re-enacting that Order with or without modifications) or not, 
shall be carried out on that area of land in such position as to preclude 
vehicular access to any part of the development hereby permitted.

Reason

To ensure that proper access and parking provision is made and 
retained for the use associated with the development hereby permitted.

17. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended) (or any 
Order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modifications) 
or not, including any provision in Article 3 or Schedule 2, Part Class B of 
that Order no two storey extension(s) or dormer extension(s) shall be 
added or formed in the rear elevation (west facing) of the dwelling 
erected on plot 24.

Reason

To ensure that any additional overlooking from high level windows can 
be properly considered as the separation distance between the dwelling 
hereby approved and properties to the rear is close to the minimum 
separation distance permitted by Local Plan Policy.

18. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended)(or any 
Order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modifications) 
or not, including any provision in Article 3 or Schedule 2, Part 2 Class B 
of that Order no vehicular access or accesses shall be formed onto 
either New Road or Lots Road.

Reason

A proliferation of individual house accesses would be detrimental to the 
safety of pedestrians and users of the adjacent highways, and would 
potentially result in vehicle parking in prominent locations to the 
unacceptable visual detriment of the street scene contrary to Local Plan 
Policies DS5.

19. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as amended)(or any 

Page 24

Agenda Item 6



Order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modifications) 
or not, including any provision in Article 3 or Schedule 2, Part 2 Class A 
of that Order no fencing shall be erected which would encroach into the 
wildlife corridor as shown on the Proposed Site Plan & Indicative 
Landscaping Plan ref 19056_PL01_103.

Reason

In order that the wildlife corridor remains as an open feature and that the 
net gain in bio-diversity is maintained in accordance with Local Plan 
Policies N3 and N4 and the Council’s Bio Diversity and Development 
SPD.

20. Prior to the commencement of any building works above DPC, samples 
of the external materials to be used in the construction of the external 
envelopes of the dwellings hereby approved shall have been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall then proceed in accordance with the approved 
details.

Reason

To ensure that the materials are sensitive to the location as required by 
Local Plan Policy DS5.

21. Affordable housing condition(s) if not included with the 106 
obligation/Undertaking [the matter to be delegated to the Planning 
Manager].

22. The development shall not commence until the approved access has 
been formed with Lots Road and the footway provided in accordance 
with details approved by the Local Planning Authority. Notwithstanding 
the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and re-
enacting that Order) relating to permitted development, no structure, 
vehicle or object of any kind shall be erected, parked or placed and no 
trees, bushes or other plants shall be planted or be permitted to grown 
within the visibility splay which obstruct the visibility splays. The visibility 
splays shall be constructed before general development of the site 
commences so that construction traffic is safeguarded.

Reason

In the interests of highway safety.

To support Local Transport Plan Policies: LD7, LD8

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



126 – Land opposite Greenhills Pond, Greystone Lane, Dalton-in-Furness

From Barker Properties Ltd in respect of an application for approval of reserved 
matters of access, appearance, landscaping, layout and scale following the grant of 
Outline planning permission 2018/0070 for the erection of up to 36 dwellings and 
approval of details reserved for subsequent approval by Conditions 7, 9, 10, 11, 12, 
13, 14, 16, 17, 21, 22, 23 and 24 on Land opposite Greenhills Pond, Greystone 
Lane, Dalton-in-Furness as shown on plan number 2019/0737.

Recommendations received and the results of consultations were reported.

It was moved by Councillor Mooney and seconded by Councillor McEwan, and

RESOLVED:- It was unanimously agreed that reserved matters approval be granted 
on completion of a modification of the Unilateral Obligation dated October 1st 2019 
in order for matters 1.2 (part of) and 1.3(c) to 1.3(e) reproduced below to be agreed 
prior to the commencement of development (currently worded as reserved mattes 
stage) and subject to a supplementary Unilateral Undertaking if considered 
necessary and subject to Condition No. 1.

For the purposes of Condition 1 of outline planning permission 2018/0070 the 
reserved matters approval is defined by the following approved plans and 
documents:

John Coward Architect drawing numbers:

18034-10D (house type 1)
18034-11D (site plan)
18034-12C (house type 3)
18034-13D (house type 2- affordable unit)
18034-14D (house type 4)
18034-15D (house type 5)
18034-16E (house type 6)
18034-17C (landscaping plan)
18034-18C (phasing plan)
Email dated 18/02/2020 from agent (JCA) confirming colour of render as off 
white
RG Parkins and Partners Ltd drawing numbers:
K36292/A1/101A (Proposed FFL’s and External Levels, Sheet 1 of 2)
K36292/A1/102A (Proposed FFL’s and External Levels, Sheet 2 of 2)
K36292/A1/103 (Proposed Highway’s Longitudinal Sections, Sheet 1 of 2)
K36292/A1/104 (Proposed Highway’s Longitudinal Sections, Sheet 2 of 2)
K36292/A1/105A (External Works Plan, Sheet 1 of 2)
K36292/A1/106A (External Works Plan, Sheet 2 of 2)
K36292/A1/107A (External Works Construction Details)
K36292/A1/151 (FW Pump Station Tanker Turning Swept Path)

Page 26

Agenda Item 6



Reason

To ensure the development is only carried out as approved and for the 
avoidance of doubt 

and that the following details be approved for the corresponding conditions

[Conditions 3, 4, 5, 8 & 15 withdrawn as per email from agent (JCA) sent on 
10/01/20.

Condition 6 (visibility splays)

RG Parkins and Partners Ltd drawing number K36292/A1/109 (S278 Works 
Layout and Construction Details).

Condition 7 (phasing of highway works to base course and street lighting)

JCA drawing number 18034-18C (phasing plan).

Condition 9 (access to remainder of allocated site)

JCA drawing numbers 18034-11C and 18034-17B (site plan and landscaping 
plan respectively).

RG Parkins and Partners Ltd drawing number K36292/A1/160.

Condition 10 (start of footpath link to Dunlin Drive)

JCA drawing numbers 18034-11C and 18034-17B (site plan and landscaping 
plan respectively).

RG Parkins and Partners Ltd drawing number K36292/A1/160.

Condition 11 (phasing for completion of highways)

JCA drawing number 18034-18C (phasing plan).

Condition 12 (surface water drainage)

RG Parkins and Partners Ltd:

K36292/A1/130 (Surface Water Catchment Plan)
K36292/A1/131A (Foul and Surface Water Drainage Plan Sheet 1 of 2)
K36292/A1/132B (Foul and Surface Water Drainage Plan (Sheet 2 of 2)
K36292/A1/140 (Exceedance Flow Route Plan)
K35004-01D-FRA-RH

Page 27

Agenda Item 6



Condition 13 (SUDS management and maintenance plan)

RG Parkins and Partners Ltd- K36292-01-O&M-JJ (Operations and 
Maintenance Plan for Sustainable Drainage Systems).

Condition 14 (measures to prevent surface water discharging onto the 
highway)

RG Parkins and Partners Ltd:

K36292/A1/130 (Surface Water Catchment Plan)
Page 156 of 168
K36292/A1/131A (Foul and Surface Water Drainage Plan Sheet 1 of 2)
K36292/A1/132B (Foul and Surface Water Drainage Plan (Sheet 2 of 2)
K36292/A1/140 (Exceedance Flow Route Plan)
K36292/A1/150 (Detention Basin Section and Details)
K35004-01D-FRA-RH.

Condition 16 (desk study into ground conditions/potential for contamination)

Arc Environmental: Phase 1 Desktop Study Report 19-315.

Condition 17 (field investigation & risk assessment)

Arc Environmental Phase 2 Ground Investigation Report 1-484.

Condition 21

Arc Environmental 19-484.01L Methodology for Verification of Imported Soils- 
Greystone Lane.

Condition 22 (hedgerow protection measures)

JCA drawing number 18034-17B (landscaping plan)
Envirotech Condition Discharge Document R4

Condition 23 (hedgerow management scheme)

JCA drawing number 18034-17B (landscaping plan)
Envirotech Condition Discharge Document R4
DS&H Fell Letter dated 5th February 2020
Trinity Management Proposal

Condition 24 (Bio diversity enhancement measures)

JCA drawing number 18034-17B (landscaping plan)
Envirotech Condition Discharge Document R4
Envirotech Newt Impacts Document
DS&H Fell Letter dated 5th February 2020

Page 28

Agenda Item 6



Condition 26 (Open space provision)

JCA drawing numbers 18034-11C and 18034-17B (site plan and landscaping 
plan respectively)

and that certain details be agreed as required under the Unilateral  
Undertaking datedOctober 1st, 2019.

With respect to Affordable Housing (paragraphs relate to the numbers used 
within the Undertaking):

1.2 details of the numbers of, the location, the dwelling type, proposed tenure 
and approx. floor area in square metres but excluding details of the 
proposed rent or price of the affordable units

- Number of units (4) and location defined by JCA drawing number 18034-11C 
(site plan), floor area defined by drawing no18034-13D (house type 2), 
proposed tenure (affordable rent) defined by letter from Home Group dated 
20th Feb 2020

1.3(a) no less than 10% to be affordable units

4 units proposed- JCA drawing numbers 18034-13D (house type 2) and 
18034-11C (site plan)

1.3(b) the timing of construction of the affordable units

to be completed prior to the completion of 18 market houses - JCA drawing 
number 18034-18D (phasing plan)

but excluding

1.2 (part of) details of the proposed rent or price of the affordable units

Not applied for/not approved

1.3(c) the arrangements for the transfer of the affordable units to either a 
register provider or the management of the affordable units

Not applied for/not approved

1.3(d) arrangements to ensure that the affordable units are affordable to both 
first and subsequent occupiers

Not applied for/not approved

1.3(e) the occupancy criteria to be used for determining the identity of 
occupiers of the affordable units and the means by which such 
occupancy criteria shall be enforced.

Page 29

Agenda Item 6



Not applied for/not approved

SUDs maintenance strategy

4.1) RG Parkins and Partners Ltd- K36292-01-O&M-JJ (Operations and 
Maintenance Plan for Sustainable Drainage Systems). 

Open space maintenance scheme 

5.1) Trinity Management Document dated 10th February 2020.

The meeting closed at 3.24 pm.

Page 30

Agenda Item 6



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
 
 
 
 

Delegated Decisions made between 
 
 

 
and 

 
 
 
 
 

For Information 
 

 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen, 
 
Town & Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) 
Planning (Listed buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 (as amended) 
Town & Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 
2015 (as amended) 
Town and County Planning (Control of Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007. 
 
The Planning applications in this report have been determined by the Development 
Services Manager (Planning) under delegated authority (Minute No. 107, Executive 
Committee, 7th February 2018, confirmed by Council 1st March 2018 (Minute No. 63). 
The decisions are reported for your information. 
 

 

 

 

Assistant Director of Regeneration and Built Environment 

23/06/2020

26/02/2020

10/06/2020

Page 31

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B21/2020/0053

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
20/03/2020

Location:
1 St Lukes Avenue, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria,
LA13 9TS

Proposal:
Single storey rear kitchen extension with flat roof
incorporating glass atrium/lantern.

Ward:
Risedale Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B21/2019/0806

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
10/03/2020

Location:
30 Market Street Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria LA15
8AA

Proposal:
Single storey extension (2 metres x 2 metres) to
rear elevation.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B28/2019/0693

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
03/04/2020

Location:
Sandscale Park Helipad Sandscale Park Barrow-
in-Furness Cumbria LA14 4QT

Proposal:
Application for approval of details reserved by
Condition No. 5 (noise mitigation) of planning
permission 2019/0388 Variation of condition no.4
(Flights not to exceed 6 per day) for planning
application B18/2017/0628 (Construction of a
temporary Operations and Maintenance (O&M)
Heliport Facility, on land off Sandscale
Park/Partylite Manufacturing.

Ward:
Ormsgill Ward

Parish:
Askam and
Ireleth Parish
Council

Case Officer:
Charles Wilton

Reference:
B18/2019/0755

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
04/03/2020

Location:
South End Caravan Park South End Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria LA14 3YQ

Proposal:
Erection of flood defence bund

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Page 32

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B21/2019/0818

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
16/03/2020

Location:
112 Victoria Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 5NL

Proposal:
Erection of a single storey rear extension forming a
kitchen and dining room.

Ward:
Ormsgill Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B18/2019/0820

Decision:
ALLOWED

Decision Date:
05/03/2020

Location:
Proposed Housing Development at Dalton Lane
Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Application to modify the Unilateral Undertaking
dated 2nd August 2017 (Section 106) to remove
the lifetime homes clause.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Charles Wilton

Reference:
B21/2020/0047

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
13/03/2020

Location:
61 Holbeck Park Avenue, Barrow-in-Furness,
Cumbria, LA13 0RG

Proposal:
Erection of a first floor front bedroom extension
and conversion of garage to lounge.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B21/2020/0149

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
05/05/2020

Location:
20 Dunmail Raise Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 4NA

Proposal:
Double storey side extension and ground floor
front extension to provide first floor bedroom and
en-suite, ground floor living room, shower room,
porch and extensions to kitchen and lounge.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Page 33

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B18/2020/0152

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
01/06/2020

Location:
119 and 121 Market Street Dalton-in-Furness
Cumbria LA15 8RE

Proposal:
Replacement Shop Fronts

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B21/2020/0200

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
12/05/2020

Location:
67 Coronation Drive Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria
LA15 8QJ

Proposal:
Application for removal of condition no. 2 (garaging
or parking of a private vehicle) of planning
application 2002/0632 (Erection of a detached
garage) to allow for the conversion of the garage to
a bedroom

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B21/2020/0032

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
06/03/2020

Location:
24 Dowie Close, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria,
LA13 0SZ

Proposal:
Conversion of existing garage into new kitchen;
construction of new ground floor store to front of
property; first floor side extension to allow for re-
organisation of bedrooms.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B15/2020/0096

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
19/05/2020

Location:
Bouthwood Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Erection of a steel framed industrial unit

Ward:
Ormsgill Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Page 34

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B21/2020/0048

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
30/04/2020

Location:
7 Ann Street Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria LA15
8BG

Proposal:
Demolish garage, porch and covered area and
build a two storey extension with porch and sun
room.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
BPA8/2020/00
11

Decision:
PRIOR
APPROVAL
NOT
REQUIRED

Decision Date:
03/03/2020

Location:
103 105 Abbey Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 5EX

Proposal:
An application to determine if prior approval is
required for a proposed:Change of Use from
Offices (Class B1(a) to 2no. Residential units (C3).

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
BPA8/2020/00
12

Decision:
PRIOR
APPROVAL
NOT
REQUIRED

Decision Date:
03/03/2020

Location:
103 105 Abbey Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 5EX

Proposal:
An application to determine if prior approval is
required for a proposed Change of Use from
Offices Class B1(a) to 9 no. Residential units (C3).

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B21/2020/0161

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
27/04/2020

Location:
51 Dane Avenue Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14
4JY

Proposal:
Removal of existing corrugated sheet garage roof
and replacement with tiled pitched roof to match
house.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Page 35

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B21/2020/0167

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
05/05/2020

Location:
7 Redshaw Avenue, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria,
LA13 0SU

Proposal:
Conversion of the garage to a study and
replacement of garage door with french doors.
(part retrospective)

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B21/2020/0025

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
01/04/2020

Location:
40 Romney Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 5DF

Proposal:
Erection of a rear single storey extension forming a
sunroom to replace a conservatory.

Ward:
Ormsgill Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B28/2020/0092

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
07/04/2020

Location:
Vicarage Market Place Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria
LA15 8AZ

Proposal:
Application for works to trees within a conservation
area to Fell T1, T2, T3 (conifer trees), remove
lower limb on north east side to improve shape T4
(Larch) and to reduce to allow more light to T5
(Ash

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Charles Wilton

Reference:
B21/2020/0124

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
29/04/2020

Location:
7 Redmayne Avenue Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 4JU

Proposal:
Loft conversion with rear dormer and gable ends in
place of existing hip roof, to provide two bedrooms
and bathroom.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Page 36

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B28/2020/9002

Decision:
COMMSENT

Decision Date:
27/03/2020

Location:
Sinkfall Farm Waste Transfer Station Rakesmoor
Lane Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Erection of a building for storage and bailing of
waste associated with the recycling transfer centre
(County Matter)

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jason Hipkiss

Reference:
B21/2020/0166

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
24/04/2020

Location:
18 Tennyson Avenue, Barrow-in-Furness,
Cumbria, LA13 9TX

Proposal:
Erection of single storey rear extension.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B31/2020/0253

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
28/05/2020

Location:
Co-operative Retail Services,Abbey Road,Barrow-
in-Furness, Cumbria,LA14 5LF

Proposal:
Application for a non-material amendment
following grant of planning permission
B20/2019/0567 (Change of use of hotel function
room to retail A1 to form new retail store, along
side external alterations, associated parking and
service yard) to allow for the reposition of the
proposed ground floor external plant to the area at
corner of Furness Park Road and Grasmere Road.

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Reference:
B28/2020/0255

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
24/04/2020

Location:
82 Dalton Road, Barrow-in-Furness,
Cumbria,LA14 1JH

Proposal:
Discharge of condition no.3 (Construction Method
Statement) for planning permission B13/2018/0565
_ Reduction of retail space/conversion of
remaining retail space (Use class A1) to four 1
bedroom flats and one 2 bedroom flat (Use Class
C3)

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Page 37

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B13/2019/0847

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
17/03/2020

Location:
Burnett Edgar Medical Centre Central Drive
Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 3HY

Proposal:
Outline planning permission with all matters
reserved to convert redundant medical facility
associated with the Burnett Edgar Centre to a
habitable dwelling.

Ward:
Walney North
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B31/2020/0267

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
08/06/2020

Location:
Former Frankie and Benny's premises, Hindpool
Retail Park, Hindpool Road, Barrow-in-Furness,
Cumbria, LA14 2PD

Proposal:
Application for a non-material amendment
following grant of planning permission
B18/2019/0462 proposing a minor change to the
roof profile of the unit, resulting in the alteration to
the front and drive-through elevations (amended
description)

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Reference:
B20/2020/0065

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
19/03/2020

Location:
44 Church Street, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria,
LA14 2HY

Proposal:
Conversion of residential dwelling house (C3) into
a large house in multiple occupation with 8 units
(Use Class Sui Generis)

Ward:
Central Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B26/2020/0064

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
01/04/2020

Location:
6 Concle Terrace, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria,
LA13 0QF

Proposal:
Application for a Certificate of Lawfulness of
Proposed Use or Development (CLOPUD) for a
change of use from dwelling (Use class C3) to
residential institution (Use class C2)

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Page 38

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B13/2020/0073

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
25/03/2020

Location:
17 Macadam Street, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria,
LA14 2AU

Proposal:
Conversion of dwelling to 2 no. 1 bedroom self-
contained dwellings

Ward:
Central Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B20/2020/0185

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
15/05/2020

Location:
Unit 4, Corner House Park, Hindpool Road,
Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria, LA14 2NE

Proposal:
Proposed change of use from Class A1 use (retail)
to Class D2 use (gym), reconfiguration of existing
mezzanine floor and insertion of additional
mezzanine floorspace, new cycle parking and
associated works.

Ward:
Central Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Reference:
B26/2020/0056

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
23/03/2020

Location:
9 Miller Close Newton-in-Furness Cumbria LA13
0NE

Proposal:
Application for a Certificate of Lawfulness of
Proposed Use or Development (CLOPUD)
Proposed garage conversion to form ancillary
domestic accommodation.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B21/2020/0037

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
07/04/2020

Location:
13 North Row, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria, LA13
0HE

Proposal:
Erection of first floor rear extension to form
bedroom and en-suite.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Page 39

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B21/2020/0036

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
01/04/2020

Location:
42 Dane Avenue Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14
4JY

Proposal:
Erection of a rear ground floor kitchen/diner with
utility and wet room incorporating a flat roof with a
parapet wall and glass atrium/lantern.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
BPAB/2020/02
45

Decision:
PRIOR
APPROVAL
NOT
REQUIRED

Decision Date:
20/05/2020

Location:
57 Sharp Street Askam-in-Furness Cumbria LA16
7BN

Proposal:
Prior Approval for a Change of use from retail (A1)
to Residential (C3) The proposed development
will create one residentail unit incorporating the
ground floor shop and first floor flat into one
dwelling house

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Parish:
Askam and
Ireleth Parish
Council

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B18/2020/0134

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
30/04/2020

Location:
North Stank House Newton Cross Road Newton-
in-Furness Cumbria LA13 0ED

Proposal:
Erection of a new 3 bay garage

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B21/2020/0154

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
14/05/2020

Location:
3 Stoneleigh Close, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria,
LA13 9UR

Proposal:
Provision of front dormer and conversion of garage
to living room with associated external alterations.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Page 40

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B21/2020/0186

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
07/05/2020

Location:
67 Hawcoat Lane Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 4HQ

Proposal:
Rear and side kitchen/living area extension

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B21/2020/0004

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
13/03/2020

Location:
48 Latona Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14
3QS

Proposal:
Single storey rear extension to form extended
kitchen and dining area.

Ward:
Walney North
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B28/2020/0105

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
09/04/2020

Location:
10 The Green Lindal-in-Furness Cumbria LA12
0LX

Proposal:
Application for approval of details reserved by
Condition No. 4 (Materials for end wall of the
extension) for planning permission B21/2019/0312
(Rear single storey extension and demolition of
outbuilding)

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Parish:
Lindal and
Marton Parish
Council

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B23/2020/0233

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
20/05/2020

Location:
Building A45 at BAE Systems Bridge Road
Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 1AF

Proposal:
Listed Building Consent to replace existing
windows and sheet cladding to rear facing
elevation

Ward:
Barrow Island
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Page 41

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B20/2020/0005

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
12/05/2020

Location:
138 Cavendish Street, Barrow-in-Furness,
Cumbria, LA14 1DJ

Proposal:
Change of use of vacant ground floor shop to a
one bedroom flat.

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B21/2020/0010

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
16/03/2020

Location:
9 Miller Close Newton-in-Furness Cumbria LA13
0NE

Proposal:
Two storey side extension forming garage,
workshop and additional bedroom.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B20/2020/0079

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
24/03/2020

Location:
Manhattans Nightclub, Cavendish Street, Barrow-
in-Furness, Cumbria

Proposal:
Change of use of 20m2 of ground floor area to
form take-away food area

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B18/2020/0157

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
12/05/2020

Location:
247 Rawlinson Street, Barrow-in-Furness,
Cumbria, LA14 1DW

Proposal:
Alterations to frontage including provision of new
shopfront and provision of flat roofed dormer to
front and rear.

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Page 42

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B21/2020/0191

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
28/04/2020

Location:
24 Piel Street Roa Island Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0QJ

Proposal:
Two storey side extension to existing 2 bedroom
dwelling (Resubmission of B21/2019/0656 to a
revised scheme to include full width single storey
flat roof extension to front elevation)

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B22/2020/0022

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
12/03/2020

Location:
Tesco Stores, Corner House Park, Hindpool Road,
Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria, LA14 2NE

Proposal:
Advertisement consent to display 1 x 42" LCD
media screen and 3 x 1250mm x 700mm flag pole
signs, overall 2450mm in height (retrospective)

Ward:
Central Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B22/2020/0026

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
04/03/2020

Location:
Gilmour Engineering Bouthwood Road Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria LA14 4HB

Proposal:
Advertisement consent to display an externally
illuminated sign

Ward:
Ormsgill Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B21/2020/0034

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
15/04/2020

Location:
11 Grantley Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 5QE

Proposal:
Proposed loft conversion and rear single storey
extension

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Page 43

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B21/2020/0046

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
19/03/2020

Location:
46 Strathaird Avenue Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 3DE

Proposal:
Construction of a flat roofed rear sun room
extension.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B21/2020/0193

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
29/05/2020

Location:
13 Tudor Square Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria LA15
8RJ

Proposal:
Replacement of hardwood front door, wood stain in
colour with hardwood painted door.  Replacement
of two hardwood front windows painted in white,
with two white hardwood painted windows (like for
like)

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Jason Hipkiss

Reference:
B21/2020/0035

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
16/03/2020

Location:
28 London Road Lindal-in-Furness Cumbria LA12
0LL

Proposal:
Single storey side/rear extension and covered
porch to front elevation (Re-submission of
B21/2019/0701)

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Parish:
Lindal and
Marton Parish
Council

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B21/2019/0848

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
14/04/2020

Location:
Kingsmead, Rampside, Barrow-in-Furness,
Cumbria,  LA13 0PU

Proposal:
Front extension to provide living area and two
bedrooms and erection of a front conservatory.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Page 44

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B21/2020/0106

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
24/04/2020

Location:
Parkfield Cottage, Rampside Road, Barrow-in-
Furness, Cumbria, LA13 0PT

Proposal:
Erection or replacement detached garage with
pitched slate roof and  front porch .

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B28/2020/0087

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
25/03/2020

Location:
Abbey House Hotel, Abbey Road, Barrow-in-
Furness, Cumbria, LA13 0PA

Proposal:
Application for works to trees subject of Tree
Preservation Order 2013 No. 1 Group 2 (T1 and
T2 shown on the provided plan) to fell 2 spruce
trees in poor condition.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Reference:
B18/2020/0169

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
20/05/2020

Location:
Main Entrance at BAE Systems, Bridge Road,
Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria,LA14 1AF

Proposal:
Installation of replacement front entrance with
canopy over and alterations to side and rear
elevation doorways.

Ward:
Barrow Island
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Reference:
B21/2020/0057

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
21/04/2020

Location:
5 Yarlside Road, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria,
LA13 0ES

Proposal:
First floor side extension forming enlarged
bedroom, en-suite and walk in wardrobe and single
storey ground floor rear extension forming
extended kitchen and dining area

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Page 45

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B28/2020/0163

Decision:
APPROVED

Decision Date:
03/04/2020

Location:
Hayeswater Drive Cemetery Hill Dalton-in-Furness
Cumbria

Proposal:
Application for approval of details reserved by
Condition No. 12 (programme for the completion of
the estate road of planning permission
B07/2016/0126 (development of 13 dwellings)

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Charles Wilton

Reference:
B28/2020/0164

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
13/05/2020

Location:
29 Shelley Drive, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria,
LA13 9UD

Proposal:
Application for works to tree subject to  Tree
Preservation Order 2008 No.4.-reduce sycamore
(numbered T1) by 2 metres on overall crown and
thin out.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B21/2020/0178

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
03/06/2020

Location:
1 Infield Crescent, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria,
LA13 9JP

Proposal:
Proposed rear boundary wall (1770mm above
pavement level)

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B23/2020/0168

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
20/05/2020

Location:
Main Entrance at BAE Systems, Bridge Road,
Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria, LA14 1AF

Proposal:
Listed building consent to remove the existing
GRP cladding on Bridge Road elevation and install
replacement double  glazed frontage  with steel
and glass canopy over and installation of  new
reception interior. Rear elevation works to include
replacement glazing, alteration of window to door
and installation of canopy. Alterations to side
elevation to include alterations to side elevation to
include replacement door arrangement.

Ward:
Barrow Island
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Page 46

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B21/2020/0201

Decision:
REFUSED

Decision Date:
02/06/2020

Location:
36 Oak Head Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 3EZ

Proposal:
Erection of a two storey side extension forming
ground floor lobby, store/office and wc/utility/plant
room, first floor master bedroom and en-suite,
conversion of loft to bedroom and rear ground floor
family room (re-submission of 2019/0153 in a
revised form)

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B21/2019/0879

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
01/04/2020

Location:
26 Marsh Street Askam-in-Furness Cumbria LA16
7BE

Proposal:
Rear extension, dormer extension and internal
reconfiguration.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Parish:
Askam and
Ireleth Parish
Council

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Reference:
B21/2020/0049

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
09/03/2020

Location:
Low Wynds, Page Bank Lane,Barrow-in-Furness,
Cumbria LA13 0QR

Proposal:
Two storey side extension with side dormer.
Ground floor with Living Room / Dining area, Utility
Room, Study and Bathroom. First floor with Master
Bedroom, En-suite and walk-in wardrobe.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B18/2020/0234

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
20/05/2020

Location:
Building A45 at BAE Systems Bridge Road
Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 1AF

Proposal:
Replacement of existing windows and sheet
cladding to rear facing elevation.

Ward:
Barrow Island
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Page 47

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B28/2020/0236

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
02/06/2020

Location:
Aurora Bay, Concle Terrace, Barrow-in-Furness,
Cumbria, LA13 0QF

Proposal:
Application for approval of details reserved by
Condition No.3 (Surface Water Disposal Scheme)
for planning permission B13/2017/0726

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B20/2020/0179

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
28/04/2020

Location:
121 Rawlinson Street, Barrow-in-Furness,
Cumbria, LA14 2DN

Proposal:
Change of use from Shop (A1) to Non-residential
Learning Facility (D1)

Ward:
Central Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Jennifer
Dickinson

Reference:
B23/2020/0228

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
19/05/2020

Location:
82 Ormsgill Lane, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria,
LA14 4BJ

Proposal:
Listed Building Consent for roof repairs and
replacement (existing slate to be salvaged as
much as possible), replacement cast iron gutters in
like for like design and provision of external boiler
flue to rear-facing (south) elevation(amended
description).

Ward:
Ormsgill Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Reference:
B21/2020/0042

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
15/04/2020

Location:
5 Stainton Drive Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria LA15
8XA

Proposal:
Erection of a rear and side extension to provide
living area, utility room and wc.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Parish:
Dalton Town
with Newton
Parish Council

Case Officer:
Barry Jesson

Page 48

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Reference:
B21/2020/0133

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
19/05/2020

Location:
110 Holbeck Park Avenue, Barrow-in-Furness,
Cumbria, LA13 0SB

Proposal:
First floor bedroom extension above existing
garage/utility room and front porch

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Reference:
B18/2020/0188

Decision:
APPCOND

Decision Date:
09/06/2020

Location:
Barrow Associated Football Supporters Club,
Wilkie Road, Barrow-in-Furness, Cumbria, LA14
5UQ

Proposal:
Erection of a blue and white plastic coated steel
sheet roof over Holker Street terrace.

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Parish:
N/A

Case Officer:
Maureen Smith

Page 49

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 23/06/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0160

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
26/02/2020

Location:
65 Rawlinson Street Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 2DT

Proposal:
Form new door opening into existing
outhouse, alterations to door opening in
kitchen and form new opening in stairs.

Ward:
Central Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
26/02/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0186

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
24/03/2020

Location:
67 Hawcoat Lane Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 4HQ

Proposal:
Rear living/ kitchen extension.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
02/04/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0049

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
13/05/2020

Location:
Low Wynds Page Bank Lane Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria LA13 0QR

Proposal:
Two storey side extension.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
13/05/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0040

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
13/01/2020

Location:
243 Dalton Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 1PQ

Proposal:
Reduction of retail space/ conversion of
remaining retail into 8 bed HMO.

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
27/02/2020

Page 50

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 23/06/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0052/
MAST

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
15/01/2020

Location:
Proposed Housing Site at Land Toid
1000000222574242 Roose Road Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
Erection of Four Semi Detached Houses.

Ward:
Risedale Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
27/02/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0133

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
18/02/2020

Location:
110 Holbeck Park Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0SB

Proposal:
First floor bedroom extension above existing
garage/ utility room and front porch.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
19/03/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0095

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
06/02/2020

Location:
54 Victoria Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 5LA

Proposal:
New down stairs W.C. and associated
drainage, upgrade roof insulation to existing
rear extension and removal of load bearing
wall.

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
12/03/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0097

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
06/02/2020

Location:
23 Biggar Village Walney Island Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria LA14 3YG

Proposal:
Rear single storey flat roof extension for use
as a utility room WC.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
18/03/2020

Page 51

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 23/06/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0029

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
09/01/2020

Location:
Building C08 BAE Systems Bridge Road
Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 1AF

Proposal:
Refurbishment of basement area to form
offices, locker room, shower rooms, kitchen/
mess room including tanking work, erection of
partitions, suspended ceiling, door openings
through structural walls, access ramp,
drainage, heating, ventilation and electrical
installations, new windows.

Ward:
Barrow Island
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
09/03/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0071

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
27/01/2020

Location:
7 Norland Avenue Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 4EN

Proposal:
Single storey side and rear extension.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
12/03/2020

Reference
Number:
RA/2019/0875

Application
Type:
Regularisation

Received:
12/12/2019

Location:
22 Yarlside Crescent Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0EZ

Proposal:
Renovation of existing extension/
conservatory. Replacement of polycarbonate
roof with fibreglass warm roof. Rearrange and
replace double glazed windows and access
doors. Insulate existing cavity walls and floor.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Regular

Decision
Date:
11/03/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0174

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
04/03/2020

Location:
23 Aspen Drive Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 0RL

Proposal:
Conversion of rear conservatory into kitchen/
living area.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
28/04/2020

Page 52

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 23/06/2020

Reference
Number:
RA/2020/0196

Application
Type:
Regularisation

Received:
12/03/2020

Location:
142 Duke Street Askam-in-Furness Cumbria
LA16 7AE

Proposal:
Existing conservatory replaced with Warm
roof.  Right side dwarf wall extended to full
wall. Left dwarf wall removed and replaced
with sliding patio doors.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Decision:
Regular

Decision
Date:
02/06/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0090

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
04/02/2020

Location:
D58 BAE Systems Bridge Road Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria LA14 1AF

Proposal:
Facility providing support to the specialised
manufacturing activities, including an
installation and build facility, offices and
welfare accommodation.

Ward:
Barrow Island
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
17/03/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0115

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
12/02/2020

Location:
14A Ireleth Court Road Ireleth Askam-in-
Furness Cumbria LA16 7EN

Proposal:
Side extension.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
09/04/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0242

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
03/04/2020

Location:
Risedale Retirement Home Abbey Road
Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 5LE

Proposal:
First floor extension to form sluice room and
bedroom.

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
18/05/2020

Page 53

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 23/06/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0124

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
17/02/2020

Location:
7 Redmayne Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 4JU

Proposal:
First floor loft conversion with rear dormer to
provide two bedrooms and shower room.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Decision:
Approved

Decision
Date:
17/04/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0129

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
17/02/2020

Location:
51 Yarlside Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 0EX

Proposal:
Rear single storey extension and side store
extension.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
05/03/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0269

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
27/04/2020

Location:
36 Oak Head Road Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 3EZ

Proposal:
Two storey side extension with pitched roof,
rear single storey extension with flat roof and
loft conversion.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
27/04/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0270

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
27/04/2020

Location:
47 Cleater Street Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria
LA15 8RU

Proposal:
Replacing current velux window and fitting two
additional velux windows in previously
converted attic space.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
27/04/2020

Page 54

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 23/06/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0149

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
24/02/2020

Location:
20 Dunmail Raise Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 4NA

Proposal:
Double storey side extension and ground floor
front extension.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
03/04/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0158

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
26/02/2020

Location:
36 Ramsgate Crescent Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 3JD

Proposal:
Ground floor bedroom extension and
installation of patio doors.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
26/02/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0159

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
26/02/2020

Location:
4 Kestrel Drive Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria
LA15 8QA

Proposal:
Installing multi fuel DEFRA stove/ woodburner.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
26/02/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0165

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
02/03/2020

Location:
36 Avon Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 3EL

Proposal:
Removal of internal wall between living room
and dining room and partial removal of a
pantry wall to increase area of the dining
room.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
02/03/2020

Page 55

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 23/06/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0182

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
09/03/2020

Location:
9 Bourne Gardens Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 3UY

Proposal:
Proposed double storey side extension, rear
single storey forming sunroom and front single
storey forming porch and wetroom.

Ward:
Walney North
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
30/03/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0183

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
09/03/2020

Location:
27 Cardiff Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 3AQ

Proposal:
removal of dining room/kitchen beam and
removal of chimney breast.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
09/03/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0204

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
16/03/2020

Location:
40 Gloucester Street Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 9RX

Proposal:
Installation of through floor lift.

Ward:
Risedale Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
16/03/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0287

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
12/05/2020

Location:
18 School Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 2JN

Proposal:
Refurbishment of three flats.

Ward:
Central Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
12/05/2020

Page 56

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 23/06/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0302

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
21/05/2020

Location:
45 Lyndale Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 9AR

Proposal:
Kitchen and utility room extension.

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
21/05/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0307

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
22/05/2020

Location:
11 Thirlmere Close Dalton-in-Furness
Cumbria LA15 8QS

Proposal:
New structural opening, formation of
downstairs WC and replacement windows and
doors.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
22/05/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0308

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
22/05/2020

Location:
6 Norland Avenue Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 4EL

Proposal:
Alterations to form utility room and WC.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
22/05/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0309

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
22/05/2020

Location:
33 Abbey Heights Ireleth Askam-in-Furness
Cumbria LA16 7HT

Proposal:
Light weight conservatory roof system.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
22/05/2020

Page 57

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 23/06/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0198

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
17/03/2020

Location:
9 Kirkby Close Ireleth Askam-in-Furness
Cumbria LA16 7HH

Proposal:
Internal alterations, extension of existing
garage, utility room to rear of garage and
replacement windows and doors,

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
17/03/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0209

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
17/03/2020

Location:
48 Parklands Drive Askam-in-Furness
Cumbria LA16 7JP

Proposal:
Single storey rear extension.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
12/05/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0210

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
17/03/2020

Location:
1 Dane Ghyll Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 4PZ

Proposal:
Removal of dividing wall between kitchen and
dining room, replace kitchen window with
french doors and lower dining room window
height.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
17/03/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0248

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
08/04/2020

Location:
44 Church Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 2HY

Proposal:
Conversion of residential dwelling into an 8
bedroom HMO.

Ward:
Central Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
27/05/2020

Page 58

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 23/06/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0259

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
17/04/2020

Location:
A45 BAE Systems Bridge Road Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria LA14 1AF

Proposal:
Replacement windows and cladding

Ward:
Barrow Island
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
18/05/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0276

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
30/04/2020

Location:
22 Durham Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 9SR

Proposal:
Removal of wall between dining and living
room and block doorway.

Ward:
Risedale Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
30/04/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0298

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
19/05/2020

Location:
71 Ainslie Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 5AY

Proposal:
Formation of 5 bed HMO.

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
19/05/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0299

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
19/05/2020

Location:
2 Beech Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 5EB

Proposal:
Convert house to 5 bed HMO.

Ward:
Ormsgill Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
19/05/2020

Page 59

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 23/06/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0200

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
19/05/2020

Location:
67 Coronation Drive Dalton-in-Furness
Cumbria LA15 8QJ

Proposal:
Conversion of garage to bedroom and utility
room.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
19/05/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0303

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
21/05/2020

Location:
48 Coronation Drive Dalton-in-Furness
Cumbria LA15 8QN

Proposal:
Single storey extension.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
21/05/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0324

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
02/06/2020

Location:
177 Greengate Street Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 9BT

Proposal:
Removal of chimney stack from roof to ground
floor, internal alterations to form one larger
bedroom and one kitchen area and the
installation of a lift.

Ward:
Parkside Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
02/06/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0131

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
18/02/2020

Location:
12 Highlands Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0AU

Proposal:
Single storey wet room extension.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
18/03/2020

Page 60

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 23/06/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0155

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
25/02/2020

Location:
4 Litchmead Grove Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 9JH

Proposal:
Side utility room extension, new flat roof to
rear and removal of internal walls.

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Approved

Decision
Date:
26/03/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0173

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
04/03/2020

Location:
41 Devon Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 9PX

Proposal:
Rewire of property

Ward:
Risedale Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
04/03/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0224

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
23/03/2020

Location:
10 Keswick Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 4LL

Proposal:
Single storey kitchen and dining extension.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
17/04/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0063

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
23/01/2020

Location:
11 London Road Lindal-in-Furness Cumbria
LA12 0LL

Proposal:
Two storey rear extension, single storey flat
roofed extension and upgrading existing loft
rooms.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
12/03/2020

Page 61

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 23/06/2020

Reference
Number:
PI/2020/0126

Application
Type:
Partner
Authority
Inspections

Received:
17/02/2020

Location:
St Georges House Salthouse Road Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria LA14 2JJ

Proposal:
Internal alterations to stair case.

Ward:
Central Ward

Decision:
Approved

Decision
Date:
03/03/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0069

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
27/01/2020

Location:
27 Holbeck Park Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0RE

Proposal:
Rear extension.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Approved

Decision
Date:
09/03/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0108

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
10/02/2020

Location:
13 Caspian Road Askam-in-Furness Cumbria
LA16 7HW

Proposal:
Single storey rear extension and second
storey side extension above the existing
garage.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
18/03/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0111

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
11/02/2020

Location:
18 Tennyson Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 9TX

Proposal:
Rear sun lounge extension

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
05/03/2020

Page 62

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 23/06/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0175

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
04/03/2020

Location:
Furness General Hospital Dalton Lane
Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 4LF

Proposal:
Refurbishment of office accommodation to
levels 2, 3, 4 and 5.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
03/04/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0176

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
04/03/2020

Location:
7 Garden Lea Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria
LA15 8PJ

Proposal:
Erection of new attached garage.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
04/03/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0195

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
12/03/2020

Location:
67 John Street Askam-in-Furness Cumbria
LA16 7BJ

Proposal:
Re-positioning of stairs and first floor trimming.
Renewal of all ground floors. Thermal upgrade
to all external walls.  New structural opening
for rear door and renewal of all glazing.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
12/03/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0211

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
18/03/2020

Location:
36 Avon Street Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 3EL

Proposal:
Removal of internal wall between living and
dining room, partial removal of wall separating
dining room and pantry, installation of en-suite
in the front bedroom, thermal upgrade of
external walls and replacement windows to
front elevation.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
18/03/2020

Page 63

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 23/06/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0212

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
18/03/2020

Location:
11 Abercorn Street Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 2QS

Proposal:
Replacement windows and doors, create new
structural opening into kitchen and bathroom
and form new stud to rear bedroom.

Ward:
Barrow Island
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
18/03/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0213

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
18/03/2020

Location:
Barrow Celtic Football Club Newby Terrace
Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
New club house.

Ward:
Ormsgill Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
15/05/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0214

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
18/03/2020

Location:
13 Headland Rise Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 3YP

Proposal:
Rear single storey extension.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
12/05/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0246

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
08/04/2020

Location:
Proposed house at land toid
5000005175832244 Land to the rear 32
Sandy Lane Askam-in-Furness Cumbria

Proposal:
New detached dwelling.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
04/05/2020

Page 64

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 23/06/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0184

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
08/04/2020

Location:
83 Yarlside Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 0EX

Proposal:
Single storey side and rear extension.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
30/04/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0314

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
27/05/2020

Location:
79 Hawcoat Lane Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 4HQ

Proposal:
Removal of walls between kitchen and dining
room and creation of opening for bi-fold doors.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
27/05/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0144

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
20/02/2020

Location:
19 Rawlinson Street Dalton-in-Furness
Cumbria LA15 8AL

Proposal:
Conversion of dwelling to small HMO.

Ward:
Dalton North
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
17/04/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0162

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
27/02/2020

Location:
30 Market Street Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria
LA15 8AA

Proposal:
Single storey extension

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
27/02/2020

Page 65

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 23/06/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0203

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
16/03/2020

Location:
85 Redoak Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 0RN

Proposal:
Rear single storey kitchen extension

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
12/05/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0190

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
11/03/2020

Location:
54 Cowlarns Road Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 4HJ

Proposal:
Removal of load bearing wall and fitting of an
RSJ.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
11/03/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0205

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
16/03/2020

Location:
Ramsden Infant School Thwaite Street
Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria LA14 1AN

Proposal:
Side extension to provide nursery classroom
with associated kitchen/ staff room and
separate entrance.

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
30/04/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0206

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
16/03/2020

Location:
20 Shelley Drive Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 9UD

Proposal:
Rear single storey extension

Ward:
Newbarns
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
30/03/2020

Page 66

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 23/06/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0207

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
16/03/2020

Location:
19 Hawcoat Lane Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 4HE

Proposal:
Rear ground floor extension.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
16/03/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0217

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
19/03/2020

Location:
5 Crooklands Terrace Dalton-in-Furness
Cumbria LA15 8HD

Proposal:
Two storey side extension and front/ rear
dormers and garage with decking area over.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
18/05/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0218

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
19/03/2020

Location:
46 Strathaird Avenue Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 3DE

Proposal:
Rear single storey extension and provision of
down stairs WC.

Ward:
Walney South
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
12/05/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0320

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
01/06/2020

Location:
15 Dane Avenue Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 4JS

Proposal:
Installation of gallow bracket to support
chimney breast in loft space.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
01/06/2020

Page 67

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 23/06/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0222

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
23/03/2020

Location:
2 Dane Ghyll Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 4PZ

Proposal:
Single storey garage and living room
extension and internal alterations.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
30/04/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0235

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
30/03/2020

Location:
12 Crozier Close Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA13 9QJ

Proposal:
Construction of single storey rear extension
and associated internal alterations to form
open plan living/ kitchen. dining space.

Ward:
Risedale Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
08/04/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0243

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
03/04/2020

Location:
14 Brent Avenue Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria
LA15 8QF

Proposal:
Loft conversion.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
28/04/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0244

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
03/04/2020

Location:
Spring Mount Christian Fellowship, Salthouse
Pavilion Roose Road Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA13 9RQ

Proposal:
Construction of new access ramp.

Ward:
Risedale Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
30/04/2020

Page 68

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 23/06/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0258

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
17/04/2020

Location:
1 Green Lane Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria
LA15 8LZ

Proposal:
Single storey kitchen/dining extension.

Ward:
Dalton South
Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
17/04/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0177

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
04/03/2020

Location:
Kimberley Clark Park Road Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 4QX

Proposal:
Line 7 Building Extension.

Ward:
Ormsgill Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
28/04/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0295

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
18/05/2020

Location:
112 Victoria Road Barrow-in-Furness Cumbria
LA14 5NL

Proposal:
Rear extension.

Ward:
Ormsgill Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
18/05/2020

Reference
Number:
BV/2020/0023

Application
Type:
Building Notice
Vatable

Received:
03/06/2020

Location:
Oak Lea Cottage Oak Lea Road Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria LA14 4QW

Proposal:
Two storey side extension.

Ward:
Hawcoat Ward

Decision:
Accepted

Decision
Date:
03/06/2020

Page 69

Agenda Item 7



   

 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   

Committee Date : 23/06/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0247

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
08/04/2020

Location:
82 84 Church Street Barrow-in-Furness
Cumbria LA14 2HJ

Proposal:
Conversion of ground floor to 5 bed HMO.

Ward:
Central Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
27/05/2020

Reference
Number:
RA/2020/0225

Application
Type:
Regularisation

Received:
23/03/2020

Location:
Tea Tree House 6A Rampside Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria LA13 0PY

Proposal:
Construction of stud wall to enlarge existing
box bedroom.

Ward:
Roosecote
Ward

Decision:
Regular

Decision
Date:
24/03/2020

Reference
Number:
FV/2020/0054

Application
Type:
Full Plans
Vatable

Received:
11/02/2020

Location:
Holker Street Ground Wilkie Road Barrow-in-
Furness Cumbria LA14 5UW

Proposal:
Erection of a new fan zone, club house and
associated canopy.

Ward:
Hindpool Ward

Decision:
Appcond

Decision
Date:
23/03/2020

Page 70

Agenda Item 7



DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

PLANNING COMMITTEE

FOR DECISION

23rd June 2020

Ladies and Gentlemen,

The applications within this report have been submitted for determination
under the Town and Country Planning Acts and associated legislation.

All applications within this report are “Delegated” to this Committee but can be
moved “Non-Delegated” by a Member of the Committee under the terms adopted for
the Scheme of Delegation approved by Council, 16th May, 1994.  Any such motion
needs to be accepted by a majority of Members of the Committee present (Council,
8th August, 1995).  All applications left as Delegated will be decided by the
Committee and will not be subject to confirmation by Council.

The application plan numbers also refer to files for the purposes of
background papers.

Jason Hipkiss

Planning Manager

Page 1 of 71

Page 71

Agenda Item 8



B07/2019/0513 
Planning Committee 

23
rd

 June 2020    

  

  

Application Number : B07/2019/0513 Date Valid :08/07/2019 

Address : Urofoam Ltd, Duddon Road, 
Askam-in-Furness 

Case Officer : Charles Wilton 

Proposal : Application for Outline Planning Permission with all matters reserved for 
housing development of up to 42 houses. 

Ward : Dalton North Ward Parish : Askam and Ireleth Parish Council 

Applicant : Mr M Stables   Agent : John Coward Architects Ltd  

Statutory Date : 07/10/2019 
Recommendation : Approval with 
conditions on completion of a 106 
obligation 

Barrow Planning Hub   

  

Relevant Policies and Guidance 

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix 
 
Local Plan Policies 

1. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy C2 - Development and the Coast 
2. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy C3a - Water management 
3. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to 

sustainable development 
4. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development 

Criteria 
5. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS5 - Design 
6. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS6 - Landscaping 
7. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy GI6 - Green Links 
8. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy H11 - Housing Mix 
9. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy H14 - Affordable Housing  
10. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy H3 - Allocated Housing Sites 
11. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy H7 - Housing Development on 

Windfall Sites 
12. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy H9 - Housing Density 
13. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy HC5 - Crime Prevention 
14. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy I1 - Developer Contributions 
15. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy N3 - Protecting biodiversity and 

geodiversity 
16. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy N4 - Protecting other wildlife features 
17. The Biodiversity and Development SPD 

Page 2 of 71

Page 72

Agenda Item 8



 

18. The Draft Green Infrastructure SPD  

Summary of Main Issues 

Application relates to a brownfield site within the residential development cordon. Site is 
also allocated for residential development within the Local Plan. Application is for outline 
planning permission with all matters reserved. Illustrative layout plan has been submitted 
showing that the number of dwellings applied for can be accommodated while complying 
with various policy requirements including restricting vehicular access to White Combe Way 

Non Material Considerations 

None 

Response to Publicity and Consultations 

Development advertised on site and in the local press. 

Neighbours Consulted 

Street Name Properties 

Duddon Road 
100, 102, 104, 106, 108, 110, 112, 114, 48, 50, 52, 54, 82, 90, 94, 96, 98, 
Askam Station, Orchard House, Urofoam Ltd, 

James Street 
1, 11, 13, 15, 17, 19, 21, 23, 25, 27, 29, 3, 31, 33, 5, 7, 9, Duddon Sports 
and Social Club, 

James Street 
East 

1, 3, 5, 

James Street 
West 

2 3, 4, 

Station Yard Unit 1, Unit 2, Unit 3, 
Walker Street 10, 12, 16, 18, 2, 20, 22, 4, 6, 8, 
White Combe 
Way 

1, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 

   

Responses Support Object Neutral 

13 2 6 5 

   

Organisations Consulted 

Consultee 
Askam and Ireleth Parish Council 
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 
Barrow Borough Council (Planning Policy) 
Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services Contamination) 

Page 3 of 71

Page 73

Agenda Item 8



 
Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services) 
Cumbria County Council (Archaeology) 
 
Cumbria County Council (Economic Development and Infrastructure) 
Cumbria County Council (Education) 
Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 
Cumbria County Council (Highways) 
Cumbria County Council (LLFA) 
Environment Agency (Contamination, Flood and Pollution) 
Health and Safety Executive (Pipeline Enquiries) 
Natural England 
Network Rail 
Office for Railway Regulation (Formerly HSE Railway Inspectorate) 
United Utilities (Asset Protection) 
   

List of Organisation Responses 

Local Policy Response 

Key policies include: DS1, DS2, DS3, DS5, DS6, I1, H1, H3, H4, H7, H9, H11, H14, N3, N4, 
GI6 and HC5.  The Biodiversity and Development SPD and the Draft Green Infrastructure 
SPD are material considerations 

This is an outline planning application for 42 new dwellings. The proposed brownfield site is 
allocated for housing in the Local Plan (site SHL017), therefore the principle of housing on 
this site is supported. Please note the following considerations: 

 The Barrow Transport Improvement Study identifies the junction improvements 
required to deliver the Local Plan. It also proposes cycle infrastructure 
improvements. It should be confirmed with the Local Highway Authority whether the 
proposed development will be required to contribute to any of the proposed transport 
improvements. 

 Affordable housing should be negotiated on the site in accordance with Policy H14 of 
the Local Plan and paragraph 64 of the NPPF. 

 The proposal should conform to Policy C3a of the Local Plan. In particular it should 
be ensured that the proposal complies with the surface water hierarchy, as set out in 
criterion (b) of Policy C3a and in the National Planning Practice Guidance, Flood 
Risk and Coastal Change, paragraph 080. 

 Policy N3 of the Local Plan is relevant where there is evidence to support the 
presence of protected species. Biodiversity net gains are required by paragraph 170 
of the NPPF and the Council's Biodiversity and Development SPD. 

 It should be ensured that a full planning application conforms to Policy DS5 of the 
Local Plan regarding design and Policy HC5 regarding design and crime. 

 The Draft Green Infrastructure SPD recommends that a Green Link should be 
provided along the eastern boundary to provide a buffer between the development 
and the railway. There is public open space shown on the proposed plan at the 
eastern boundary of the site. This should be retained if a full application is submitted. 

Page 4 of 71

Page 74

Agenda Item 8



 

Summary 

The site is allocated for housing in the Local Plan, therefore the principle of housing on this 
site is supported. It should be ensured that developer contributions are agreed were 
appropriate, including for local transport improvements if required. It should also be ensured 
that Local Plan policies, including those relating to affordable housing, sustainable 
drainage, biodiversity, design and green infrastructure are complied with. 

Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 10/07/2019 

“Building regulation approval required for the proposals”. 

Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services Contamination) 29/07/2019  

“Thank you for the above consultation. I can confirm that I have read the BEK Enviro report 
Ref No. BEK 18390-2, dated November 2018 and i can now comment further on the 
application. 

Contamination was identified at depth (2.7 m BGL) and will require further delineation as 
highlighted under section 4.6.1 of the report. This will require remediation. 

Furthermore, under section 4.6.4, the consultant has highlighted the need for further ground 
gas monitoring beneath the factory slab as this could not be undertaken previously. 

Given the restrictions for access on the site during the intrusive investigations, the site 
cannot be fully classified although contamination has been identified. I would recommend 
that a further report is submitted which would be an addendum to the original investigation. 
This may be in the form of a detailed qualitative risk assessment and as such should require 
an appropriate condition. 

1. A Field Investigation and Risk Assessment, conducted in accordance with 
established procedures (BS10175 (2011) Code of Practice for the Investigation of 
Potentially Contaminated Sites and Model Procedures for the Management of Land 
Contamination (CLR11)), shall be undertaken to determine the full extent and degree 
of contamination and must be undertaken by a suitably qualified contaminated land 
practitioner. The results of the Field Investigation and Risk Assessment shall be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority before any development 
begins. 

2. Where contamination is found which poses unacceptable risks, no development shall 
take place until a detailed Remediation Scheme has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme must include an 
appraisal of remedial options and proposal of the preferred option(s), all works to be 
undertaken, proposed remediation objectives, remediation criteria and a verification 
plan. The scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land 
under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended 
use. 

Page 5 of 71

Page 75

Agenda Item 8



  

3. The approved Remediation Scheme shall be implemented and a Verification 
Report submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, prior to 
occupation of the development. 

4. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved 
development, that was not previously identified, it must be reported immediately to 
the Local Planning Authority. Development on the part of the site affected must be 
halted and Field Investigations shall be carried out. Where required by the Local 
Planning Authority, remediation and verification schemes shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These shall be implemented 
prior to occupation of the development. 

5. No soil material is to be imported to the site until it has been tested for contamination 
and assessed for its suitability for the proposed development. A suitable 
methodology for testing this material should be submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority prior to the soils being imported onto site. The methodology 
should include the sampling frequency, testing schedules, criteria against which the 
analytical results will be assessed (as determined by the risk assessment) and 
source material information. The analysis shall then be carried out as per the agreed 
methodology with verification of its completion submitted to and approved in writing 
by the Local Planning Authority. 

Cumbria Constabulary (Force Crime Prevention Design Advisor)  

 24/07/2019 

"From the list of applications validated between 8th & 12th July 2019, I wish to make the 
following observations, which I have considered from a crime prevention perspective. 

I have perused the published documents to ascertain how the application complies with 
council policy with regard to crime prevention and aspects of community safety. These 
issues are outlined in Items 3.4.6, 3.4.7 and 3.4.8 and Policy DS5: Design of the Local Plan. 

It is acknowledged that this is an application for outline permission and the published Site 
Layout is only indicative. Without the benefit of elevation drawings, it is difficult to predict 
natural surveillance opportunities (e.g. if some dwellings will utilise windows in gable walls). 

The designated public open space does not form an integral or inclusive part of the 
development, being tucked away in the north east corner of the site. From a suggested total 
of 46 dwellings, this space is directly overlooked by just 4 (if my interpretation of dwelling 
orientation is correct). 

 

 

 

Page 6 of 71

Page 76

Agenda Item 8



 

From this assumption, it would appear that various other parts of the development are not in 
direct view (or views are compromised) and thus do not comply with policy: 

        Access road between units 11 – 15 and 10 & 18 
        Public realm adjacent to Unit 15 
        Public realm to rear of 18 – 22 
        Public realm from development entrance as far as Unit 1 
        Public realm adjacent to Unit 11 

It is also difficult to identify obvious front garden curtilages and rear/side garden boundaries, 
to clarify compliance with Policy DS5 (d) – “clearly distinguishable, well defined public and 
private spaces…..” 

3.4.8 – Secured by Design 

In the event of an application for full permission being forthcoming, it would be helpful if the 
applicant could provide information to indicate how these crime prevention issues have 
been addressed: 

 Demarcation of space – utilising obvious boundary treatments to establish private 
space and to deter intrusion 

 Landscaping scheme  – ensuring the choice and location of plant species do not 
obstruct views, impede the effects of lighting or create hiding places as they mature 

 Street lighting – bringing forward a low-energy scheme, utilising high uniformity and 
CRI values to promote confidence and reassurance in the public realm 

 Dwelling exterior lighting – utilising low-energy ‘white’ light sources so that 
homeowners can easily supervise private spaces throughout darkness 

 Dwelling protection against burglary – specification of exterior doors and ground floor 
windows to demonstrate compliance with Building Regulations Approved Document 
Q (Security - Dwellings) 

 Car parking – resident spaces within obvious curtilages and visitor parking in easy 
view 

 Effective external waste bin management – to mitigate against exploitation as 
climbing aid and arson risks 

I shall be pleased to advise on any crime prevention issues arising from this application." 

Cumbria County Council (Archaeology)  12/07/2019 

"I am writing to thank you for consulting me on the above application and to confirm that I 
have no objections and do not wish to make any comments or recommendations. 

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any queries regarding the above." 

 

 

Page 7 of 71

Page 77

Agenda Item 8



 

Cumbria County Council (Education) 31/07/2019 

“A dwelling-led model has been applied on the housing mix provided (23 x 2 bed & 23 x 3 
bed) and theoretically estimates a yield of 12 children: 7 primary and 5 secondary pupils for 
the schools.  

The site is in the joint catchment area of Askam Village School (0.5 miles) and Ireleth St 
Peters CE (0.78 miles).  The secondary catchment school is Dowdales (2.84 miles). There 
are no other schools within the walking threshold. 

Currently there are no developments affecting the schools used for this assessment. 

Primary 

There are sufficient places available in the catchment schools to accommodate the primary 
pupil yield of 7 from this development.  Therefore a contribution is not sought for primary 
education.      

Secondary 

There are sufficient places available in the Dowdales, the catchment secondary school to 
accommodate the pupil yield of 5 from this development  Therefore a contribution is not 
sought for secondary education. 

School Transport  

Primary  

It is considered that there is a safe route walking route to both Askam Village School (0.5 
miles) and Ireleth St Peters CE (0.78 miles) which are also within the statutory walking 
distance, therefore no school transport contribution is sought. 

Secondary  

It is considered that there is a safe route walking route to Dowdales (2.84 miles) which is 
also within the statutory walking distance, therefore no school transport contribution is 
sought." 

Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 11/07/2019  

"This application does not fall within the Detailed Emergency Planning Area of BAE 
Systems, the Public Information Zone of Spirit Energy or the Potential Inundation Area for 
Harlock and Poaka Beck Reservoirs, so this office has no comments to make on the 
application." 

 

 

Page 8 of 71

Page 78

Agenda Item 8



 

Cumbria County Council (Highways) 31/07/2019  

Highways 

Traffic Impact 

 Since the number of proposed dwellings is <50 and the site is allocated in the Local 
Plan, there is no need to submit a Transport Assessment or Statement in this 
instance.  Overall, it is considered that the trips generated by the development can 
be accommodated on the existing network without a significant impact. 

Layout 

 The HA welcome the use of a loop road layout through the site as it offers better 
access for emergency services and accommodates refuse vehicles avoiding the 
need to reverse. 

 The road only needs to be 4.8m wide for this size development and a footway on one 
side of the road as shown is acceptable in this case.  The footway should be 2m 
wide. 

 However, consideration should be given to use of a shared road surface layout as 
well in this development (see the CDG for details) since it can naturally control traffic 
speeds better than a more traditional layout.  Even shared space layout used in key 
locations, such as at junctions can be useful in providing low-key traffic calming. 

 There is concern over vehicle / pedestrian conflict where new developments adjoin 
existing roads / developments and we would like the layout to include measures as 
described above where the proposed road joins James Street. 

 There is good permeability and access for non-motorised trips 
 The roads (except for cul-de-sacs serving fewer than 5 dwellings) should be 

adopted.  All roads should be design to adoptable standards.  
 Road lighting should be provided – details to be submitted in reserved matters. 
 Landscaping is welcomed on the site (especially trees) but these should not be within 

the public highway (including verges).  Details of the proposed adoptable areas 
should be provided in a detailed application to demonstrate this. 

 Parking and Refuse Collection 
 The parking provision should be in line with the CDDG.  The allowance can include 

visitor parking on the access road where this is possible.  
 Consideration should be given to refuse wagon access.  If the cul-de-sacs are not 

designed as a turning area then the distances to the road end should be limited to 
the standards in the CDDG. 
 

The Highway Authority has no objections to the proposals in principle.  We would 
however recommend that the following conditions are included in any consent you 
might grant in due course: 

 

 

Page 9 of 71

Page 79

Agenda Item 8



 
 
The carriageway, footways, footpaths, cycleways etc shall be designed, constructed, 
drained and lit to a standard suitable for adoption and in this respect further details, 
including longitudinal/cross sections, shall be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority for approval before work commences on site.  No work shall be 
commenced until a full specification has been approved. These details shall be in 
accordance with the standards laid down in the current Cumbria Design Guide.  Any 
works so approved shall be constructed before the development is complete. 
Reason:To ensure a minimum standard of construction in the interests of highway safety.   
 
No dwellings or buildings or structures shall be commenced until the access roads, 
as approved, are defined by kerbs and sub base construction. 
Reason:To ensure that the access roads are defined and laid out at an early stage. 
 
Full details of the surface water drainage system (incorporating SUDs features as far 
as practicable) and a maintenance schedule shall be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority for approval prior to development being commenced.  Any approved works 
shall be implemented prior to the development being completed and shall be 
maintained thereafter in accordance with the schedule. 
Reason:        To promote sustainable development, secure proper drainage and to manage 
the risk of flooding and pollution.  To ensure the surface water system continues to function 
as designed and that flood risk is not increased within the site or elsewhere. 
 
Development shall not commence until a Construction Phase Traffic Management 
Plan has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. 
The CTMP shall include details of:  
 
• pre-construction road condition established by a detailed survey for 
accommodation works within the highways boundary conducted with a Highway 
Authority representative; with all post repairs carried out to the satisfaction of the 
Local Highway Authority at the applicants expense; 

 details of proposed crossings of the highway verge; 
 retained areas for vehicle parking, maneuvering, loading and unloading for 

their specific purpose during the development; 
 cleaning of site entrances and the adjacent public highway; 
 details of proposed wheel washing facilities; 
 the sheeting of all HGVs taking spoil to/from the site to prevent spillage or 

deposit of any materials on the highway; 
 construction vehicle routing; 
 the management of junctions to and crossings of the public highway and other 

public rights of way/footway; 
 surface water management details during the construction phase 

 

 

 

Page 10 of 71

Page 80

Agenda Item 8



 

Developers’ Contribution for Infrastructure 

The Barrow Transport Improvement Study as evidence for the Barrow Local Plan has 
identified a cycle-way improvement scheme from Askam to Thwaite Flatt  / Dalton.  The 
route is No.11 in the document https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/residents/planning/planning-
policy/examination-of-local-plan/examination-library/transport-infrastructure/?entryid1=5985 

It has provisionally been costed at £72k for an on-road upgrade / provision of a route.  
Taking into account inflation for the 2016 estimate, this has increased to £77,760 (+8%). 

There is also concern about the impact the increased trips generated by the cumulative 
growth in residential (allocated) sites in Askam and Ireleth will have on Lots Road from its 
junction with the A595 to New Road.  A scheme to move the 30mph speed limit and 
introduce traffic calming (signs and road markings) has been recommended.  A scheme 
cost of £6,600 for moving the speed limit and £10,000 for traffic calming has been 
estimated. 

Across the 6 allocations in Askam & Ireleth (REC01, REC02, REC03, REC31, REC36 and 
SHL017) the yield is nominally 130 dwellings. 

The cost of the infrastructure ask per dwelling is £725.  Therefore for this site with 46 
houses, the developer’s contribution will be £33,350. 

Cumbria County Council (LLFA) 31/07/2019  

Surface Water Drainage and Flood Risk 

Surface Water Strategy 

 It is noted that the proximity of groundwater to the surface on this site precludes the 
use of infiltration testing.  Also, with the proximity to the railway, and possible 
contamination issues from the sites previous use the use of soakaways would be 
problematic. 

 The strategy to discharge to Blea Beck via the UU SW sewer is therefore the obvious 
second option in the NPPF hierarchy.  The views of UU needs to be taken into 
account and their consent to this proposal will be required by the LLFA at this Outline 
Stage.  It is noted that a pre-development enquiry has been sent to UU. The 
response should be submitted to the LLFA at the earliest opportunity. 

 The attenuation basis using a basin is accepted.  However, although the discharge 
rate (controlled by a Hydro-Brake) is limited to 22.8 l/s and this is a betterment over 
the pre-development brownfield Qbar rate, it is still ten times the greenfield rate.  If 
the detention basin is increased in size, this discharge rate might be able to be 
reduced but the Strategy states that this is as large as can be provided.  A plan 
showing the constraints mentioned would be useful to support this. 

 It should be noted that there are constraints with regard to basins and soakaways in 
proximity to Network Rail’s boundary, either 20m or 30m depending on the relative 
levels.  Please confirm that this constraint has been taken into account. 

Page 11 of 71

Page 81

Agenda Item 8



 

Exceedance Route 

 This appears to be low risk.  Further details should be presented in the detailed 
stage. 

Treatment 

 The proposed silt traps and detention basin will provide suitable treatment for 
development water which is inherently low risk (especially compared to previous use) 

The LLFA cannot approve the outline drainage strategy due to lack of clarity and 
certainty over the proposed destination and run-off rate.  Please provide further 
information / evidence on: 

 The approval in principle from UU to discharge to the SW sewer at the 
proposed rate 

 Justification on the proposed discharge rate and possibility of increasing the 
basin size 

 Confirmation of design in accordance with Network Rail’s constraints with 
respect to soakaways and any approval or consent from Network Rail 

Cumbria County Council (LLFA)  further comments 27/11/2019 

“With these confirmations, responses from UU and Network Rail, the queries and 
reservations the LLFA had are now addressed satisfactorily at this stage for an outline 
application”. 
 
Environment Agency (Contamination, Flood and Pollution) 23/07/2019  

"Thank you for your consultation of 9 July 2019 on the above application. We have 
considered the proposals and can advise as follows: 

The BEK Report of the preliminary risk assessment 18390-01 dated June 2018 is missing 
and the current report 18390-02 of November 2018 submitted with the planning application 
requires this missing report to be read in conjunction with the more recent report. There are 
recommendations reference p3.4.5 for groundwater sampling and ref. p4.6.6 confirms the 
need to undertake groundwater risk assessment. 
 
A single sample set for water quality was taken from Blea Beck. This is recognised as 
requiring further sampling and is referenced in p4.6.5. 
 
The Environment Agency supports the need for a hydrogeological understanding and will 
require representative, seasonal, groundwater sampling and further surface water sampling 
for a risk assessment to Controlled Waters. Both filtered and non-filtered water samples will 
be required and hardness tests should be included in the sample suite for surface water 
samples. 
 

Page 12 of 71

Page 82

Agenda Item 8



 

 
Environment Agency position 
 
The previous use of the proposed development site as a gas works and foam factory 
presents a risk of contamination that could be mobilised during construction to pollute 
controlled waters. Controlled waters are particularly sensitive in this location because of the 
proximity to Blea Beck. 
 
The application’s drainage and preliminary risk assessment demonstrates that it will be 
possible to manage the risks posed to controlled waters by this development. Further 
detailed information will however be required before built development is undertaken. We 
believe that it would place an unreasonable burden on the developer to ask for more 
detailed information prior to the granting of planning permission but respect that this is a 
decision for the local planning authority. 
 
In light of the above, the proposed development will be acceptable if a planning condition is 
included requiring the submission of a remediation strategy. This should be carried out by a 
competent person in line with paragraph 178 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

Without this condition we would object to the proposal in line with paragraph 170 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework because it cannot be guaranteed that the development 
will not be put at unacceptable risk from, or be adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of 
water pollution. 
  
Condition 
No development approved by this planning permission shall commence until a remediation 
strategy to deal with the risks associated with contamination of the site in respect of the 
development hereby permitted, has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local 
planning authority. This strategy will include the following components: 

1. A site investigation scheme, based on the desk study to provide information for a 
detailed assessment of the risk to all receptors that may be affected, including those 
off-site. 

2. The results of the site investigation and the detailed risk assessment referred to in (1) 
and, based on these, an options appraisal and remediation strategy giving full details 
of the remediation measures required and how they are to be undertaken. 

3. A verification plan providing details of the data that will be collected in order to 
demonstrate that the works set out in the remediation strategy in (2) are complete 
and identifying any requirements for longer-term monitoring of pollutant linkages, 
maintenance and arrangements for contingency action.  

Any changes to these components require the written consent of the local planning 
authority. The scheme shall be implemented as approved. 
  
 

 

Page 13 of 71

Page 83

Agenda Item 8



 

Reason  

To ensure that the development does not contribute to, and is not put at unacceptable risk 
from or adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of water pollution in line with paragraph 
170 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

We ask that we are consulted on the information submitted to comply with the condition and 
any subsequent alterations/amendments." 
 

Health and Safety Executive (Pipeline Enquiries) 09/07/2019  

"HSE's Advice: Do Not Advise Against, consequently, HSE does not advise, on safety 
grounds, against the granting of planning permission in this case." 

Natural England 19/07/2019  
 
"Thank you for your consultation, which was received by Natural England on 09 July 2019. 
Natural England is a non-departmental public body. Our statutory purpose is to ensure that 
the natural environment is conserved, enhanced, and managed for the benefit of present 
and future generations, thereby contributing to sustainable development. 

SUMMARY OF NATURAL ENGLAND’S ADVICE NO OBJECTION 

Based on the plans submitted, Natural England considers that the proposed development 
will not have significant adverse impacts on statutorily protected nature conservation sites 
or landscapes. 

Natural England’s generic advice on other natural environment issues is set out at Annex 
A." 

Sites of Special Scientific Interest Impact Risk Zones 

The Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 
2015 requires local planning authorities to consult Natural England on “Development in or 
likely to affect a Site of Special Scientific Interest” (Schedule 4, w). Our SSSI Impact Risk 
Zones are a GIS dataset designed to be used during the planning application validation 
process to help local planning authorities decide when to consult Natural England on 
developments likely to affect a SSSI. The dataset and user guidance can be accessed from 
the data.gov.uk website 

Further general advice on the consideration of protected species and other natural 
environment issues is provided at Annex A. 

We would be happy to comment further should the need arise but if in the meantime you 
have any queries please do not hesitate to contact us. 

 

Page 14 of 71

Page 84

Agenda Item 8



 

For any queries regarding this letter, for new consultations, or to provide further information 
on this consultation please send your correspondences to 
consultations@naturalengland.org.uk. 

Natural England 09/01/2020 

"Thank you for reconsulting Natural England on this proposal. 

The submitted HRA concludes that, with the mitigation outlined, there will be no impact on 
the site integrity of Morecambe Bay & Duddon Estuary SPA. However we advise that with 
the mitigation outlined the development will still have an impact on the site’s integrity. The 
impacts on the mobile designated features of a site should be considered not only within the 
site boundary but also off site. Any impact on the designated species which causes a 
significant decline in the size, distribution, structure or function of the population should be 
considered to have an adverse effect on the integrity of the site. 

The current Morecambe Bay & Duddon Estuary SPA population of both Herring Gull (HG) 
and Lesser Black Backed Gull (LBBG) is unfavourable and declining, so the removal of a 
colony site will impact on the site’s Conservation Objectives. Although the colony is outside 
the SPA boundary colonies adjacent to the SPA are part of the functional meta-population, 
and routinely assesses developments affecting these sites in this context. 

The current breeding population of HG and LBBG of the SPA is well below the target 
population and a ‘restore’ objective has been set for both breeding features, as well as the 
seabird assemblage feature to which the two gull populations contribute (NE, 2018). This 
emphasises the need to avoid activities that may reduce breeding populations or their 
productivity. The Conservation Objective target is to restore the size of the SPA breeding 
population to a level which is above 10,000 pairs for both HG and LBBG whilst avoiding 
deterioration from its current level as indicated by the latest mean peak count or equivalent. 

At the time of citation for Morecambe Bay SPA in 1991 there were 10,000 pairs of HG 
representing 7% of the GB population. At the time of classification for Morecambe Bay and 
Duddon Estuary SPA (which has incorporated the Morecambe Bay SPA) the most recent 
data (2011-2015) for breeding HG showed a five year peak mean of just 1,596 breeding 
pairs. As the original baseline citation of 10,000 pairs (1991) has been retained for the new 
SPA a restore target has therefore been set to reflect the current 84% decline in breeding 
herring gulls.  Herring gulls are also a Section 41(S41) species of the NERC Act (2006). 

Similarly a restore target for the SPA has been set for breeding LBBG. Latest data for the 
SPA (2011-2015) for LBBG shows the five year peak mean of breeding pairs at 4,860. 
LBBG were also originally qualified at 10,000 pairs in 1991 which represented 12% of the 
Great British population at that time. The current SPA population shows a decline by 51.4% 
since the time of citation in 1991. 

 

 

Page 15 of 71

Page 85

Agenda Item 8



 

 

More recent Seabird Monitoring Programme (SMP) results from 2019 indicates that there 
are 38 breeding pairs of LBBG at the development site colony, and 51 breeding pairs of HG. 
This represents 0.8% and 3% respectively of the 2011-2015 peak mean totals above. 
However the SMP results also indicate that there has been a dramatic drop in the LBBG 
population in the past 5 years and that the current SPA population is currently at just 856 
breeding pairs. Therefore the 38 pairs at the development site actually represent 4% of the 
current SPA population. 

The Appropriate Assessment of the application will need to show how the impact to the 
breeding adult populations of HG and LBBG will be mitigated to ensure no impact on site 
integrity. This site provides an ideal nesting site for these species as it provides both the 
right nesting conditions and protection from terrestrial predators. This combination of 
conditions is limited in availability elsewhere. Natural England are unaware of any direct 
adaptions that could be made at the development site as mitigation as it is unlikely new 
homeowners would welcome nesting gulls. However there are measures that could be 
supported off-site that would reduce risk to the breeding SPA gull population. 

Appropriate mitigation would be to contribute towards an extension in the predator-free 
space available for breeding gulls at South Walney. This is where the SPA breeding large 
gull colonies were originally focused. Predation by foxes and badgers at South Walney is a 
well-documented issue for the gull colonies and has been attributed to reduced colony 
productivity, and has almost certainly been a drive behind the colony relocation. Current 
pressures prevent the expansion of the colony beyond areas protected with predator-proof 
fencing.  The permanent area lost and number of birds affected at the development site 
should be mitigated for by providing additional predator proof fencing at South Walney to 
increase the area of breeding gull habitat. This should include funding for its ongoing 
maintenance. Demolition at the development site will also need to avoid the nesting season 
from mid-March to the end of July. This should be a Condition of any subsequent planning 
permission. 

Natural England advise that the above mitigation would satisfy both the HRA test and 
Barrow Borough Council’s S41 duty. 

Also with regards to 6.4.3 of the HRA, as far as Natural England are aware, the licensed 
egg removal at the development site last took place in 2014. Both species have also been 
removed in their entirety from the General Licence in 2018." 

Network Rail 22/10/2019  

"With reference to the protection of the railway, Network Rail has no objection in principle to 
the proposal, but below are requirements which must be met as the proposal includes 
works within 10m of the railway boundary. This is to ensure that the works on site, and as a 
permanent arrangement, do not impact upon the safe operation and integrity of the railway 
and for the avoidance of doubt. 

 

Page 16 of 71

Page 86

Agenda Item 8



 

When designing proposals, the developer and council are advised, that any measurements 
must be taken from the operational railway / Network Rail boundary and not from the 
railway tracks themselves.  From the existing railway tracks to the Network Rail boundary, 
the land will include critical infrastructure (e.g. cables, signals, overhead lines, 
communication equipment etc) and boundary treatments (including support zones) which 
might be adversely impacted by outside party proposals unless the necessary asset 
protection measures are undertaken. No proposal should increase Network Rail’s liability. 
To ensure the safe operation and integrity of the railway, Network Rail issues advice on 
planning applications and requests conditions to protect the railway and its boundary.  

(1) The developer is to submit directly to Network Rail, a Risk Assessment and Method 
Statement (RAMS) for all works to be undertaken within 10m of the operational railway 
under Construction (Design and Management) Regulations, and this is in addition to any 
planning consent. Network Rail would need to be re-assured the works on site follow safe 
methods of working and have also taken into consideration any potential impact on Network 
Rail land and the existing operational railway infrastructure. Builder to ensure that no dust or 
debris is allowed to contaminate Network Rail land as the outside party would be liable for 
any clean-up costs. Review and agreement of the RAMS will be undertaken between 
Network Rail and the applicant/developer.  The applicant /developer should submit the 
RAMs directly to: 

AssetProtectionLNWNorth@networkrail.co.uk 

(2) The applicant will provide at their own expense (if not already in place): 

 A suitable trespass proof steel palisade fence of a minimum height of 1.8m adjacent 
to the boundary with the railway/railway land. 

 The fence must be wholly constructed and maintained within the applicant’s land 
ownership footprint. 

 All foundations must be wholly constructed and maintained within the applicant’s land 
ownership footprint without over-sailing or encroaching onto Network Rail’s boundary. 

 The fence must be set back at least 1m from the railway boundary to ensure that 
Network Rail can maintain and renew its boundary treatments. 

 Existing Network Rail fencing, and boundary treatments, must not be damaged or 
removed in any way. 

 Network Rail will not allow any maintenance works for proposal fencing or proposal 
boundary treatments to take place on its land. 

 Proposal fencing must not be placed on the boundary with the railway. 

 Any fencing over 1.8m in height will require agreement from Network Rail with details 
of foundations and wind loading calculations submitted for review. 

 The fence should be maintained by the developer and that no responsibility is 
passed to Network Rail. 

 

 

Page 17 of 71

Page 87

Agenda Item 8



 

(3) The developer/applicant must ensure that their proposal, both during construction and 
as a permanent arrangement, does not affect the safety, operation or integrity of the 
existing operational railway / Network Rail land. There must be no physical encroachment of 
the proposal onto Network Rail land, no over-sailing into Network Rail air-space and no 
encroachment of foundations onto Network Rail land and boundary treatments. Any 
construction works on site and any future maintenance works must be conducted solely 
within the applicant’s land ownership.   

(4) Scaffolding which is to be constructed within 10 metres of the Network Rail / railway 
boundary must be erected in such a manner that at no time will any poles over-sail the 
railway and protective netting around such scaffolding must be installed. The applicant / 
applicant’s contractor must consider if they can undertake the works and associated 
scaffolding / access for working at height within the footprint of their land ownership 
boundary. The applicant is reminded that when pole(s) are erected for construction or 
maintenance works, they must have a minimum 3m failsafe zone between the maximum 
height of the pole(s) and the railway boundary. 

This is to ensure that the safety of the railway is preserved, and that scaffolding does not: 

 Fall into the path of on-coming trains 
 Fall onto and damage critical and safety related lineside equipment and infrastructure 
 Fall onto overhead lines bringing them down, resulting in serious safety issues (this 

is applicable if the proposal is above the railway and where the line is electrified). 

(5) If vibro-compaction machinery / piling machinery or piling and ground treatment works 
are to be undertaken as part of the development, details of the use of such machinery and a 
method statement must be submitted to the Network Rail for agreement.   

 All works shall only be carried out in accordance with the method statement and the 
works will be reviewed by Network Rail. The Network Rail Asset Protection Engineer 
will need to review such works in order to determine the type of soil (e.g. sand, rock) 
that the works are being carried out upon and also to determine the level of vibration 
that will occur as a result of the piling. 

 The impact upon the railway is dependent upon the distance from the railway 
boundary of the piling equipment, the type of soil the development is being 
constructed upon and the level of vibration. Each proposal is therefore different and 
thence the need for Network Rail to review the piling details / method statement. 

Maximum allowable levels of vibration - CFA piling is preferred as this tends to give rise to 
less vibration. Excessive vibration caused by piling can damage railway structures and 
cause movement to the railway track as a result of the consolidation of track ballast. The 
developer must demonstrate that the vibration does not exceed a peak particle velocity of 
5mm/s at any structure or with respect to the rail track. 

 

 

Page 18 of 71

Page 88

Agenda Item 8



 

(6) The NPPF states: 

“178. Planning policies and decisions should ensure that: 

a. A site is suitable for its proposed use taking account of ground conditions and any 
risks arising from land instability.” 

And 

“163. When determining planning applications, local planning authorities should ensure 
flood risk is not increased elsewhere.” 

In order to comply with the NPPF, the applicant must ensure that the proposal drainage 
does not increase Network Rail’s liability, or cause flooding pollution or soil slippage, 
vegetation or boundary issues on railway land. Therefore, the proposed drainage on site will 
include the following: 

 All surface waters and foul waters must drain away from the direction of the railway 
boundary. 

 Soakaways for the proposal must be placed at least 30m from the railway boundary. 
 Any drainage proposals for less than 30m from the railway boundary must ensure 

that surface and foul waters are carried from site in closed sealed pipe systems. 
 Suitable drainage or other works must be provided and maintained by the developer 

to prevent surface water flows or run-off onto Network Rail’s land and infrastructure. 
 Proper provision must be made to accept and continue drainage discharging from 

Network Rail’s property. 
 Drainage works must not impact upon culverts, including culverts/brooks etc that 

drain under the railway. 
 The developer must ensure that there is no surface or sub-surface flow of water 

towards the operational railway. 
 Rainwater goods must not discharge in the direction of the railway or onto or over the 

railway boundary. 

NB: Soakaways can materially effect the strength of soil leading to stability issues. A large 
mass of water wetting the environment can soften the ground, and a build-up of water can 
lead to issues with the stability of Network Rail retaining walls/structures and the railway 
boundary. Network Rail does not accept the installation of soakaways behind any retaining 
structures as this significantly increases the risk of failure and subsequent risk to the 
travelling public. 

If the developer and the council insists upon a sustainable drainage and flooding system 
then the issue and responsibility of flooding, water saturation and stability issues should not 
be passed onto Network Rail. We recognise that councils are looking to proposals that are 
sustainable, however, we would remind the council that flooding, drainage, surface and foul 
water management risk as well as stability issues should not be passed ‘elsewhere’, i.e. on 
to Network Rail land. 

 

Page 19 of 71

Page 89

Agenda Item 8



 

The drainage proposals are to be agreed with Network Rail. 

The HSE identifies railways as a Major Hazard Industry. An earthwork failure within a high-
hazard area has the potential to result in a catastrophic accident with multiple fatalities or 
long-lasting environmental issues. It should be noted that where the actions of an adjacent 
landowner have caused a landslip on the railway the loss adjusters are likely to advise 
recovery of Network Rail costs from the 3rd party, which would include costs of remediation 
and recovery of costs to train operators. Many railway earthworks were constructed in the 
Victorian period and are susceptible to failure by water saturation. Water saturation leads to 
an increase in pore water pressure within the earthwork material. Please also note that 
railways, and former railway land adjacent to it, is considered as contaminated land due to 
historic use of railways, which can affect the suitability of infiltration drainage. 

(7) Network Rail would be concerned by the use of infiltration within 30m of its boundary as 
infiltration structures direct large volumes of runoff into a concentrated area which may 
increase pore water pressure in the surrounding soils, leading to a loss of shear strength. 
This may have negative effects on our track, cuttings, embankments and other lineside 
structures that may become liable to settlement or failure. Even if the infiltration rate is no 
greater than the existing greenfield rate the surface waters would be concentrated by the 
soakaway(s). 

Our standards are in excess of those typically specified by Building Regulations or British 
Standards due to the high consequence of failure and to reflect that our largely historical 
assets are often more sensitive to changes in design forces.        

Network Rail is concerned that the use of infiltration adjacent to our infrastructure could lead 
to soil erosion caused by the seepage of water or a reduction in bearing capacity beneath 
the track. This may result in settlement within the track support zone or within the support 
zone of our associated earthworks and structures. 

In the event that a soakaway causes a detrimental impact on the railway it will be difficult for 
Network Rail to take corrective action due to complex ownership arrangements and 
required disruption to private residential areas.  In this respect Network Rail believes it 
would be beneficial that the drainage for properties in the vicinity of the railway are 
discharged to a system that is owned and operated by an accountable party and situated in 
a location where maintenance and operation can be undertaken without access to private 
land within the development. 

All surface waters are to drain from site in a direction away from the railway boundary. 
Surface water drainage within 30m of the railway boundary should be removed from site via 
a closed sealed pipe system. 

 

 

 

Page 20 of 71

Page 90

Agenda Item 8



 

(8) The NPPF states: 

“178. Planning policies and decisions should ensure that: 

a. A site is suitable for its proposed use taking account of ground conditions and any 
risks arising from land instability.” 

In order to comply with the NPPF, the applicant will agree all excavation and earthworks 
within 10m of the railway boundary with Network Rail. Network Rail will need to review and 
agree the works to determine if they impact upon the support zone of our land and 
infrastructure as well as determining relative levels in relation to the railway. Network Rail 
would need to agree the following: 

 Alterations to ground levels 
 De-watering works 
 Ground stabilisation works 
 Works to retaining walls 
 Construction and temporary works 
 Maintenance of retaining walls 
 Ground investigation works must not be undertaken unless agreed with Network Rail. 
 Confirmation of retaining wall works (either Network Rail and/or the applicant). 
 Alterations in loading within 15m of the railway boundary must be agreed with 

Network Rail. 
 For works next to a cutting or at the toe of an embankment the developer / applicant 

would be required to undertake a slope stability review. 

Network Rail would need to review and agree the methods of construction works on site to 
ensure that there is no impact upon critical railway infrastructure. No excavation works are 
to commence without agreement from Network Rail. The council are advised that the impact 
of outside party excavation and earthworks can be different depending on the geography 
and soil in the area. The council and developer are also advised that support zones for 
railway infrastructure may extend beyond the railway boundary and into the proposal area. 
Therefore, consultation with Network Rail is requested. Any right of support must be 
maintained by the developer. 

(9) Network Rail requires that the developer includes a minimum 3 metres gap between the 
buildings and structures on site and the railway boundary. Less than 3m from the railway 
boundary to the edge of structures could result in construction and future maintenance 
works being undertaken on Network Rail land, and close to the railway boundary potentially 
impacting support zones or lineside cabling. All the works undertaken to facilitate the design 
and layout of the proposal should be undertaken wholly within the applicant’s land 
ownership footprint including all foundation works. 

(10) The council and the developer (along with their chosen acoustic contractor) are 
recommended to engage in discussions to determine the most appropriate measures to 
mitigate noise and vibration from the existing operational railway to ensure that there will be 
no future issues for residents once they take up occupation of the dwellings. 

Page 21 of 71

Page 91

Agenda Item 8



 

The NPPF states, “182.Where the operation of an existing business or community facility 
could have a significant adverse effect on new development (including changes of use), in 
its vicinity, the applicant (or ‘agent of change’) should be required to provide suitable 
mitigation before the development has been completed.” 

Network Rail is aware that residents of developments adjacent to or in close proximity to, or 
near to the existing operational railway have in the past discovered issues upon occupation 
of dwellings with noise and vibration. It is therefore a matter for the developer and the 
council via mitigation measures and conditions to ensure that any existing noise and 
vibration, and the potential for any future noise and vibration are mitigated appropriately 
prior to construction.  

To note are: 

 The current level of railway usage may be subject to change at any time without prior 
notification including increased frequency of trains, night time train running, heavy 
freight trains, trains run at weekends /bank holidays. 

 Maintenance works to trains could be undertaken at night and may mean leaving the 
trains’ motors running which can lead to increased levels of noise and vibration. 

 Network Rail carry out works at night on the operational railway when normal rail 
traffic is suspended and these works can be noisy and cause vibration. 

 Network Rail may need to conduct emergency works on the existing operational 
railway line which may not be notified to residents in advance due to their safety 
critical nature, and may occur at any time of the day or night, during bank holidays 
and at weekends. 

 Works to the existing operational railway may include the presence of plant and 
machinery as well as vehicles and personnel for works. 

 The proposal should not prevent Network Rail from its statutory undertaking. Network 
Rail is a track authority. It may authorise the use of the track by train operating 
companies or independent railway operators, and may be compelled to give such 
authorisation. Its ability to respond to any enquiries regarding intended future use is 
therefore limited. 

 The scope and duration of any Noise and Vibration Assessments may only reflect the 
levels of railway usage at the time of the survey. 

 Any assessments required as part of CDM (Construction Design Management) or 
local planning authority planning applications validations process are between the 
developer and their appointed contractor. 

 Network Rail cannot advise third parties on specific noise and vibration mitigation 
measures. Such measures will need to be agreed between the developer, their 
approved acoustic contractor and the local planning authority. 

 Design and layout of proposals should take into consideration and mitigate against 
existing usage of the operational railway and any future increase in usage of the said 
existing operational railway. 

 Noise and Vibration Assessments should take into account any railway depots, 
freight depots, light maintenance depots in the area. If a Noise and Vibration 
Assessment does not take into account any depots in the area then the applicant will 
be requested to reconsider the findings of the report. 

Page 22 of 71

Page 92

Agenda Item 8



 

(11) Proposals for the site should take into account the recommendations of, ‘BS 5837:2012 
Trees in Relation to Design, Demolition and Construction’, which needs to be applied to 
prevent long term damage to the health of trees on Network Rail land so that they do not 
become a risk to members of the public in the future. 

All vegetation on site should be in line with the recommended tree matrix for the reasons 
outlined in the document. 

(12) Where a proposal calls for the following adjacent to the boundary with the operational 
railway,  running parallel to the operational railway or where the existing operational railway 
is below the height of the proposal site: 

 hard standing areas 

 turning circles 

 roads, public highways to facilitate access and egress from developments 

Network Rail requests the installation of suitable high kerbs or crash barriers (e.g. Armco 
Safety Barriers). 

This is to prevent vehicle incursion from the proposal area impacting upon the safe 
operation of the railway. 

(13) As the proposal includes works which may impact the existing operational railway and 
in order to facilitate the above, a BAPA (Basic Asset Protection Agreement) will need to be 
agreed between the developer and Network Rail. The developer will be liable for all costs 
incurred by Network Rail in facilitating this proposal, including any railway site safety costs, 
possession costs, asset protection costs / presence, site visits, review and agreement of 
proposal documents and any buried services searches. The BAPA will be in addition to any 
planning consent. 

The applicant / developer should liaise directly with Asset Protection to set up the BAPA 
(form attached). 

AssetProtectionLNWNorth@networkrail.co.uk 

No works are to commence until agreed with Network Rail. Early engagement with Network 
Rail is strongly recommended. 

Should the above proposal be approved by the council and should there be conditions, 
where the proposal interfaces with the railway (as outlined in this response) the outside 
party is advised that a BAPA (Basic Asset Protection Agreement) must be in place, in order 
for Network Rail to review and agree the documentation and works outlined in conditions 
(and those areas covered by the discharge of conditions)." 

Attachment to email  'Recommended Tree Planting Species' - see documents 

 

Page 23 of 71

Page 93

Agenda Item 8



Network Rail (further comment 22/10/19) 

"(1) Road vehicle incursion 

Although smaller the road alongside the railway would in all likelihood need mitigation. This 
could be agreed with NR. 

 (2) Attenuation. 

Where attenuation ponds and basins are proposed : 

 Network Rail will not accept liability for water from the proposal area draining towards 
the railway. 

 Network Rail requires details of the excavation works of the pond as this represents 
a change in ground levels near to the existing operational railway. 

 The applicant will need to supply details of the construction methodology of the 
basin. 

 Details of who will maintain the basin once it has been installed. 
 Details of what mitigation methods are to be included within the pond construction to 

prevent water flowing down in the direction of the railway or seeping into the ground. 
Water must not drain in the direction of the operational railway boundary. 

 Network Rail is concerned by the ponds proximity to our boundary and we would 
need reassurance that the pond will not seep water into the soil resulting in the risk of 
flooding, soil slippage, pollution being imported onto Network Rail land. 

Until NR receive reassurance that the attenuation will not impact the railway boundary we 
would not agree to an attenuation basin within 30m of the railway boundary. 

The best advice at this stage is for the developer to fill in the dev form and submit to 
AssetProtectionLNWNorth@networkrail.co.uk and mark for the attention of xxxxxx who 
could provide comments – if the scheme meet with his agreement then there would be no 
need for further comments." 

Royal Society for the Protection of Birds (RSPB) 09/01/2020  

"The RSPB wishes to provide comments in relation to the above application, the 
details of which are included below. 

Please do not hesitate to get in contact if you require any further information or clarity on 
any of the points raised. 
 
RSPB Comments on application B07/2019/0513; 

-     Insufficient survey data has been provided by the applicant. More specifically, the 
ecological appraisal and HRA lacks recent and reliable survey data conducted by suitably 
qualified persons on the numbers, species and status of breeding large gulls present on 
site. A robust assessment of impacts cannot be conducted without even basic evidence 
showing how many birds are present, of which species and how those birds are utilising the 
site. 

Page 24 of 71

Page 94

Agenda Item 8



 

-     There is insufficient consideration of the proposal under the Habitats and Species 
regulations 2017. The site had been identified as being utilised by SPA features; either 
Herring Gull larus argentatus and/or Lesser black-backed gull larus fuscus and although 
numbers are not accurately known it has been established that the breeding gulls on site 
are associated with the Morecambe Bay and Duddon SPA population. The shadow HRA 
supplied by applicant is poorly evidenced. The conclusion of no likely significant effect 
during the screening is not based on reliable survey data and does not consider the current 
status of breeding Herring gull and Lesser black-backed gull within the SPA. Populations 
are currently suppressed, and the actual number of breeding pairs of both species is well 
below the SPA citation values. Wherever possible when considering impacts on SPA 
features the most recent and accurate data should obviously be used. The department brief 
produced by Natural England for the creation of Morecambe Bay and Duddon SPA1 shows 
the actual 5 year peak mean (2011–2015) of Herring gull to be 1,596 pairs. Assuming, as in 
the shadow HRA (6.4.7) that the nests on the development site are split proportionally 
between the two species (which is unlikely), the estimated 50 pairs of Herring gull 
constitutes 3.1% of the SPA population. This is above the 1% significance threshold and so 
the rationale given for the conclusion of no likely significant effect given in 6.4.10 is 
incorrect. As stated above, recent and reliable survey data on the numbers, species and 
utilisation of the site by large gulls is required to inform an assessment of impacts. 

-     The permanent loss of large gull nesting habitat has not been adequately 
mitigated for within the proposals. Demolition of the building and roof equates to 
destruction of approximately 0.75ha of artificial but clearly functional breeding habitat for a 
colonially nesting SPA feature such as Herring gull and/or Lesser-black backed gull. It is 
understood that mitigation for habitat loss cannot, in this case be a true equivalent as that 
would not be practicable. Instead mitigation needs to contribute to improved conditions and 
status for the SPA feature population as a whole thus enhancing the integrity to the SPA 
feature so that it can better cope with the loss of nesting habitat. This could be achieved in a 
number of ways; for example, through improved conservation measures at an existing large 
gull colony nearby to better secure the population within a known core area." 

United Utilities 06/11/2019  

Drainage 

Condition 1 – Surface Water 

Following our review of the submitted Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy, dated 
March 2019, ref: K35621/01/FRA/JB, proposing surface water draining to the 450mm 
diameter surface water sewer at a maximum pass forward flow of 22.8 l/s for any storm 
event, we can confirm the proposals are acceptable in principle to United Utilities and 
therefore should planning permission be granted we request the following condition is 
attached to any subsequent Decision Notice:  

 

 

Page 25 of 71

Page 95

Agenda Item 8



 

 

the drainage for the development hereby approved shall be carried out in accordance with 
principles set out in the submitted Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy, dated 
March 2019, ref: K35621/01/FRA/JB. For the avoidance of doubt and unless otherwise 
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority, surface water should drain to the 450mm 
diameter surface water sewer at a maximum pass forward flow of 22.8 l/s for any storm 
event.  The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved details.  

Reason: To ensure a satisfactory form of development and to prevent an undue increase in 
surface water run-off and to reduce the risk of flooding. 

Condition 2 – Foul water 

Foul and surface water shall be drained on separate systems.  

Reason: To secure proper drainage and to manage the risk of flooding and pollution. 
  
The applicant can discuss any of the above with email at 
wastewaterdeveloperservices@uuplc.co.uk.  

Please note, United Utilities are not responsible for advising on rates of discharge to the 
local watercourse system.  This is a matter for discussion with the Lead Local Flood 
Authority and / or the Environment Agency (if the watercourse is classified as main river).  

If the applicant intends to offer wastewater assets forward for adoption by United Utilities, 
the proposed detailed design will be subject to a technical appraisal by an Adoptions 
Engineer as we need to be sure that the proposal meets the requirements of Sewers for 
Adoption and United Utilities’ Asset Standards. The detailed layout should be prepared with 
consideration of what is necessary to secure a development to an adoptable standard. This 
is important as drainage design can be a key determining factor of site levels and layout. 
The proposed design should give consideration to long term operability and give United 
Utilities a cost effective proposal for the life of the assets. Therefore, should this application 
be approved and the applicant wishes to progress a Section 104 agreement, we strongly 
recommend that no construction commences until the detailed drainage design, submitted 
as part of the Section 104 agreement, has been assessed and accepted in writing by United 
Utilities. Any works carried out prior to the technical assessment being approved is done 
entirely at the developers own risk and could be subject to change.   

 

 

 

 

 

Page 26 of 71

Page 96

Agenda Item 8



 

 

Management and Maintenance of Sustainable Drainage Systems  

Without effective management and maintenance, sustainable drainage systems can fail or 
become ineffective. As a provider of wastewater services, we believe we have a duty to 
advise the Local Planning Authority of this potential risk to ensure the longevity of the 
surface water drainage system and the service it provides to people.  We also wish to 
minimise the risk of a sustainable drainage system having a detrimental impact on the 
public sewer network should the two systems interact. 
We therefore recommend the Local Planning Authority include a condition in their Decision 
Notice regarding a management and maintenance regime for any sustainable drainage 
system that is included as part of the proposed development.  

For schemes of 10 or more units and other major development, we recommend the Local 
Planning Authority consults with the Lead Local Flood Authority regarding the exact wording 
of any condition.  

You may find the below a useful example: 

Prior to occupation of the development a sustainable drainage management and 
maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development shall be submitted to the local 
planning authority and agreed in writing.  The sustainable drainage management and 
maintenance plan shall include as a minimum:  

a. Arrangements for adoption by an appropriate public body or statutory undertaker, or, 
management and maintenance by a resident’s management company; and 
b. Arrangements for inspection and ongoing maintenance of all elements of the sustainable 
drainage system to secure the operation of the surface water drainage scheme throughout 
its lifetime.  

The development shall subsequently be completed, maintained and managed in 
accordance with the approved plan.  

Reason: To ensure that management arrangements are in place for the sustainable 
drainage system in order to manage the risk of flooding and pollution during the lifetime of 
the development. 
                 
Please note United Utilities cannot provide comment on the management and maintenance 
of an asset that is owned by a third party management and maintenance company.  We 
would not be involved in the discharge of the management and maintenance condition in 
these circumstances.    

 

 

 

Page 27 of 71

Page 97

Agenda Item 8



 

Water Supply 

If the applicant intends to obtain a water supply from United Utilities for the proposed 
development, we strongly recommend they engage with us at the earliest opportunity. If 
reinforcement of the water network is required to meet the demand, this could be a 
significant project and the design and construction period should be accounted for.  

To discuss a potential water supply or any of the water comments detailed above, the 
applicant can contact the team at DeveloperServicesWater@uuplc.co.uk.  

Please note, all internal pipework must comply with current Water Supply (water fittings) 
Regulations 1999. 

United Utilities’ Property, Assets and Infrastructure 
  
 According to our records there are easements crossing the proposed development site 
which is in addition to our statutory rights for inspection, maintenance and repair. The 
easements dated 30/05/1977 & 07/05/1982 UU Ref: N294 & N1980 has restrictive 
covenants that must be adhered to. It is the responsibility of the developer to obtain a copy 
of the document, available from United Utilities Legal Services or Land Registry and to 
comply to the provisions stated within the document. Under no circumstances should 
anything be stored, planted or erected on the easement width. Nor should anything occur 
that may affect the integrity of the pipe or United Utilities legal right to 24 hour access.  
  
A water main crosses the site. As we need unrestricted access for operating and 
maintaining it, we will not permit development over or in close proximity to the main. We 
require an access strip as detailed in our ‘Standard Conditions for Works Adjacent to 
Pipelines’, a copy of which is enclosed.  

The applicant must comply with our ‘Standard Conditions’ document. This should be taken 
into account in the final site layout, or a diversion may be necessary. Unless there is 
specific provision within the title of the property or an associated easement, any necessary 
disconnection or diversion required as a result of any development will be at the applicant's 
expense. If considering a water mains diversion, the applicant should contact United Utilities 
at their earliest opportunity as they may find that the cost of mains diversion is prohibitive in 
the context of their development scheme.  

The Water Industry Act 1991 affords United Utilities specific rights in relation to the 
maintenance, repair, access and protection of our water infrastructure;  
  
Sections 158 & 159, outlines the right to inspect, maintain, adjust, repair or alter our mains. 
This includes carrying out any works incidental to any of those purposes. Service pipes are 
not our property and we have no record of them.   
 
Under Section 174 of the Act it is an offence to intentionally or negligently interfere with any 
resource main or water main that causes damage to or has an effect on its use or 
operation.   

Page 28 of 71

Page 98

Agenda Item 8



 

It is in accordance with this statutory provision that we provide standard conditions to assist 
developers when working in close proximity to our water mains.  

Both during and post construction, there should be no additional load bearing capacity on 
the main without prior agreement from United Utilities. This would include earth movement 
and the transport and position of construction equipment and vehicles. 

Several public sewers cross this site and we may not permit building over them. We will 
require an access strip width of six metres, three metres either side of the centre line of 
each sewer which is in accordance with the minimum distances specified in the current 
issue of "Sewers for Adoption", for maintenance or replacement. Therefore a modification of 
the site layout, or a diversion of the affected public sewer at the applicant's expense, may 
be necessary. To establish if a sewer diversion is feasible, the applicant must discuss this at 
an early stage with our Developer Engineer at wastewaterdeveloperservices@uuplc.co.uk 
as a lengthy lead in period may be required if a sewer diversion proves to be acceptable.  

Two critical public sewers cross this site and we may not permit building over them. We will 
require an access strip width of 7 metres, 3.5 metres either side of the centre line of each 
sewer which is in accordance with the minimum distances specified in the current issue of 
"Sewers for Adoption", for maintenance or replacement. 

Deep rooted shrubs and trees should not be planted in the vicinity of the public sewer and 
overflow systems. 

Where United Utilities’ assets exist, the level of cover to the water mains and public sewers 
must not be compromised either during or after construction. 

For advice regarding protection of United Utilities assets, the applicant should contact the 
teams as follows:  

Water assets – DeveloperServicesWater@uuplc.co.uk 
Wastewater assets – WastewaterDeveloperServices@uuplc.co.uk 

It is the applicant's responsibility to investigate the possibility of any United Utilities’ assets 
potentially impacted by theirproposals and to demonstrate the exact relationship between 
any United Utilities' assets and the proposed development.  

A number of providers offer a paid for mapping service including United Utilities. To find out 
how to purchase a sewer and water plan from United Utilities, please visit the Property 
Searches website; https://www.unitedutilities.com/property-searches/ 
  
You can also view the plans for free. To make an appointment to view our sewer records at 
your local authority please contact them direct, alternatively if you wish to view the water 
and the sewer records at our Lingley Mere offices based in Warrington please ring 0370 
751 0101 to book an appointment.  

 

Page 29 of 71

Page 99

Agenda Item 8



 

Due to the public sewer transfer in 2011, not all sewers are currently shown on the statutory 
sewer records and we do not always show private pipes on our plans. If a sewer is 
discovered during construction; please contact a Building Control Body to discuss the 
matter further.  
  
Should this planning application be approved the applicant should contact United Utilities 
regarding a potential water supply or connection to public sewers. Additional information is 
available on our website http://www.unitedutilities.com/builders-developers.aspx 

*See original for Standard Conditions document.   

Officers Report 

1. Site and Locality 

1.1 The application site extends to 1.22 ha and is described in the Council's 'Proposed 
Housing Site Assessments' within the Development Plan documents as 

'Brownfield Site currently occupied by factory building located within the Askam & 
Ireleth Development Cordon' 

1.2 Originally a K Shoe factory, in more recent times the factory has been used by 'Urofoam' 
for the manufacture of foam products. The site is now vacant. The Duddon Road frontage of 
the site has been developed in the form of a 16 houses following the grant of planning 
permission in 2012.  A new estate road was created as part of that development and which 
was designed to be extended to allow for the wider redevelopment  of the factory site. 

1.3 The site's eastern boundary adjoins the main line railway just north of Askam Station. Its 
western boundary is more complicated but adjoins the existing residential area mainly 
served by James Street and Walker Street. The northern boundary adjoins open 
countryside 

2. Proposal Details 

2.1 Application for Outline Planning Permission with all matters reserved for housing 
development of up to 42 houses. All matters are reserved for subsequent approval. 
However a rather detailed layout plan has been submitted but this remains illustrative. Its 
main purpose is to demonstrate that the number of dwellings applies for can be delivered 
while complying with various policies on SUDs, open space, bio diversity etc. The submitted 
details include an attenuation basin which is required to attenuate the discharge into a 
water course. This adjoins the site's north east corner. 

 

 

 

Page 30 of 71

Page 100

Agenda Item 8



 

3. Relevant History 
 
3.1 B07/2010/0237 Urofoam Ltd Duddon Road Askam-in-Furness Cumbria LA16 7AN 
Erection of one terrace of four, three bedroom, three storey houses, two pairs of three 
bedroom, two storey semi-detached houses, one pair of four bedroom, two storey semi-
detached houses, three detached four bedroom, two storey detached houses and acce 
Refused 23-JUN-2010 
 
3.2 B07/2010/0948 Urofoam Ltd Duddon Road Askam-in-Furness Cumbria LA16 7AN 
Erection of two terraces of four, three bedroomed, three storey houses (2nd floor within an 
extended roof space), and two pairs of three bedroomed, two storey semi detached houses 
(outline - all matters reserved for subsequent approval). Appcond 28-JUL-2010 
 
3.3 B07/2012/0302 Urofoam Ltd Duddon Road Askam-in-Furness Cumbria LA16 7AN 
Approval of Reserved Matters (access, appearance, landscaping, layout and scale) 
following Outline Permission 2012/0948 for the erection of two terraces of four, three 
bedroomed, three storey houses (2nd floor within an extended roof space and two pairs 
Appcond 18-DEC-2012 

4. Officer Assessment 

4.1 The site is allocated in the Local Plan for housing development by virtue of Policy H3. It 
is identified as Site ref SHL017 with an indicative yield of 51 dwellings [table 7 Housing 
Allocations in Barrow Borough]. It is the Council's policy that the site should be developed 
for housing to contribute to the Council's annual housing target of 119 net additional houses 
per year [Policy H1) 

Policy H7 Housing Development 

4.2 Local Plan policy H7 applies to housing development. It lists criteria a) to n) which 
applications for residential development should satisfy. Using the criteria as sub headings I 
can advise as follows; 

4.3 a) Site is located within a built up area/ development cordon identified by policy H4 

The site is located within a built up area and within the development cordon identified by 
policy H4. The site further accords with policy H3 being allocated for housing development 

4.4 b) Site planning, layout and servicing arrangements are developed comprehensively 

These would be subject of a future reserved matters submission but an illustrative layout 
plan indicates that they will be 

4.5 c) Buildings are well designed in terms of siting, grouping, scale 

The illustrative layout plan indicates that this is achievable based on the number of units 
applied for 

Page 31 of 71

Page 101

Agenda Item 8



 

4.6 d) An acceptable standard of amenity can be created for future residents of the 
properties in terms of natural lighting, privacy & noise 

The illustrative layout plan initially indicated that some of the dwellings would have lower 
than acceptable privacy standards. However the illustrative layout plan was amended to 
show that a minimum of 21m was achievable between the habitable windows of different 
house. The illustrative plan also shows that the number of houses proposed can be 
accommodated while meeting requirements on natural lighting. With regards noise the 
application was accompanied by an acoustic report which contained the results of a period 
of sound monitoring. This found that current noise levels were slightly above the 
recommended level for external amenity areas. This was mainly due to passing trains. For 
the same reason internal noise levels of some of the houses would be above recommended 
levels for both day and night time periods. 

4.7 Normal double glazing would provide adequate mitigation when the windows are closed. 
However acoustic trickle ventilators are required to ensure adequate acoustic performance 
when ventilation is required 

4.8 In terms of external noise the back ground levels fall between the lower and upper 
recommended levels. In such circumstances the matter can be addressed via acoustic 
fencing 

4.9 e) The site is served by a satisfactory access that would not impact unduly on the 
highway network 

4.10 The layout originally submitted with the application showed the development to be 
served by two vehicular access points. One via an extension of White Combe View; a 
recently constructed road laid out to serve the 16 houses built on a different part of the 
factory site. This road was over sized at the time as it was envisaged that it would be 
required to serve a future redevelopment of the factory site 

4.11 The second access would link into two older, terraced streets, Walker St and James St. 
This aspect of the proposal has featured in 10 of the letters received. Concern about 
additional traffic in these two streets has been raised and the poor junctions with Duddon 
Road.  

4.12 As the plan is illustrative it is open to the Planning Authority to impose a planning 
condition restricting access if it meets the relevant tests which includes reasonableness and 
necessary. CCC as Highway authority however raised no objection to the two access 
approach in their initial consultation response. The applicant was however invited to submit 
a revised illustrative plan based on a single access and the Highway Authority re consulted. 
In response Highways have advised as follows: 

it [ access to Walker/James St] would introduce a slight increase in road safety risk by 
creating a through route on what is are very quiet and narrow cul-de-sacs at present 
and the access onto Duddon Road is sub-standard compared to the newer main 
access to the south.  So whilst the layout with one access may restrict the yield, it is 
the LHA preferred option [dated 15/04/20] 

Page 32 of 71

Page 102

Agenda Item 8



 

4.13 The single access layout shows a reduced number of units (36) and while the Highway 
Authorities response there are local plan policies which seek to minimise impact in addition 
to H7. These include Policy DS5 which includes: 'create layouts which are inclusive, 
promote health, well being, community cohesion and public safety' [criterion j] 

4.14 On this basis the recommendation includes a condition requiring all vehicular access to 
be from White Combe Way. The number of dwellings has been reduced to 42 reflecting the 
reduced yield 

4.15 f) The site has been designed to promote accessibility by walking, cycling and public 
transport rather than the private car 

Following on from the above it should be noted that the intention is to provide pedestrian 
and cycle links into the adjacent residential streets (James St and Walker St). It should be 
noted that failure to provide such links contributed to the dismissal of an appeal for 5 
dwellings in Elkstone Avenue, Barrow 

4.16 In addition the site is located close to shops, schools and public transport 

4.17 g) Development sustainable in its energy usage 

N/A to an outline application 

4.18 h) Capacity if infra structure adequate to serve development 

CCC as highway authority and United Utilities raise no objections 

4.19 i) Deals with cases where spare infra structure is not available  - N/A 

4.20 j) Deals with rural settlements - N/A 

4.21 K) Deals with development on the edge of Barrow & Dalton - N/A 

4.22 l) Deals with the historic environment  

Nearest listed building is Askam Railway Station but while close by is located the far side of 
modern industrial units located in what was the station yard. Development does not affect 
the setting of the listed railway buildings 

4.23 m) No unacceptable effects on the amenities of surrounding properties from 
overlooking, loss of light, over bearing nature or increase in on street parking 

The layout plan while illustrative did indicate that some of the proposed houses would be 
located closer to Orchard House, a detached property located adjacent to the factory, than 
the 21m referred to in policy (H17). The applicant was invited to amend the illustrative plan 
to meet this policy requirement while accommodating the number of houses applied for. 
Accordance with policy has been demonstrated via an updated illustrative plan 

Page 33 of 71

Page 103

Agenda Item 8



 

4.24 n) Development must comply with policy N3 

The development meets the requirements of N3 see section on bio diversity below. 

The scheme meets the relevant criteria where relevant such that approval would accord 
with policy H7 

Surface water disposal 

4.25 Local Plan policy C3a includes a number of requirements. The main ones of relevance 
here are the hierarchy of means of disposal, adoption of SUDs and agreement of discharge 
rates 

4.26 Turning to the hierarchy the sequence is ground infiltration, followed by discharge to a 
water course, then discharge to a surface water sewer and least favourable, discharge to a 
combined sewer. The applicant has via a 'Flood risk & Drainage Strategy' demonstrated to 
the satisfaction of the LLFA that ground infiltration is not suitable. A water course (Blea 
Beck) is located just a few meters to the north east of the site and a large diameter, surface 
water sewer runs through the site and which then connects with Blea Beck. The LLFA have 
confirmed that  

'Discharge to Blea Beck via a UU sewer is the ovbvious second option in the 
hierarchy' [LLFA 31/07/19] 

4.27 The means of disposal there accords with the strategy but also achieves a high level 
sustainable option and therefore complies with this aspect of policy C3a 

4.28 Surface water attenuation is required and this is proposed via an attenuation basin. This 
is shown to be located in the north east corner of the site. This further accords with C3a 
which requires SUDs so as to 'benefit bio diversity and enhance water quality [criterion b) 

4.29 The proposed discharge rate (22.8 l/s) is significantly higher than the greenfield run off 
rate; a point noted by the LLFA. However this still represents a significant improvement over 
the existing situation and is allowed for by policy C3a with respect to previously developed 
land (criterion f). As requested by the LLFA the advise of UU has been sought and who 
have agreed to the proposed discharge rate [UU 6/11/19]. 

4.30 The initial objection from the LLFA (31/07/19) was removed as follows: 

With these confirmations responses from UU and Network Rail, the queries and 
reservations the LLFA had are now addressed satisfactorily at this stage for an outline 
application [LLFA 27/11/19] 

Approval would therefore accord with Policy C3a 

 

 

Page 34 of 71

Page 104

Agenda Item 8



 

Contaminated land 

4.31 Local plan policy C4 requires assessments to be submitted in cases where 
contamination is suspected or in cases of 'vulnerable' uses. Both criterion apply in this 
instance. A 'Preliminary Site Investigations and Contamination Risk Assessment' has been 
submitted. This has included intrusive investigations, water quality testing, and laboratory 
analysis. Some contamination has been found which without approprpriate remediation is 
considered to pose a risk to human health [para 4.6.1 BEK]. The Assessment concludes 
that further investigations are required. At this stage, given it is an application for outline 
planning permission, the Council only requires to establish the principle of development. 
There is nothing in the assessment that suggests that the contamination can not be 
addressed and both the Council's Public Protection Officer and the Environment Agency 
consider that the requirements for further information can be conditioned. Conditional 
approval would therefore accord with policy C4 

Green Infrastructure 

4.32 The Local Plan describes the range of green infrastructure under policies GI1 to GI9 as 
follows: 

GI1 Green Infrastructure, GI2 Green Wedges, GI3 Green Corridors, GI4 Green Spaces, GI5 
Green Routes, GI6 Green Links, GI7 Open Countryside, GI8 Woodland and GI9 Private 
Garden Boundaries 

4.33 Guidance on applying the policies is contained in the 'Green Infrastructure Strategy 
(GIS) though this remains a draft. TheStrategy advises in relation to site SHL017 as follows: 

'A green link should be provided along the eastern side boundary to provide a buffer 
between the new development and the railway line. Potential for pedestrian links to 
surrounding streets' [page 115] 

4.34 The illustrative layout plan indicates a landscaped buffer along the railway boundary 
and which includes the attenuation basin. An acoustic fence is also required (refer to policy 
H7 above). The proposed extension of White Combe Way is shown to separate the 
landscaping from the houses such that it would be located outside of the house curtilages. 
Maintenance of both the landscaping, the attenuation basin and acoustic fencing is likely to 
fall to a management company. This to be secured by a 106 obligation. Conditional 
approval would therefore accord with Local Plan policies on green infrastructure as advised 
by the GIS 

 

 

 

 

Page 35 of 71

Page 105

Agenda Item 8



 

Bio Diversity & Protected Sites 

4.35 There are two dimensions to this. One is focused on policies relating to development 
site's themselves and the second the need for Appropriate Assessment under the Habitats 
Regulations. Taking these in order the Council's planning policy section have advised as 
follows: 

Policy N3 of the Local Plan is relevant where there is evidence to support the 
presence of protected species. Biodiversity net gains are required by paragraph 170 
of the NPPF and the Council's Biodiversity and Development SPD. 

4.36 The Council's policy is defined by Local Plan policies N3 & N4. Guidance on applying 
the policies is provided by the Council's 'Bio Diversity & Development SPD'. It sets out the 
requirements as follows: 

Net gains in bio diversity should be demonstrated at the planning application stage 
(para 15.4) 

For major developments, measurable net gains* must be demonstrated (para 15.5) 

* measurable net gains are defined as using a recognised metric based on the Defra model 
(para 15.5) 

4.37 The application was accompanied by an ecological appraisal. This recommended 
certain measures to achieve a net increase in bio diversity and includes features required to 
meet green infrastructure requirements and SUDs. These to be detailed at the reserved 
matters stage but will include 'a significant linear vegetation feature should be retained or 
reinstated along the east boundary of the site and railway line. This should be a species rich 
hedge at least two shrubs deep or a line of deciduous trees of several species' [para 7.1.1 
Ecological Appraisal] 

4.38 The application was also accompanied by an Arborical Impact Assessment. This was 
prepared in accordance with BS5837 'Trees in relation to design, demolition and 
construction; recommendations'. All trees growing within the site were graded as either fair 
or poor. Such categories will not usually justify the refusal of planning permission. The 
assessment did however contain recommendations re the protection of more important 
trees growing on adjacent land and whose roots extend into the application site. This 
included a 'Tree Protection Plan' showing the location of protective fencing. Hovever a net 
gain in bio diversity is still required and a condition has been included in this regard 

4.39 In addition the applicant was invited to submit a Defra based metric to demonstrate net 
gain as per the SPD. The metric shows that an increase from 1.14 to 1.71 should be the 
design objective [Ref AWG/5048, 5/12/2019]. This can be secured by condition. 

 

 

Page 36 of 71

Page 106

Agenda Item 8



 

Appropriate Assessment 

4.40 The second ecological matter to consider falls under the Habitat Regulations which 
impose certain duties on the Council as the 'appropriate authority'. The Regulations first 
require the Council to determine whether the development is likely to have a significant 
effect on a designated site namely the 'Morecambe Bay and Duddon Estuary SPA'. Case 
law has established that mitigation can not be considered.at the initial screening stage. It 
was considered that significant effects could not be ruled out due to the potential linkage 
between the two via Blea Beck and also potential impact on a breeding site used by 
gulls.As a consequence it is necessary to carry out a formal Appropriate Assessment under 
the Habitat Regulations 

4.41 While NE had not objected to the planning application it is necessary to reconsult when 
carrying out an Appropriate Assessment. At this stage mitigation can be considered. NE 
and the developer/ecologist have confirmed the extent of the mitigation (off site works, 
South Walney) and on that basis the Appropriate Assessment is that no significant harm will 
occur. Mitigation to be secured by the 106 obligation. 

Infrastructure Contributions 

4.42 Local plan policy I1 requires developments to contribute to infrastructure which is 
required to support the allocations within the Plan. Policy I1 states that the 'Infrastructure 
Delivery Plan [Barrow Borough Council 2017] will be used to identify the timing, type, and 
number of infrastructure requirements to support the objectives and policies of this Plan'. 
This document relies heavily on 'The Barrow Transport Improvement Study' [CCC 2016]. 
The Council's Planning Policy section have advised as follows: 

The Barrow Transport Improvement Study identifies the junction improvements 
required to deliver the Local Plan. It also proposes cycle infrastructure improvements. 
It should be confirmed with the Local Highway Authority whether the proposed 
development will be required to contribute to any of the proposed transport 
improvements. 

4.43 In consultation with the Highway Authority they have advised as follows: 

 The Barrow Transport Improvement Study as evidence for the Barrow Local Plan has 
identified a cycle-way improvement scheme from Askam to Thwaite Flatt  / Dalton.  
The route is No.11 in the document 
https://www.barrowbc.gov.uk/residents/planning/planning-policy/examination-of-local-
plan/examination-library/transport-infrastructure/?entryid1=5985 

It has provisionally been costed at £72k for an on-road upgrade / provision of a 
route.  Taking into account inflation for the 2016 estimate, this has increased to 
£77,760 (+8%). 

 

 

Page 37 of 71

Page 107

Agenda Item 8



 

There is also concern about the impact the increased trips generated by the 
cumulative growth in residential (allocated) sites in Askam and Ireleth will have on 
Lots Road from its junction with the A595 to New Road.  A scheme to move the 
30mph speed limit and introduce traffic calming (signs and road markings) has been 
recommended.  A scheme cost of £6,600 for moving the speed limit and £10,000 for 
traffic calming has been estimated. 

Across the 6 allocations in Askam & Ireleth (REC01, REC02, REC03, REC31, 
REC36 and SHL017) the yield is nominally 130 dwellings. 

The cost of the infrastructure ask per dwelling is £725.  Therefore for this site with 46 
houses, the developer’s contribution will be £33,350 [31/07/2019 

4.44 This amount is proposed to be secured by means of a 106 obligation adjusted to reflect 
the number of dwellings (refer recommendation below) 

Education contributions 

4.45 CCC as Education Authority have confirmed that no contributions are necessary in 
their consultation response  reproduced above. 

Affordable housing 

4.46 The Council's planning policy section have advised that 'affordable housing should be 
negotiated on the site in accordance with Policy H14 of the Local Plan and paragraph 64 of 
the NPPF'.This matter has been raised with the applicant and can be secured by means of 
a section 106 obligation. 

Issues raised in the representations 

4.47 The most frequent issue raised related to increased traffic in James and Walker Streets. 
However this issue is addressed via condition no 3 below. Concern has also been raised by 
three residents of White Combe Way about the adequacy of that road to accommodate 
further traffic, However its design capacity exceeds the number of dwellings applied for, 
which overcomes this objection. 

4.48 Another common concern relates to the large amounts of asbestos claimed to be on the 
site. However its removal is controlled by specific legislation, so this issue therefore does 
not need to be addressed via a planning condition. The removal in a controlled way is also 
preferable to the building being left vacant and falling into further disrepair. 

4.49 The Parish Council have in addition to raising these points have commented on the 
trees which are located along the railway boundary. This matter is considered in the bio 
diversity section above. 

 

 

Page 38 of 71

Page 108

Agenda Item 8



 

5.Conclusions 

5.1 The site is allocated for residential development in the Local Plan, but also needs to 
meet specific criteria found in other policies. Approval will also comply with other local 
policies and national guidance, re sustainable drainage (SuDs), the reuse of brownfield 
land, and the introduction of green infra structure subject to imposition of necessary 
conditions where appropriate.  A s106 Obligation is also required to secure necessary 
payments for adequate maintenance of green spaces, affordable housing and the mitigation 
required under the Habitat Regulations. 

6. Recommendation 
 
I recommend that 
 
A; that the Council issues an Appropriate Assessment under the Habitat Regulations having 
regard to the 'Shadow Habitats Regulations Assessment' [Envirotech, May 19, 2020], 
that subject to securing the mitigation referred to under B (i) and C below, the development 
will not result in significant harm to any site to which the Regulations refer; 
and that; 
  
B; upon completion of a 106 Obligation (which may also be a Unilateral Undertaking) by the 
developer to secure the following: 
i) the mitigation referred to under A namely that prior to any demolition that a sum of 
£4200  shall have been paid to Cumbria Wildlife Trust, for increasing the area of breeding 
gull habitat by the erection of additional predator proof fencing at South Walney Nature 
Reserve. The sum includes funding for its ongoing maintenance,  
  
ii) that the following with regards the affordable housing units shall be included in any 
Reserved Matters application; 
the numbers of, the location, the dwelling type, proposed tenure and approx floor area in 
square metres  
that no less than 10% to be affordable units 
the timing of construction of the affordable units  
details of the proposed rent or price of the affordable units 
arrangements to ensure that the affordable units are affordable to both first and subsequent 
occupiers 
the arrangements for the transfer of the affordable units to either a register provider or the 
management of the affordable units 
the occupancy criteria to be used for determining the identity of occupiers of the affordable 
units and the means by which such occupancy criteria shall be enforced 
  
iii)to secure a payment of  £33,350 towards the cost of traffic calming/speed reduction in 
Lots Road, & provision of cycleway (route no.11, Barrow Transport Improvement Study) 
  
iv) Responsibilities re long term maintenance of SuDs 
 
 
 

Page 39 of 71

Page 109

Agenda Item 8



  
v) Responsibilities re long term maintenance of Green Infrastructure and the measures 
needed to to deliver a net gain in bio diversity 
  
then 
  
C;Outline Planning Permission be GRANTED subject to the following conditions : -  
1.  No development whatsoever shall take place until full details of the access, 
appearance, landscaping, layout and scale of the development have been submitted to 
and approved by the Planning Authority and the development shall conform to such 
approved details. 

Reason 

Required to be imposed  pursuant to Section 92  of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990,  as amended by Section 51  of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

2. Application for Reserved Matters must be made not later than the expiration of three 
years beginning with this permission and the development must be begun not later than 
whichever is the later of the following dates: 

a) The expiration of three years from the date of this permission 

b) The expiration of two years from the final approval of the Reserved Matters or in the 
case of approval on different dates, the final approval of the last such Matter to be 
approved. 

Reason 

Required to be imposed  pursuant to Section 92  of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990,  as amended by Section 51  of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004. 

Highway conditions 

3. Any reserved matters application must show vehicular access to the site from White 
Combe Way and not from either Walker Street or James Street 

Reason 

Walker Street and James Street are minor residential streets with sub standard visibility 
onto Duddon Road and whose effective carriageway width is reduced by on street car 
parking. To accord with Local Plan policy H7 

4. Any reserved matters application shall include pedestrian and cycle links into Walker 
Street and/or James Street 

Reason 

To promote walking and cycling as required by Local Plan policies DS2, DS5 and H7 

 
  

Page 40 of 71

Page 110

Agenda Item 8



 

5.The carriageway, footways, footpaths, cycleways etc shall be designed, constructed, 
drained and lit to a standard suitable for adoption and in this respect further details, 
including longitudinal/cross sections, shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority for 
approval before work commences on site.  No work shall be commenced until a full 
specification has been approved. These details shall be in accordance with the standards 
laid down in the current Cumbria Design Guide.  Any works so approved shall be 
constructed before the development is complete. 
 
Reason 

To secure the requirements of the County Council as Highway Authority, and to provide a 
safe environment for pedestrians and other users and to ensure an adequate standard of 
highway construction 

6. No dwellings  shall be occupied  (unless  in accordance with  a scheme  of phasing 
previously submitted to and approved in writing  by the Planning Authority)  until the estate 
road, including footways, has been constructed in all respects  to base course level,  and 
street lighting  has been provided and brought into full operational use in accordance  with 
details approved  under condition no 5 above, including any scheme of phasing. 

Reason 

To secure the requirements of the County Council as Highway Authority, and to provide a 
safe environment for pedestrians and other users and to ensure an adequate standard of 
highway construction 

7. Prior to the occupation of the 20th dwelling  a programme for the completion of the 
estate roads including footways and the works referred to by conditions 4 above shall have 
been submitted to and approved  in writing  by the Planning Authority and which shall then 
 be completed  in accordance with the approved programme and the details approved 
 under condition 5 above. If the estate road is not adopted as a public highway, then full 
details of the proposed arrangements for future management and maintenance of the 
proposed streets within the development shall, in addition to the aforementioned 
programme, be submitted to and approved by the Planning Authority. The streets shall 
thereafter be maintained in accordance with the approved management and maintenance 
details. 

Reason 

To secure the requirements of the County Council as Highway Authority, and to provide a 
safe environment for pedestrians and other users and to ensure an adequate standard of 
highway construction 

8. A risk assessment in relation to the potential for incursion of vehicles onto the 
operational railway and mitigation to address any risks identified shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing with the Planning Authority. The mitigation shall be provided prior to the 
occupation of any dwelling on the site. 

Page 41 of 71

Page 111

Agenda Item 8



 

Reason 

To ensure that any risks to the operational railway from vehicles using any highways close 
to the railway boundary are properly assessed and mitigated. To address issues raised by 
Network Rail in their consultation response 

Drainage Conditions 

9. Any reserved matters submission shall include full details of the surface water drainage 
system based upon the 'Flood Risk and Drainage Strategy' [R.G. Parkins & Partners, ref 
K35621/01/FRA/JB dated March 2019] including  a programme for 
implementation/completion.  The approved details shall be completed as approved and in 
accordance with the approved programme 
 
Reason 

To secure the objectives of the Flood Risk Assessment & Drainage Statement, the 
consultation response of the County Council as Lead Local Flood Authority, the 
consultation response of United Utilities, the consultation response of Network Rail, to 
promote sustainable development, to manage the risk of flooding, to accord with Local 
Plan policy C3a 

10. The maximum flow rate into the surface water sewer shall not exceed a maximum flow 
rate of 22.8 l/s for any storm event 
 
Reason 

To secure the objectives of the Flood Risk Assessment & Drainage Statement, the 
consultation response of the County Council as Lead Local Flood Authority, the 
consultation response of United Utilities, to promote sustainable development, to manage 
the risk of flooding, to accord with Local Plan policy C3a 

11.Prior to occupation of any dwelling a sustainable drainage management and 
maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development shall be submitted to and agreed in 
writing with the planning authority.  The sustainable drainage management and 
maintenance plan shall include as a minimum: 

1. Arrangements for adoption by an appropriate public body or statutory undertaker, or, 
management and maintenance by a management company; and 

2. Arrangements for inspection and ongoing maintenance of all elements of the 
sustainable drainage system to secure the operation of the surface water drainage 
scheme throughout its lifetime. 

The development shall subsequently be completed, maintained and managed in 
accordance with the approved drainage management and maintenance plan for the lifetime 
of the development. 

Page 42 of 71

Page 112

Agenda Item 8



 

Reason 

To ensure that management arrangements are in place for the sustainable drainage 
system in order to manage the risk of flooding and pollution during the lifetime of the 
development, to secure compliance with the consultation response of the County Council 
as Lead Local Flood Authority the consultation response of United Utilities, the consultation 
response of Network Rail and to accord with Local Plan policy C3a 

12.  Any reserved matters submission shall include details of all measures to be taken by 
the developer to prevent surface water discharging onto the highway shall be submitted to 
the Planning Authority for approval prior to the beneficial occupation of any part of the 
development. Any approved works shall be implemented  prior to the occupation of the 
respective dwelling and shall be permanently maintained operational thereafter. 

Reason 

To minimise dangers to highway users from potential flooding and to give effect to the 
requirements of the County Council as Highway and Lead Local Flood Authority 

13. Foul drainage shall be provided prior to the occupation of any dwelling in accordance 
with the foul drainage strategy contained within the Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage 
Strategy ref  K35621/01/FRA/JB and in accordance with further details of the route of the 
sewers which must have been submitted to and approved in writing by the planning 
authority prior to the commencement of development 

Reason 

To ensure that there is an acceptable and sustainable means of sewage disposal, to 
accord with the consultation response of Network Rail 

Ground Investigation conditions 

14. A Field Investigation and Risk Assessment, conducted in accordance with established 
procedures (BS10175 (2011) Code of Practice for the Investigation of Potentially 
Contaminated Sites and Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination 
(CLR11)), shall be undertaken to determine the full extent and degree of contamination 
and must be undertaken by a suitably qualified contaminated land practitioner. The results 
of the Field Investigation and Risk Assessment shall be submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority before any development begins. 

Reason 

To secure the recommendations  of  the 'Preliminary Site Investigation and Risk 
Assessment' ref BEK 18390-2 [bEk Enviro Nov/2018] in relation to the delineation of 
identified contamination and the need for further ground gas monitoring, to assess 
the potential for ground contamination in the interests of human health and the 
environment and to accord with Local Plan policy C4. 

Page 43 of 71

Page 113

Agenda Item 8



 

15.Where contamination is found which poses unacceptable risks, no development shall 
take place until a detailed Remediation Scheme has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme must include an appraisal of remedial 
options and proposal of the preferred option(s), all works to be undertaken, proposed 
remediation objectives, remediation criteria and a verification plan. The scheme must 
ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended use. 

Reason 

To ensure that any ground contamination is adequately remediated in the interests of 
human health and the environment and to accord with Local Plan policy C4 

16. The approved Remediation Scheme shall be implemented and a Verification Report 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority, prior to occupation of the 
development. 

Reason 

To ensure that any harm posed by contamination is mitigated and to accord with Local 
Plan policy C4 

17.In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved 
development, that was not previously identified, it must be reported immediately to the 
Planning Authority. Development on the part of the site affected must be halted and Field 
Investigations shall be carried out. Where required by the Local Planning Authority, 
remediation and verification schemes shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. These shall be implemented prior to occupation of the 
development.  

Reason 

To ensure measures are in place to address any unexpected contamination. 

18.No soil material is to be imported to the site until it has been tested for contamination 
and assessed for its suitability for the proposed development. A suitable methodology for 
testing this material should be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority 
prior to the soils being imported onto site. The methodology should include the sampling 
frequency, testing schedules, criteria against which the analytical results will be assessed 
(as determined by the risk assessment) and source material information. The analysis shall 
then be carried out as per the agreed methodology with verification of its completion 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

Reason 

To ensure that no contamination is accidentally brought onto the site via imported material. 

Page 44 of 71

Page 114

Agenda Item 8



 

Landscaping/bio diversity/Appropriate Assessment conditions 

19. No demolition within the application site shall occur between the 15th March to the 31st 
July in any year 
  
Reason 
  
To protect nesting birds in accordance with the consultation response of Natural England, 
to accord with the Habitat Regulations, to secure the recommendations of the Shadow 
Habitat Regulations Assessment [Envirotech May 19, 2020] and to accord with Local Plan 
policy N3 

20. Any reserved matters submission shall include details demonstrating a net gain of bio 
diversity achieving a minimum level of 1.71 units as per the Statement from Envirotech 
[AWG/5048, 5/12/2019]. The submission shall include a programme for the delivery of the 
bio diversity net gain and the approved details shall be implemented in accordance with the 
agreed programme 

Reason 

To secure the recommendations of the 'Ecological Appraisal' [Envirotech 18/12/2018], the 
recommendations of  the 'Statement from Envirotech' [AWG/5048, 5/12/2019] to accord 
with Local Plan policy N3, to accord with the Council's ' Biodiversity & Development SPD 
dated May 2018 

21. Any reserved matters submission shall include a green link along the eastern side 
boundary as defined by Local Plan policy Gl6 and accompanying text and which shall 
include an assessment of all existing trees to establish their potential for retention as part 
of the green link. The submission shall include a programme for the delivery of the green 
link and the approved details shall be implemented in accordance with the agreed 
programme 

Reason 

To secure the recommendations of the 'Ecological Appraisal' [envirotech 18/12/2018], the 
recommendations of  the 'Statement from Envirotech' [AWG/5048, 5/12/2019], to accord 
with Local Plan policies DS2, Gl1, Gl6, N3 and the Barrow Borough Green Infrastructure 
Strategy (final Draft)  

22. No trees shall be felled or hedgerows removed until the requirements of conditions 18 
and 19 have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority 

Reason 

To ensure that the potential for existing habitat/vegetation is taken into account in the 
development of both the green link and net gain in bio diversity and to accord with Local 
Plan policy N3 

Page 45 of 71

Page 115

Agenda Item 8



 

23. All planting,  seeding  or turfing  comprised  in the approved matters of landscaping 
shall be carried  out in the first planting  and seeding  seasons  following occupation of any 
part of the development,  or in  accordance with the phasing  of the scheme  as agreed  in 
writing with the Planning Authority. Any trees,  hedgerows  or plants which within a period 
 of five years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become 
seriously damaged  or diseased  shall be replaced  in the next planting season with  others 
of a similar size and species,unless the Planning Authority gives prior written  consent to 
any variation. 

Reason 

To ensure that the reserved matter of landscaping is implemented and retained 

24. The reserved matter of landscaping shall include details of all walls and fences to be 
erected as part of the development and which shall be designed to accord with Local Plan 
policy GI9 

Reason 

To ensure that the various means of enclosures are designed to assist the migration of 
wildlife as required by Local Plan policy Gl9 

25. Occupiers of the development shall be provided with an information pack when moving 
into the development and which shall be of a form as described in Paragraph 6.1.4 Shadow 
Habitat Regulations Assessment [Envirotech May 19, 2020] details of which shall have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning Authority prior to such 
occupation 

Reason 

To highlight the sensitivity of the European site to different types of recreational pressures 
and to accord with Local Plan policy N3 

Residential amenity conditions 

26. Any reserved matters application shall include the details necessary to deliver the 
reduction in noise levels both in terms of internal noise levels and to external amenity areas 
as recommended by the 'Acoustic Survey & Assessment' Report [Martins Environmental 
Improvement Jan 2019] together with a programme for their delivery. The development 
shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details including the approved 
programme 

Reason 

The 'Acoustic Survey & Assessment' Report has identified the need for mitigation to ensure 
that future occupiers are not adversely affected by noise, to accord with Local Plan policy 
H7 

Page 46 of 71

Page 116

Agenda Item 8



 

27.Prior to the commencement of any development a Construction Method Statement shall 
be submitted to, and approved in writing by the Planning Authority. The Statement should 
cover all phases of the development and take account of all contractors or sub-contractors 
and must be submitted for approval by the Planning Authority, prior to the commencement 
of the development. The Statement shall include; 

i. Details of phasing of the construction work including a programme of work for the 
demolition and construction phase; 

ii. A Traffic Management Plan to include all construction traffic associated with the 
development, including haul routes, timings of deliveries, unloading facilities, and on site 
parking provision for all contractors vehicles, (including any phasing of this parking 
provision); 

iii. Procedures to monitor and mitigate noise and vibration from the construction and 
demolition and to monitor any properties at risk of damage from vibration, as well as taking 
into account noise from plant, machinery, vehicles and deliveries, with reference to BS 5228 
- Code of Practice for Noise and Vibration control on Construction and Open Sites. All 
measurements should make reference to BS 7445 - Description and Measurement of 
Environmental Noise; 

iv. Hours of working and deliveries; v. Mitigation measures to reduce adverse impacts on 
residential properties from construction compounds including visual impact, noise, dust and 
light pollution; 

vi. Mitigation measures to control the emissions of dust and dirt during construction and 
demolition; 

vii. A written procedure for dealing with complaints regarding the construction or demolition; 
A site log book to record details and action taken in response to exceptional noisy incidents 
or dust-causing episodes. It should also be used to record the results of routine site 
inspections; viii. Details of lighting to be used on site; 

ix. Mitigation measures, where appropriate, to ensure that no harm is caused to protected 
species during construction; 

x. The provision of facilities for the cleaning of vehicle tyres where haul routes meet the 
public highway to avoid deposition of mud/debris on the public highway and the generation 
of dust. 

xi.The inclusion of a pollution control document as described in paragraph 6.2.3 of Shadow 
Habitats Regulations Assessment [Envirotech May 19, 2020 

 

 

 

Page 47 of 71

Page 117

Agenda Item 8



 

Reason 

To protect residential amenity, to safeguard the European site, to secure the requirements 
of the Shadow Habitats Regulations Assessment [Envirotech May 19, 2020] 

 

 

Page 48 of 71

Page 118

Agenda Item 8



3

3

E

l

 

S

u

b

 

S

t

a

5

1

Club

4

Factory

3

1

3

2

1

J

a

m

e

s

 

S

t

r

e

e

t

E

a

s

t

1

1

4

1

5

SP

M

P

 
.
2

5

B

e

c

k

B
l
e
a

J

a

m

e

s

 

S

t

r

e

e

t

W

e

s

t

J

A

M

E

S

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

E

l
 
S

u

b

 
S

t
a

1

0

.

4

m

9

1

PH

1

0

1

9

2

9

5

2

1

0

3

1

0

9

1

6

2

2

Church

O

r
c

h

a

r
d

 
H

o

u

s

e
8

2

9

3

a

9

3

1

2

6

W

A

L

K

E

R

 
S

T

R

E

E

T

D

U

D

D

O

N

 

R

O

A

D

Ppg

Sta

7

9

Askam Station

Belmont

Kengarth

5

4

4

8

6

9

3

5

5

5

7

6

1

6

7

M

A

R

S

H

 

L

A

N

E

S
T

A
T

I
O

N

 
Y

A
R

D

1

2

9

2

5

2

7

a

3

8

a

3

8

H

i

l

'

n

'

j

a

y

3

1

House

N

e

a

r

 

M

a

r

s

h

2

a

Ivy

4

2

2

7

C

R

O

S

S

L

E

Y

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

10.1m

3

3

6

1

3

T

h

e

B

u

n

g

a

l

o

w

2

7

8

2

1

4

0

2

9

SB

S

P

F

E

L

L

 

V

I

E

W

 

D

R

I

V

E

10.7m

3

4

3

2

Liby

1

3

0

6

1

9

1

4

1

6

2

3

 
t
o

 
9

1

LC

L

 

T

w

r

s

D

 

F

n

L

O

R

D

 

S

T

R

E

E

T

©Crown Copyright and database rights 2016 OS 100019980

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS ON THE JOB BEFORE STARTING

WORK OR PREPARING SHOP DRAWINGS.  ANY DISCREPANCIES MUST BE REFERRED TO

THE ARCHITECT.  DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

COMMENTREV DATE

COPYRIGHT ON ALL DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATION AND DOCUMENTATION REMAINS THE

PROPERTY OF JOHN COWARD ARCHITECTS LTD, AND MUST NOT BE COPIED OR

REPRODUCED IN WHOLE OR IN PART IN ANY MANNER OR FORM WITHOUT PRIOR

CONSENT OF THE COMPANY.

No. 3 Unsworth's Yard,

Ford Road,

Cartmel,

Cumbria, LA11 6PG

www.johncowardarchitects.co.uk

JOHN COWARD ARCHITECTS LIMITED

PROJECT

CLIENT

TITLE

SCALE/

 
A3

DRAWN CHECKED DATE

REVISIONDRAWING NOJOB NO

18016 02

BY

architects

jca

-

1:1250 cb April '19-

DEVELOPMENT OF UROFOAM SITE

Duddon Road

Askam in Furness

Urofoam Ltd

Location Plan

N

2019/0513

Page 49 of 71

Page 119

Agenda Item 8



33

5

1

Club

4

31

3
2

1

James Street

East

15

SP

M
P .25

Be
ck

Bl
ea

James Street
West JAMES STREET

10.4m

91

PH
92

2

16
22

Church

Orchard House82

93

12

WALKER STREET

DUDDON ROAD

Ppg

Sta

79

Askam Station

Belmont

Kengarth

54

48

69

3

55

57

61

67

STATIO
N

 YAR
D

1

29

25

27
a

38

31

House

2a

Ivy

4
2

27

CROSS
LE

Y 
ST

REE
T

10.1m

3

13Th
e

Bu
ng

alo
w

27

8

21

29

SB

SP

FELL VIEW DRIVE

10.7m
34 1

16

LC

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS ON THE JOB BEFORE STARTING
WORK OR PREPARING SHOP DRAWINGS.  ANY DISCREPANCIES MUST BE REFERRED TO
THE ARCHITECT.  DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.

COMMENTREV DATE

COPYRIGHT ON ALL DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATION AND DOCUMENTATION REMAINS THE

PROPERTY OF JOHN COWARD ARCHITECTS LTD, AND MUST NOT BE COPIED OR

REPRODUCED IN WHOLE OR IN PART IN ANY MANNER OR FORM WITHOUT PRIOR CONSENT

OF THE COMPANY.

No. 3 Unsworth's Yard,
Ford Road,
Cartmel,
Cumbria, LA11 6PG

Tel : (015395) 36596
Fax : (015395) 36775
www.johncowardarchitects.co.uk

JOHN COWARD ARCHITECTS LIMITED

PROJECT

CLIENT

TITLE

SCALE/ A1 DRAWN CHECKED DATE

REVISIONDRAWING NOJOB NO

1:500

REDEVELOPMENT OF UROFOAM SITE
Duddon Road
Askam in Furness

BY

architects
jca

Urofoam Ltd

Indicative Site Plan

rg - May 2020

1816 04

N

3
4

5
6

11
12

25
26

30
29

28

36
35

31
33

32

1
2

7
8

13
14

18

19
21

20

23
24

38
37

40
39

42 UNITS
9

10

15

22

16
17

27

35

42
41

0 5 10 15 20 30 40 50

2019/0513

Page 50 of 71

Page 120

Agenda Item 8



B13/2019/0242
Planning Committee

23rd June 2020

Application Number : B13/2019/0242 Date Valid :16/04/2019

Address : Land to the rear of 12 /14 Nelson
Street Dalton-in-Furness Case Officer : Charles Wilton

Proposal : Outline planning permission with all matters reserved for the erection of 2
dwellings with detached garages

Ward : Dalton North Ward Parish : Dalton Town with Newton Parish
Council

Applicant : Mr G Murray Agent : Mr I Whalley

Statutory Date : 11/06/2019 Recommendation : Granted with
conditions

Barrow Planning Hub

Relevant Policies and Guidance

Full details of the policies listed below are included in the appendix

Local Plan Policies

1. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy C3a - Water management
2. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to

sustainable development
3. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development

Criteria
4. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy DS5 - Design
5. Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031 - Policy H7 - Housing Development on

Windfall Sites

Summary of Main Issues

Small scale housing development on a brownfield site which has had several previous
permissions but none implemented

Non Material Considerations

Landownership and boundary issues

Page 51 of 71

Page 121

Agenda Item 8



Response to Publicity and Consultations

Development advertised on site and in the local press.

Neighbours Consulted

Street
Name Properties
Fell Croft 22, 24, 26, 28,

Nelson
Street

10, 12, 14, 16, 18, Flat C 18, Flat A 18, Flat B 18, 6, 8, The Kiln House, 10
Trafalgar Court, 8 Trafalgar Court, 11 Trafalgar Court, 9 Trafalgar Court, 7
Trafalgar Court, 6 Trafalgar Court, 5 Trafalgar Court, 4 Trafalgar Court, 1
Trafalgar Court,

Rowlinson
Place 21, 23, 5, 5A,

Responses Support Object Neutral

4 0 1 3

Organisations Consulted

Consultee
Barrow Borough Council (Building Control)
Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services Contamination)
Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning)
Cumbria County Council (Highways)
Cumbria County Council (LLFA)
Dalton With Newton Town Council
Environment Agency (Contamination, Flood and Pollution)
United Utilities (Asset Protection)

List of Organisation Responses

Barrow Borough Council (Building Control) 18/04/2019

“Building regulation approval required for the proposals”.

Page 52 of 71

Page 122

Agenda Item 8



08/05/2019

Barrow Borough Council (Public Protection Services Contamination)

“Thank you for the above consultation, i note from our records that industrial activity has
taken place on this site and we have no current investigations on record to ascertain
whether the site is it for its intended use.

In the absence of a contamination assessment, I would recommend that conditions are
imposed on any Planning Consent granted, based on the following:

1. No development shall take place until a Preliminary Investigation (desk study, site
reconnaissance and preliminary risk assessment), to investigate and assess the risk
of potential contamination, is submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. This investigation must be undertaken by a suitably qualified
contaminated land practitioner, in accordance with established procedures (BS10175
(2011) Code of Practice for the Investigation of Potentially Contaminated Sites and
Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination (CLR11)).

2. If the Preliminary Investigation identifies potential unacceptable risks, a Field
Investigation and Risk Assessment, conducted in accordance with established
procedures (BS10175 (2011) Code of Practice for the Investigation of Potentially
Contaminated Sites and Model Procedures for the Management of Land
Contamination (CLR11)), shall be undertaken to determine the presence and degree
of contamination and must be undertaken by a suitably qualified contaminated land
practitioner. The results of the Field Investigation and Risk Assessment shall be
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority before any development
begins.

3. Where contamination is found which poses unacceptable risks, no development shall
take place until a detailed Remediation Scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme must include an
appraisal of remedial options and proposal of the preferred option(s), all works to be
undertaken, proposed remediation objectives, remediation criteria and a verification
plan. The scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land
under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended
use.

4. The approved Remediation Scheme shall be implemented and a Verification
Report submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, prior to
occupation of the development.

Page 53 of 71

Page 123

Agenda Item 8



5. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved
development, that was not previously identified, it must be reported immediately to
the Local Planning Authority. Development on the part of the site affected must be
halted and Field Investigations shall be carried out. Where required by the Local
Planning Authority, remediation and verification schemes shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These shall be implemented
prior to occupation of the development.

6. No soil material is to be imported to the site until it has been tested for contamination
and assessed for its suitability for the proposed development. A suitable
methodology for testing this material should be submitted to and approved by the
Local Planning Authority prior to the soils being imported onto site. The methodology
should include the sampling frequency, testing schedules, criteria against which the
analytical results will be assessed (as determined by the risk assessment) and
source material information. The analysis shall then be carried out as per the agreed
methodology with verification of its completion submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority”.

Cumbria County Council (Emergency Planning) 18/04/2019

"There are no objections to the proposed development but it should be noted that the
proposed development is situated within the potential inundation area for Harlock and
Poaka Beck Reservoirs. These Reservoirs falls under the Water Framework Directive and
has a prepared off site emergency planning. Accordingly I would be grateful if you could, in
the event of the application being approved, advise the applicant to liaise with this office to
allow for further discussion of available information.

Accordingly I would be grateful if you could, in the event of the application being approved,
advise the applicant to liaise with this office to allow for further discussion."

Cumbria County Council (Highways) 21/05/2019

"Thank you for your consultation on 18/04/2019 regarding the above Planning Application.

Cumbria County Council as the Highways Authority and the Lead Local Flood Authority
(LLFA) has reviewed the above planning reference and our findings are detailed below.

Highways response:

A Private Shared Driveway and Courtyard (not adoptable) serving up to 5 dwellings, should
have a minimum carriageway width of 4.1m for the first 10m. Refuse vehicles will require
an area for refuse / recycling bin collection there should be a designated area for
collection, this should not be on the highway (general waste and green waste collections).
Also access for emergency services.

Existing access is lacking of inter-visibility and safe scape for the pedestrians. Visibility at
the access is poor and does not include pedestrian visibility.

Page 54 of 71

Page 124

Agenda Item 8



The indicative parking is insufficient for the size of the properties, we would expect a
minimum of 2 parking spaces to be provided for each of the proposed dwellings together
with adequate onsite turning area.

Conclusion:

With the above in mind I have no alternative as to recommend refusal on the following
grounds:

The increased use of the access onto the public highway, resulting from the
proposed development would, by reason of the limited visibility from and of vehicles
using the access and lack of width to accommodate improvement, be likely to result
in additional danger to all users of road.

To support Local Transport Plan Policy: LD7, LD8

We will as always be more than willing to reconsider our view is the applicant could show
that each dwelling could accommodate 2 off road parking spaces, a HGV turning head
could be provided and the access improved to at least 4.1m width (and 4.8 for the first 5m
form the highway)."

Cumbria County Council (LLFA) 21/05/2019

LLFA response:

"The LLFA surface water map show flooding to the area and indicate 0.1% (1 in 1000)
chance of occurring each year and the Environment Agency (EA) surface water maps
indicate that the site is in flood zone 2. The applicant should consult with the Environment
Agency regarding a flood risk assessment.

The drainage would need to be identified for proposals for foul and surface water, mains
connected or to soakaway. The surface water drainage should not be greater than the
already existing. If installing a soakaway we would advise not to be positioned in close
proximity to the highway – which should be at least 5m away from the highway and
property.

The applicant may also find useful from our website sustainable drainage systems (SuDs)
Cumbria Development Design Guide Appendix 6 – SuDs components which provides

examples of various types of SuDs components that are considered appropriate to a
sustainable drainage system."

Page 55 of 71

Page 125

Agenda Item 8



Cumbria County Council (Highways) 16/03/2020

“Cumbria County Council as the Highways Authority and the Lead Local Flood Authority
(LLFA) has reviewed the above planning reference and our findings are detailed below.

The application purports to be outline with all matters reserved . The application form
however states that it is for 3 dwellings and garages, but the indicative drawings shows 2
dwellings without garages.

This is particularly important considering the size of the application area as well as the
substandard nature of the access.

We would have no objection to this application if the traffic generation from the site is
similar to the existing use and the site can provide for the required number of parking
spaces.

It is our view that this will not be possible for 3 dwellings.

Can you please be kind enough and request that the applicant provide some more details”.

Cumbria County Council (Highways) 18/03/2020

“On that basis [in response to reduction to two dwellings] we would have no objections to
this proposal”.

Dalton With Newton Town Council 14/06/2019

"The Town Council object to this development.

The only access to the development site is a narrow 'alleyway' located between two
existing properties on Nelson Street. Vehicles entering or exiting the site must do so via
this alleyway emerging between parked cars on to a busy but narrow road used by buses
and coaches travelling at least twice daily to nearby Dowdales School. Should emergency
services be required there is absolutely no possibility of a vehicle larger than a normal
family sized car being able to access the properties.

The Town Council consider the erection of three two storey properties on such a small site
to be over intensive development and intrusive to existing properties. The Town Council
would suggest a site visit by the planning committee"

Environment Agency (Contamination, Flood and Pollution) 02/05/2019

"The application is for more vulnerable development on land that extends into flood zones 2
and 3. In accordance with the National Planning Practice Framework (NPPF) the
application is accompanied by a flood risk assessment (FRA).

Page 56 of 71

Page 126

Agenda Item 8



Environment Agency position

We have reviewed the FRA, referenced Land to the Rear of 12-14 Nelson Street, Dalton-in-
Furness, Cumbria, LA15 8AF, dated March 2019, submitted with the outline planning
application and we are satisfied that it demonstrates that the proposed development will not
be at an unacceptable risk of flooding or exacerbate flood risk elsewhere. The proposed
development must proceed in strict accordance with this FRA and the mitigation measures
identified as it will form part of any subsequent planning approval. Any proposed changes to
the approved FRA and / or the mitigation measures identified will require the submission of
a revised FRA as part of an amended planning application."

United Utilities 23/04/2019

"With reference to the above planning application, United Utilities wishes to draw attention
to the following as a means to facilitate sustainable development within the region.

Drainage

In accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the National
Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG), the site should be drained on a separate system with
foul water draining to the public sewer and surface water draining in the most sustainable
way.

The NPPG clearly outlines the hierarchy to be investigated by the developer when
considering a surface water drainage strategy. We would ask the developer to consider the
following drainage options in the following order of priority:

1. into the ground (infiltration);

2. to a surface water body;

3. to a surface water sewer, highway drain, or another drainage system;

4. to a combined sewer.

We recommend the applicant implements the scheme in accordance with the surface water
drainage hierarchy outlined above.

Page 57 of 71

Page 127

Agenda Item 8



If the applicant intends to offer wastewater assets forward for adoption by United Utilities,
the proposed detailed design will be subject to a technical appraisal by an Adoptions
Engineer as we need to be sure that the proposal meets the requirements of Sewers for
adoption and United Utilities’ Asset Standards. The proposed design should give
consideration to long term operability and give United Utilities a cost effective proposal for
the life of the assets. Therefore, should this application be approved and the applicant
wishes to progress a Section 104 agreement, we strongly recommend that no construction
commences until the detailed drainage design, submitted as part of the Section 104
agreement, has been assessed and accepted in writing by United Utilities. Any works
carried out prior to the technical assessment being approved is done entirely at the
developers own risk and could be subject to change.

Details of both our S106 sewer connections and S104 sewer adoptions processes
(including application forms) can be found on our website
http://www.unitedutilities.com/builders- developers.aspx

Please note we are not responsible for advising on rates of discharge to the local
watercourse system. This is a matter for you to discuss with the Lead Local Flood
Authority and / or the Environment Agency if the watercourse is classified as main river.

Water supply

If the applicant intends to obtain a water supply from United Utilities for the proposed
development, we strongly recommend they engage with us at the earliest opportunity. If
reinforcement of the water network is required to meet the demand, this could be a
significant project which should be accounted for in the project timeline for design and
construction.

To discuss a potential water supply or any of the water comments detailed above, the
applicant can contact the team at DeveloperServicesWater@uuplc.co.uk.

Please note, all internal pipework must comply with current Water Supply (water
fittings) Regulations 1999.

United Utilities’ property, assets and infrastructure

Where United Utilities’ assets exist, the level of cover to the water mains and public sewers
must not be compromised either during or after construction.

For advice regarding protection of United Utilities’ assets, the applicant should contact the
teams as follows:

Water assets – DeveloperServicesWater@uuplc.co.uk

Wastewater assets – WastewaterDeveloperServices@uuplc.co.uk

Page 58 of 71

Page 128

Agenda Item 8



It is the applicant's responsibility to investigate the possibility of any United
Utilities’ assets potentially impacted by their proposals and to demonstrate the
exact relationship between any United Utilities' assets and the proposed
development.

A number of providers offer a paid for mapping service including United Utilities. To find out
how to purchase a sewer and water plan from United Utilities, please visit the Property
Searches website; https://www.unitedutilities.com/property-searches/. You can also view
the plans for free. To make an appointment to view our sewer records at your local
authority please contact them direct, alternatively if you wish to view the water and the
sewer records at our Lingley Mere offices based in Warrington please ring 0370 751 0101
to book an appointment.

Due to the public sewer transfer in 2011, not all sewers are currently shown on the statutory
sewer records and we do not always show private pipes on our plans. If a sewer is
discovered during construction; please contact a Building Control Body to discuss the
matter further.

For any further information regarding Developer Services and Planning, please visit our
website at http://www.unitedutilities.com/builders-developers.aspx"

Officers Report

1.Site and Locality

1.1 The application site comprises a large yard area which is used for the parking of mini bus
taxis. These are used in connection with school transport contracts with Cumbria County
Council and dates from 1998 when permission was granted for this use (1998/0057).
Access to the site is via a narrow lane which emerges onto Nelson Street between nos 10
and 12. The access also serves adjacent properties

2.Proposal Details

2.1 Outline planning permission with all matters reserved for the construction of 2 dwellings
with four parking spaces. Scheme includes the demolition of a concrete block garage which
can accommodate 3 mini buses.

3.Relevant History

3.1 B13/2008/1707 Rear of 12 & 14 Nelson Street Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria Erection of a
block containing four, two bedroomed flats and a block of four garages. Refused
04/02/2009

3.2 B13/2009/0073 Rear of 6-10 Nelson Street Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria LA15 8AF
Erection of one pair of semi-detached dwellings (Outline) Appcond 18-JUN-2009

Page 59 of 71

Page 129

Agenda Item 8



3.3 B13/2009/0236 Rear of 12 & 14 Nelson Street Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria Erection of a
block containing four, two bedroomed flats and a block of four garages (resubmission of
2008/1707 in a revised form) Appcond 09-JUL-2009

3.4 B13/2012/0388 6-10 (Rear of) Nelson Street Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria Application for a
new planning permission to replace an extant planning permission B13/2009/0073 -
Erection of one pair of semi-detached dwellings (Outline-all matters reserved) Appcond 22-
AUG-2012

3.5 B20/2014/0042 Land at the rear of 8-10 Nelson Street Dalton-in-Furness Cumbria
Conversion of former pottery workshop, including addition of a ground floor extension, to
form a single dwellinghouse. Appcond 17-JUN-2014

4. Officer Assessment

4.1 H7 is the main Local Plan policy in relation to new housing applications. This states that
applications will be approved where stated criteria (a-n) is met. I have run through the
criteria below using each criterion as a sub heading with commentary beneath:

4.2 a) The site is located within or adjacent to a built up area

The site is located within a built up area

4.3 b) Site planning, layout, and servicing arrangements are developed comprehensively

This criteria is aimed at larger site's which involve extensive infra structure

c) Buildings are well designed in terms of siting, grouping and scale

4.4 The application is submitted in outline form with all matters including layout, scale and
appearance reserved for subsequent approval. Information submitted with the application,
albeit illustrative, shows the dwellings located fairly centrally within the site facing west in
the direction of Nelson Street. This location reflects the previous layouts and which were
considered to meet the equivalent policy of the previous local plan

4.5 An acceptable standard of amenity would be created for future occupiers by reason of
sunlighting, daylighting, privacy, outlook, noise and ventilation

Based on the illustrative layout plan the houses can be designed to comply with sun & day
lighting requirements. In terms of privacy both properties are shown to have their own
private rear gardens. Based on the illustrative information distances to neighbouring houses
is reasonably generous for a central urban site. For example distances between the front
elevations of the proposed houses and the main rear elevation of the terrace in Nelson
Street scales at 27m whereas the equivalent distance to Fell Croft to the rear is 24m. This
exceeds the distance of 21m which is referred to by policy H17 in the context of house
extensions. The site raises no particular noise or ventilation issues

Page 60 of 71

Page 130

Agenda Item 8



4.6 e) Site is served via a satisfactory access

The highway authority initially recommended refusal commenting:

The increased use of the access onto the public highway, resulting from the proposed
development would, by reason of the limited visibility from and of vehicles using the
access and lack of width to accommodate improvement, be likely to result in
additional danger to all users of road [consultation response dated 21/05/2020]

4.7 Dalton with Newton Town Council have recommended that planning permission be
refused for the same reason.

4.8 Since these comments were made the number of houses has been reduced from three
to two and the County Council has now removed their objection.

4.9 The lane is narrow (3.1m) and does not allow two vehicles to pass. Visibility of
pedestrians for vehicles emerging onto Nelson St is also limited. However the access is
long standing and is already used by vehicles. For example two other properties use the
lane for vehicular access to their properties including a residential conversion of a pottery
workshop approved in June 2014.

4.10 Furthermore the application site has a lawful use for the operation of taxis with a large
garage on site in addition to the yard area. This use continues to operate from the site but
would be lost were the development to proceed. The taxi use was a material consideration
when permission was granted for the erection of a block containing four, two bedroomed
flats and four garages in 2009. It is unlikely that other sites will come forward and be served
by this access.

4.11 The existing level of use, and these past planning decisions, are material planning
considerations. In this context, it is difficult to see how the proposed residential scheme
would result in an increased use of the access. It was these factors and the reduction to two
units which lead to CCC removing its highway objection. These factors should out-weigh
the objection from the Town Council.

4.12 A further matter concerning access is that the width is too narrow for a fire
tender(minimum 3.7m). Also that part of the houses would be located beyond the reach of
fire equipment (45m). This matter was considered in 2009 in connection with the application
for four flats. It was agreed that the development could go ahead if fire sprinklers were
installed in the buildings. The same condition is recommended to be imposed on the current
proposal.

4.13 Criterion 'e' should be considered to have been met.

4.14 f ) The site has been designed to promote walking and cycling

Page 61 of 71

Page 131

Agenda Item 8



4.15 The site occupies a central location in close walking distance to facilities including
shops, schools and public transport

g) The development is sustainable in terms of energy usage, transport implications and is
not at risk of flooding

4.16 The transport implications are low. Part of the central area of Dalton is at risk of flood
being within zone 3 high probability of flood. The application site is on the edge of this area
partly in zone 2 (medium probability) and zone 1 (low probability) though the access is in
zone 3. As a consequence the applicant was required to submit a Flood Risk Assessment
and the Environment Agency have been consulted. They have advised;

"we are satisfied that it [FRA] demonstrates that the proposed development will not be at
an unacceptable risk of flooding or exacerbate flood risk elsewhere. The proposed
development must proceed in strict accordance with this FRA and the mitigation measures
identified as it will form part of any subsequent planning approval. Any proposed changes to
the approved FRA and / or the mitigation measures identified will require the submission of
a revised FRA as part of an amended planning application."

4.17 The mitigation consists of achieving a minimum finished floor level of 34.44m OD
compared to s site level of 33m to 33.72m. The houses will therefore need to be built up
higher out of the ground than would otherwise be necessary. While the planning authority
can demonstrate that there are sequentially better sites elsewhere in terms of lower flood
risk there are public benefits to delivering new residential development in older urban areas.
Also as confirmed by the EA the development can be made safe.

4.18 h) i) only applies to larger scale developments

4.19 j) only applies to rural settlements

4.20 k) only applies to developments on the edge of Barrow or Dalton

4.21 l) Development shall not harm the historic environment

4.22 Site located outside of the conservation area/does not impact on the setting of any
listed buildings

4.23 m) no unacceptable impacts on the amenities of adjacent properties

A good level of separation would be provided in terms of privacy in the context of an urban
location. Distances between the proposed elevations and the habitable rooms in
neighbouring houses exceeds 21m. Development has been shown to comply with day and
sun lighting requirements taking account of the raised finished floor level. The removal of
parking/garage facilities for a taxi business is itself likely to have a positive impact on
residential amenity

Page 62 of 71

Page 132

Agenda Item 8



4.24 n) That the development complies with policy N3

This policy seeks to protect features of bio diversity interest and enhance them where
possible. However this site appears to be of low consisting of a concrete block built garage
and yard area. Provision of residential curtilages should in itself represent an enhancement

Representations

4.25 Four representations have been received which I can summarise as follows;

One representation seeks an assurance that the garden/yard wall will be retained. I
understand that there is no intention to remove/alter it but this is more of a civil matter.
Certainly there is no need to alter the wall to allow the development to proceed. The
remaining representations are also civil matters outwith of the Planning system.

 own a strip of land which has been included within the application site. This does not
appear to impact on the development.

 no objection to the erection of 3 dwellings. However they go on to state that they
have a lawful right to use the shared access.

 no objection to the erection of three dwellings but query the ownership status of the
shared lane and request that this is resolved prior to the grant of planning
permission.

5. Conclusions

5.1 The proposal represents small scale, residential development on a brown-field site in a
highly sustainable location. Flood risk has been addressed and the Environment Agency
have confirmed no objection. The objections from the Town Council is not considered
sufficient, based upon the planning history of the site, to warrant the refusal of the
application given the existing level of use of the existing access. Issues of ground
investigations and surface water disposal can be addressed via conditions.

6. Recommendation

I recommend that outline planning permission be GRANTED subject to;

1 & 2 Standard outline and duration limits

3. The finished floor level shall be set at 34.44m Ordnance Datum

Reason

To secure the mitigation contained within the Flood Risk Assessment dated March 2019

Page 63 of 71

Page 133

Agenda Item 8



4. No dwelling shall be occupied until a sprinkler system has been installed in accordance
with details which must have first been submitted to and approved in writing by the Planning
Authority. The sprinkler system shall thereafter be permanently retained in operational use.

Reason

In the interests of public safety, the sprinkler system is required in order to compensate for
the restricted access to the site for fire appliances

5. No development shall take place until a Preliminary Investigation (desk study, site
reconnaissance and preliminary risk assessment), to investigate and assess the risk of
potential contamination, is submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. This investigation must be undertaken by a suitably qualified contaminated land
practitioner, in accordance with established procedures (BS10175 (2011) Code of Practice
for the Investigation of Potentially Contaminated Sites and Model Procedures for the
Management of Land Contamination (CLR11).

Reason

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems. It is required pre-commencement to ensure that the development can
be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors in accordance with Local Plan Policy C4 of the Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-
2031.

6. If the Preliminary Investigation identifies potential unacceptable risks, a Field
Investigation and Risk Assessment, conducted in accordance with established procedures
(BS10175 (2011+A2:2017) Code of Practice for the Investigation of Potentially
Contaminated Sites and Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination
(CLR11)), shall be undertaken to determine the presence and degree of contamination and
must be undertaken by a suitably qualified contaminated land practitioner. The results of
the Field Investigation and Risk Assessment shall be submitted to and approved by the
Planning Authority before any development begins.

Reason

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems. It is required pre-commencement to ensure that the development can
be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors in accordance with Local Plan Policy C4 of the Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-
2031.

Page 64 of 71

Page 134

Agenda Item 8



7. No development shall take place until a Construction Method Statement has been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Planning Authority. The approved Statement
shall be adhered to throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide for all
of the following: i. the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors, ii. loading and
unloading of plant and materials, iii. storage of plant and materials used in constructing the
development, iv. the proposed construction vehicle and delivery routing plans, v. wheel
washing facilities where vehicles will enter/exit the site, vi. measures to control the emission
of dust and dirt during construction.

Reason

In the interests of minimising the impact upon local environmental amenity.

8. No soil material is to be imported to the site until it has been tested for contamination and
assessed for its suitability for the proposed development. A suitable methodology for testing
this material should be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to
the soils being imported onto site. The methodology should include the sampling frequency,
testing schedules, criteria against which the analytical results will be assessed (as
determined by the risk assessment) and source material information. The analysis shall
then be carried out as per the agreed methodology with verification of its completion
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason

To ensure that the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to
workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors and to ensure that risks from land
contamination to the future users of the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together
with those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems in accordance with Local
Plan Policy C4 of the Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031.

9. The site should be drained on a separate system with foul water draining to the public
sewer and surface water draining in the most sustainable way. The National Planning
Practice Guidance clearly outlines the hierarchy to be investigated when considering a
surface water drainage strategy, in the following order of priority: 1. into the ground
(infiltration); 2. to a surface water body; 3. to a surface water sewer, highway drain, or
another drainage system; 4. to a combined sewer. Justification for and details of the
proposed system shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by the Planning Authority
prior to installation, and thereafter installed in accordance with the approved details.

Reason

To ensure the site is drained by the most sustainable method in accordance with the
principles of the NPPF and Local Plan Policy C3a.

Page 65 of 71

Page 135

Agenda Item 8



10. In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved
development, that was not previously identified, it must be reported immediately to the
Local Planning Authority. Development on the part of the site affected must be halted and
Field Investigations shall be carried out. Where required by the Local Planning Authority,
remediation and verification schemes shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. These shall be implemented prior to occupation of the
development.

Reason

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems in accordance with Local Plan Policy C4 of the Barrow Borough Local
Plan 2016-2031.

11. The approved Remediation Scheme shall be implemented and a Verification Report
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, prior to occupation of
the development.

Reason

To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems in accordance with Local Plan Policy C4 of the Barrow Borough Local
Plan 2016-2031.

12. Any reserved matters submission shall contain measures demonstrating that the
proposal delivers a net gain in bio diversity and no dwelling shall be occupied until the
approved measures have been implemented and which shall be permanently retained

Reason

To deliver a net gain in bio diversity to accord with the Council's Bio Diversity and
Development SPD

13. No dwelling shall be occupied until the dwelling has been provided with two car parking
spaces and a turning facility as indicated on 'Proposed Schematic Site Layout' ref 1031-P-
01. The parking spaces, access thereto and the turning facility must be reserved for the
parking of private motor vehicles and no permanent development, whether permitted by the
Town & Country Planning (General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (as
amended, or any Order revoking or re-enacting that Order with or without modifications) or
not, shall be carried out on that area of land in such position as to preclude vehicular
access to the development hereby permitted.

Page 66 of 71

Page 136

Agenda Item 8



Reason

To ensure that proper access and parking provision is made and retained for the use
associated with the development hereby permitted.

Informative

 Please note that any additional external alterations required under the Building
Regulations may also require prior planning consent. Please speak to the Planning
Officer before any such works are carried out

 This development may require approval under the Building Regulations. Please
contact your Building Control department on 01229 876356 for further advice as to
how to proceed.

Page 67 of 71

Page 137

Agenda Item 8



2019/0242

Page 68 of 71

Page 138

Agenda Item 8



20
19

/0
24

2

Page 69 of 71

P
age 139

A
genda Item

 8



2019/0242

Page 70 of 71

P
age 140

A
genda Item

 8



2019/0242

Page 71 of 71

P
age 141

A
genda Item

 8



Appendices of Policies

Note to Members

Below are the full wordings of the policies relevant to the applications found on the
agenda today.

Barrow Borough Local Plan 2016-2031

Policy C2 - Development and the Coast
Development in a coastal location will only be permitted where:

a) There will be no unacceptable harm to natural coastal processes, including increasing
the risk of flooding, coastal erosion and instability;

b) There will be no unacceptable harm to habitats, species, geodiversity, designated
sites and the historic environment;

c) The capacity of the coast to form a natural sea defence or adjust to changes in
conditions without risk to life or property will not be prejudiced;

d) There will not be an increased need for additional sea walls or other civil engineering
works (defence structures) for coastal protection purposes except where necessary to
protect existing investment;

e) The open character of the undeveloped coast is maintained, with the existing
landscape character of the site respected and reinforced;

f) Local fisheries will not be prejudiced;

g) There will be no unacceptable adverse effect on people's enjoyment of natural
landscape character; and

h) There will be no adverse effect on recreational activities at the coast.

Opportunities to improve access to the coast will be sought where possible and where
the above criteria can be met.

Policy C3a - Water management
All new development will minimise its impacts on the environment through the following
measures:

Page 142

Agenda Item 8



a) New development will achieve the minimum standards for water efficiency, as defined
by Building Regulations (Approved Document G). By the installation of fittings and fixed
appliances, water recycling or other appropriate measures for the prevention of undue
consumption of water and which recycle and conserve water resources.

b) New development will be required to prioritise the use of sustainable drainage
systems (SUDS) and ensure there is no increase in flood risk from surface water.
Drainage systems should be of a high design standard and will benefit biodiversity and
contribute to improved water quality. Developers will be expected to submit a Drainage
Strategy that shows how foul and surface water will be effectively managed. Surface
water should be discharged in the following order of priority:

i. An adequate soakaway or some other form of infiltration system.

ii. An attenuated discharge to a surface water body such as a watercourse.
iii. An attenuated discharge to public surface water sewer, highway drain or another
drainage system.
iv. An attenuated discharge to public combined sewer.

Applicants wishing to discharge to public sewer will need to submit clear evidence
demonstrating why alternative options are not available.

c) Approved development proposals will be expected to be supplemented by appropriate
maintenance and management regimes for surface water drainage schemes.

d) On large sites, applicants should ensure that the drainage proposals are part of a
wider, holistic strategy, which coordinates the approach to drainage between phases,
between developers/landowners and over a number of years of construction.

e) On greenfield sites, applicants will be expected to demonstrate that the current
natural discharge from a site is at least mimicked.

f) On previously-developed land, applicants should target a reduction of surface water
discharge in accordance with the non-statutory technical standards for sustainable
drainage produced by DEFRA. In demonstrating a reduction, applicants should include
clear evidence of existing positive connections from the site with associated calculations
on rates of discharge.

g) Landscaping proposals should consider what contribution the landscaping of a site
can make to reducing surface water discharge. This can include hard and soft
landscaping such as permeable surfaces.

Page 143

Agenda Item 8



h) The treatment and processing of surface water is not a sustainable solution. Surface
water should be managed at source and not transferred. Every option should be
investigated before discharging surface water into a public sewerage network. A
discharge to groundwater or watercourse may require the consent of the Environment
Agency or Cumbria County Council as Lead Local Flood Authority.

The retrofitting of SuDS in locations that generate surface water run-off will be
supported, subject to the criteria above.

Policy DS1 - Council’s commitment to sustainable development
When determining planning applications the Council will take a positive approach to
ensure development is sustainable. The Council will work pro-actively with applicants to
find positive solutions that allow suitable proposals for sustainable developments to be
approved wherever possible.

The Council is committed to seeking to enhance the quality of life for residents by taking
an integrated approach to protect, conserve and enhance the built, natural and historic
environment whilst ensuring access to essential services and facilities and a wider
choice of housing. This will enable the Local Plan's Vision and Objectives to be met and
to secure development that simultaneously achieves economic, social and
environmental gains for the Borough.

Planning applications that accord with the Development Plan will be approved without
delay, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

Where there are no policies relevant to the application or relevant policies are out of
date at the time of making the decision then the Council will grant permission unless
material considerations indicate otherwise, taking into account whether:

a) Any adverse impacts of granting permission would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits when assessed against the policies in the National Planning
Policy Framework (or any document which replaces it)  taken as a whole; or

b) Specific policies in the Framework (or any document which replaces it) indicate that
development should be restricted.

Policy DS2 - Sustainable Development Criteria
In order to meet the objectives outlined in Policy DS1, subject to other Development
Plan policies which may determine the suitability of particular sites, all proposals should
meet all of the following criteria, where possible, taking into account the scale of
development and magnitude of impact and any associated mitigation by:

Page 144

Agenda Item 8



a) Ensuring that proposed development incorporates green infrastructure designed and
integrated to enable accessibility by walking, cycling and public transport for main travel
purposes, particularly from areas of employment and retail, leisure and education
facilities;

b) Ensuring development does not prejudice road safety or increase congestion at
junctions that are identified by the Local Highway Authority as being over-capacity;

c) Ensuring access to necessary services, facilities and infrastructure and ensuring that
proposed development takes into account the capacity of existing or planned utilities

infrastructure;

d) Ensuring that the health, safety and environmental effects of noise, smell, dust, light,
vibration, fumes or other forms of pollution or nuisance arising from the proposed
development including from associated traffic are within acceptable levels;

e) Respecting the residential amenity of existing and committed dwellings, particularly
privacy, security and natural light;

f) Protecting the health, safety or amenity of occupants or users of the proposed
development;

g) Contributing to the enhancement of the character, appearance and historic interest of
related landscapes, settlements, street scenes, buildings, open spaces, trees and other
environmental assets;

h) Contributing to the enhancement of biodiversity and geodiversity;

i) Ensuring that construction and demolition materials are re-used on the site if possible;

j) Avoiding adverse impact on mineral extraction and agricultural production;

k) Ensuring that proposals incorporate energy and water efficiency measures (in
accordance with the relevant Building Regulations), the use of sustainable drainage
systems where appropriate and steers development away from areas of flood risk;

l) Ensuring that any proposed development conserves and enhances the historic
environment including heritage assets and their settings; and

m) Development must comply with Policy DS3.

Where the applicant demonstrates that one or more of the criteria cannot be met, they
must highlight how the development will contribute towards the achievement of the Local
Plan objectives by alternative means.

Page 145

Agenda Item 8



Policy DS5 - Design
New development must be of a high quality design, which will support the creation of
attractive, vibrant places. Designs will be specific to the site and planning applications
must demonstrate a clear process that analyses and responds to the characteristics of
the site and its context, including surrounding uses, taking into account the Council's
Green Infrastructure Strategy. Proposals must demonstrate clearly how they:

a) Integrate with and where possible conserve and enhance the character of the
adjoining natural environment, taking into account relevant Supplementary Planning
Documents;

b) Conserve and enhance the historic environment, including heritage assets and their
setting;

c) Make the most effective and efficient use of the site and any existing buildings upon it;

d) Create clearly distinguishable, well defined and designed public and private spaces
that are attractive, accessible, coherent and safe and provide a stimulating environment;

e) Allow permeability and ease of movement within the site and with surrounding areas,
placing the needs of pedestrians, cyclists and public transport above those of the
motorist, depending on the nature and function of the uses proposed;

f) Create a place that is easy to find your way around with routes defined by a well-
structured building layout;

g) Prioritise building and landscape form over parking and roads, so that vehicular
requirements do not dominate the sites appearance and character;

h) Exhibit design quality using design cues and materials appropriate to the area, locally
sourced wherever possible;

i) Respect the distinctive character of the local landscape, protecting and incorporating
key environmental assets of the area, including topography, landmarks, views, trees,
hedgerows, habitats and skylines. Where no discernible or positive character exists,
creating a meaningful hierarchy of space that combines to create a sense of place;

j) Create layouts that are inclusive and promote health, well-being, community cohesion
and public safety;

Page 146

Agenda Item 8



k) Incorporate public art where this is appropriate to the project and where it can
contribute to design objectives;

l) Ensure that development is both accessible and usable by different age groups and
people with disabilities;

m) Integrate Sustainable Drainage Systems of an appropriate form and scale;

n) Mitigate against the impacts of climate change by the incorporation of energy and
water efficiency measures (in accordance with the Building Regulations), the orientation
of new buildings, and use of recyclable materials in construction; and

o) Ensuring that new development avoids creating nesting sites for gulls e.g. through the
provision of appropriate roof pitches.

Policy DS6 - Landscaping
Landscaping should be viewed as an integral part of the design process and should
include soft and hard landscaping, street furniture, lighting and public art where
appropriate.

A Landscaping Scheme and maintenance regime will be required as part of a full
planning application. This is particularly relevant where development will have a
significant impact upon the surrounding environment or where the development
occupies a site in a prominent location. The Cumbria Landscape Character Toolkit
should be used as a baseline tool to determine the impacts of new development on the
landscape and the type of landscaping and/or mitigation to be put in place.

All soft landscaping, including all existing trees, shrubs and planted areas should be
shown along with details of any protective measures proposed. Details of new trees,
shrubs and planted areas in terms of species, density, size, spacing and position should
be included. Native species should be used with decorative species used only for accent
purposes in support of other design objectives. Native planting is particularly important
in areas adjacent to natural habitats e.g. watercourses.

Proposals must demonstrate that any soft landscaping proposed will have a positive
visual impact upon the area and is able to survive in its environment.

In terms of hard landscaping, materials used must be of a colour and texture appropriate
to the locally distinctive character of the area, be durable, practical for the proposed use
under a variety of weather conditions and incorporate permeable surfaces to alleviate
run off

Page 147

Agenda Item 8



Suitable maintenance regimes for soft and hard schemes will be the subject of planning
conditions or unilateral undertakings as appropriate.

Policy GI6 - Green Links
Proposals involving or adjacent to existing hedgerows or Green Links will be supported
provided that they do not compromise the continuity or integrity of the hedgerow or
green link.

Where considered appropriate by the Planning Authority proposals should enhance the
contribution made by the hedgerow or green link.

Policy H11 - Housing Mix
In order to broaden and enhance the residential offer within the Borough development
proposals will be expected to provide a mix of different types, tenures and sizes of
housing to address local need and aspirations and developers will be required to
demonstrate how this need has been met as evidenced by:

a) Any relevant and up to date SHMA or Housing Need Assessment for the Borough;

b) Any other relevant and suitably evidenced housing needs information;

c) The location and characteristics of the site;

d) The mix of dwelling type, tenure and size in the surrounding area; and

e) Housing market conditions and demand at the time of the application.

Policy H14 - Affordable Housing
Delivery of affordable housing, including Rent to Buy homes, will be supported where the
proposal meets national and local policy. Proposals for housing development will be
assessed according to how well they meet the identified needs and aspirations of the
Borough's housing market area as set out in the most up-to-date Strategic Housing
Market Assessment and/or any more recent evidence of need. It is expected that 10% of
dwellings on sites of 10 units or over should be affordable (as defined by the NPPF
(2012) or any document which replaces it). Alternatively contributions to the provision of

Page 148

Agenda Item 8



affordable units off-site will be considered where justified. On and off site provision will
be secured through a Section 106 Agreement. Tenure split must reflect that stated as
required in the latest Strategic Housing Market Assessment where possible.

A lower proportion of affordable housing, or an alternative tenure split, may be permitted
where it can be clearly demonstrated by way of a financial appraisal that the
development would not otherwise be financially viable either due to this requirement or
due to the cumulative impact of this requirement and other required contributions. Early
dialogue with the Council on this matter is essential. It is not acceptable to sub-divide a
site and purposely design a scheme to avoid making affordable housing contributions.

Policy H3 - Allocated Housing Sites
In order to meet the housing requirement over the Plan period, a number of specific
sites are allocated for residential development. These are listed in Table 7 and are
identified in the Proposals Maps (Appendices A-C) and in Appendix F.

Policy H7 - Housing Development on Windfall Sites
Applications for residential development will be permitted where they satisfy all of the
following criteria:

a) The site is located within or adjoining the built up areas of Barrow and Dalton or
within a development cordon identified in Policy H4;

b) Site planning, layout and servicing arrangements are developed comprehensively;

c) Buildings are well designed in terms of siting, grouping, scale, orientation, detailing,
external finishes, security and landscaping in response to the form, scale, character ,
environmental quality and appearance of the site and the surrounding area;

d) An acceptable standard of amenity is created for future residents of the property in
terms of sunlighting, daylighting, privacy, outlook,  noise and ventilation;

e) The site is served by a satisfactory access that would not impact unduly on the
highway network;

f) The site has been designed to promote accessibility by walking, cycling and public
transport, as opposed to the private car;

g) The development is sustainable in its energy usage, environmental impact,
drainage, waste management, transport implications and is not at risk of flooding;

Page 149

Agenda Item 8



h) The capacity of the current and proposed infrastructure to serve the development is
adequate taking into account committed and planned housing development;

i) Where spare infrastructure capacity is not available, the site has the ability to
provide for the infrastructure requirements it generates, subject to criterion f);

j) Within rural settlements the applicant will be expected to demonstrate how the
development will enhance or maintain the vitality of the rural community where the
housing is proposed;

k) Where the site is located on the edge of Barrow and Dalton, the applicant will be
required to demonstrate how the development integrates within existing landscape
features and is physically linked to the settlement and does not lead to an unacceptable
intrusion into the open countryside or would result in the visual or physical coalescence
of settlements;

l) The proposal will not harm the historic environment, heritage assets or their setting;

m) There would be no unacceptable effects on the amenities and living conditions of
surrounding properties from overlooking, loss of light, the overbearing nature of the
proposal or an unacceptable increase in on-street parking; and

n) The development must comply with Policy N3 and the design principles set out in
the Development Strategy chapter should be followed.

The site should make effective use of previously developed land where possible.

Policy H9 - Housing Density
Developers can determine the most appropriate density on a site by site basis, providing
that the scheme meets the design principles set out in this Plan and is appropriate to the
character of the location of the development in negotiation with the planning authority.

Variations in density will be supported on larger sites in order to create distinctive
character areas.

Policy HC5 - Crime Prevention

Page 150

Agenda Item 8



The design, layout and location of new development should contribute towards the
creation of a safe and accessible environment, and the prevention of crime, and fear of
crime.

Developers should:

a) Ensure the design, landscaping or any feature does not create isolated or secluded
areas;

b) Demonstrate the design, layout, screening/landscaping enables a natural
surveillance of the surrounding area and promotes neighbourliness;

c) Incorporate adequate lighting and security measures where appropriate e.g.
communal and parking areas, taking into account the impact on light pollution, the
natural environment and residential amenity;

d) Design layouts to promote ownership by residents and encourage use of communal
areas

e) Create clear and legible pedestrian and cycle routes that prevent unobserved
access.

Policy I1 - Developer Contributions
Development and infrastructure provision will be coordinated to ensure that growth is
supported by the timely provision of adequate infrastructure, facilities and services. The
Infrastructure Delivery Plan will be used to identify the timing, type and number of
infrastructure requirements to support the objectives and policies of the Plan as well as
the main funding mechanisms and lead agencies responsible for their delivery.

All development should make the most efficient use of existing infrastructure where
there is capacity. Where developments will create additional need for improvements /
provision of infrastructure, services or facilities or exacerbate an existing deficiency,
contributions will be sought to ensure that the appropriate enhancements /
improvements are made, and appropriate management arrangements are in place.
Consideration will be given to how these requirements will affect the viability of
development.

The types of infrastructure that developments may be required to provide contributions
towards include, but are not limited to:

- Utilities and waste;

Page 151

Agenda Item 8



- Flood prevention and sustainable drainage measures;

- Transport (highway, rail, bus and cycle / footpath network and any associated
facilities);

- Community Infrastructure including health, education, libraries, public realm, heritage
and geological assets and other community facilities (see 5.2.1.);

- Green Infrastructure (such as outdoor sports facilities, open space, parks, allotments,
play areas, enhancing and conserving biodiversity and management of environmentally
sensitive areas); and

- Climate change and energy initiatives through allowable solutions.

Developer contributions for the above will be informed by relevant up to date and robust
evidence where applicable.

Where appropriate, the Council will permit developers to provide the necessary
infrastructure themselves as part of their development proposals, rather than making
financial contributions, subject to agreement with relevant consultees.

Policy N3 - Protecting biodiversity and geodiversity
The Council will support development which maintains, protects and enhances
biodiversity across the Borough. Proposals for new development should minimise
impacts on biodiversity and provide net gains in biodiversity where possible. Proposals
will be expected to improve access to important biodiversity areas, and will be required
to show full details of measures to achieve this in the form of a suitable Management
Plan. Consideration must be given to the Council's Biodiversity and Development
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) and any other relevant guidance.

Designated biodiversity and geodiversity sites

There is a presumption in favour of the preservation and enhancement of sites of

international and national importance. Development proposals that would cause a direct
or indirect adverse effect on any site of international or national importance, including its
qualifying habitats and species will only be permitted where the Council and relevant
partner organisations are satisfied that:

Page 152

Agenda Item 8



.; The adverse effect cannot be avoided (for example through locating the
development on an alternative site); and

.; Any adverse impacts can be mitigated for example through appropriate habitat
creation, restoration or enhancement on site or in another appropriate location, in
agreement with the Council and relevant partner organisations, via planning
conditions, agreements or obligations.

Where mitigation is not possible or viable or where there would still be significant
residual harm following mitigation, compensation measures should be made to provide
an area of equivalent or greater biodiversity value. Compensation should be secured
through planning conditions or planning obligations.

Special compensation considerations apply in the case of Natura 2000 sites. If harm to
such sites is allowed because the development meets the above criteria and imperative
reasons of overriding public interest have been demonstrated, the European Habitats
and Wild Birds Directive requires that all necessary compensatory measures are taken
to ensure the overall coherence of the network of European Sites as a whole is
protected.

Local wildlife sites and geological designations such as County wildlife sites, wildlife
corridors and Local Geological Sites (LGS) will be afforded a high degree of protection
from potentially harmful development, unless a strong socio-economic need can be
demonstrated and the development cannot be situated in a less sensitive location.

Assessing the effects of development on biodiversity and geodiversity

Proposals for new development which may result in significant harm to biodiversity must
be accompanied by appropriate surveys, undertaken by a suitably qualified person, to
identify the potential effects of development. In such cases, the mitigation hierarchy, as
referenced in the Council's Biodiversity and Development SPD should be applied and it
must be demonstrated that avoidance measures have been considered and justification
for ruling these out must be given. Where significant harm is avoidable, it should be
adequately mitigated, or as a last resort, compensated for.

Page 153

Agenda Item 8



Where mitigation is required in the form of species translocation, the Council will work
with partners to identify suitable sites for translocation.

Where there is evidence to suspect the presence of protected species, the planning
application should be accompanied by appropriate, up-to-date surveys carried out at the
correct time of year for the particular species assessing their presence to ensure that the
proposal is sympathetic to the ecological interests of the site.

Policy N4 - Protecting other wildlife features
New development should conserve and enhance biodiversity features, and proposals for
new development should be submitted with landscaping proposals, including a
Management Plan, which show how existing trees, riparian corridors/trees, hedgerows,
ponds and other wildlife features will be integrated into the development. Landscaping
proposals should also include new trees and other planting of suitable species for the
location to enhance the landscape of the site and its surroundings as appropriate.

Trees which positively contribute to the visual amenity and environmental value of that
location will be protected. New development should not result in the loss of or damage
to ancient woodland or veteran or aged trees outside woodland.

Where the conservation of biodiversity features cannot be achieved, the applicant must
justify their loss. Where the Council is satisfied that the loss is adequately justified,
replacement trees, hedgerows, ponds and other wildlife features will be required.

Proposals which include landscaping proposals, replacement of wildlife features, new
wildlife features, or which integrate existing wildlife features into the development, will be
required to demonstrate that measures will be put in place to manage these features as
appropriate, including the use of suitable legal agreements.

Page 154

Agenda Item 8



PLANNING COMMITTEE

23rd June 2020

INDEX

Page Reference Address Proposal

2 2019/0513 Urofoam Ltd, Duddon
Road, Askam-in-
Furness

Application for Outline Planning Permission with all
matters reserved for housing development of up to 42
houses.

51 2019/0242 Land to the rear of 12 /14
Nelson Street Dalton-in-
Furness

Outline planning permission with all matters reserved
for the erection of 2 dwellings with detached garages

Page 155

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Confirmation of Minutes
	7 Delegated Approvals - For Information (Booklet attached)
	DEL PLAN.pdf (p.1-19)
	BC DEL.pdf (p.20-40)

	8 Planning Applications (Booklet attached).
	2019/0513 Urofoam Limited
	Consultation responses
	Officers Report 
	Recommendation
	Plans

	2019/0242 12/14 Nelson Street
	Consultation responses
	Officers Report 
	Recommendation
	Plans

	Policy Appendix
	Index


